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10 3.30 3.00
10 50 1.65 1.50
50 100 0.825 0.75
100 0.55 0.50
0.45 10
0.40 10 0.35
5,000 0.25 5,000
0.20 0.15
0.02
0.23 10
0.28 10 0.33
2019 31
168,097.54 93,387.62 85,928.84

7,470.99
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2019 31 378,014.16

2019

20.315 15.315 2038
20 15

15.315

2038 15

20.315
15.315 2038 20 15
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1972
FATCA
FFI FATCA
1GA
1GA 1GA FFI FFI
FFI
FI
1GA FFI
1GA 1GA 1GA 1GA
HVRC
1GA
OECD
CRS
OECD
2014 10 29
CRS
MCAA

60 2016 CRS

66/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HMRC

HVMRC

HMRC

FATCA

FATCA

FATCA

67/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FATCA

FATCA 1GA
I1GA

FATCA FATCA

10

68/352



30

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30

183

69/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FATCA

30
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2019

546 1.43
224 0.59
172 0.45
100 0.26
685 1.80
353 0.93
352 0.92
200 0.52
200 0.52
101 0.27
14 0.04
932 2.45
443 1.16
358 0.94
336 0.88
199 0.52
161 0.42
150 0.39
127 0.33
115 0.30
15 0.04
302 0.79
183 0.48
77 0.20
25 0.07
21 0.06
10 0.03
6 0.02
2 0.01
1,182 3.10
517 1.36
44,761 117.49
6,649 17.45
126 0.33
120 0.31
59,524 156.24
21,426 56.24

38,098
4,056 100.00

72/352



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30
2019
1 |U.S. Treasury Notes 2.000 2025 15 5,074,681| 5,190,000 5,195,474 13.64
2 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.625| 2026 15 4,462,295| 4,482,546 4,564,088 11.98
3 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2021 15 4,555,760| 4,552,975 4,509,081 11.84
4 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 2.375| 2025 15 4,323,780| 3,910,853 4,353,791 11.43
5 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 1.375 2044 15 3,539,766| 3,272,160 3,737,878 9.81
6 |Fannie Mae, TBA 4.000| 2049 2,980,922 2,900,000 2,992,221 7.85
7 |Fannie Mae, TBA 3.500| 2049 2,715,893| 2,690,000 2,741,804 7.20
8 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.500 2028 15 2,544,511 2,615,536 2,641,606 6.93
9 JU.S. Treasury Notes 2.750 2024 15 2,227,913| 2,200,000 2,280,137 5.98
10 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 2.500 2029 15 2,127,706| 1,830,449 2,190,989 5.75
11 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.250| 2025 15 2,084,829| 2,097,111 2,087,591 5.48
12 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2022 15 1,631,949 1,672,416 1,658,013 4.35
13 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.375| 2025 15 1,286,357| 1,295,963 1,302,716 3.42
14 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.875 2029 15 1,240,877| 1,209,183 1,263,920 3.32
15 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 1.750 2028 15 1,108,267 1,010,762 1,127,162 2.96
16 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 2.000| 2026 15 796,242 728,752 807,849 2.12
17 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.375 2027 15 788,211 800,169 802,599 2.11
18 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.375| 2027 15 663,350 684,021 684,660 1.80
19 |U.S. Treasury Notes 2.125| 2024 31 599,971 600,000 605,098 1.59
20 |United Kingdom Gilt Inflation-Linked 1.875| 2022 11 22 573,853 388,158 573,280 1.50
21 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.750 2045 15 517,511 539,750 538,207 1.41
22 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2022 15 534,383 530,592 528,622 1.39
23 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.875| 2047 15 449,783 452,820 465,800 1.22
24 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 2.125 2041 15 449,015 359,845 465,003 1.22
25 |Fannie Mae 3.000 2043 441,369 449,995 454,186 1.19
26 |France Government Bond 2.250 2020 25 449,613 380,313 443,055 1.16
27 |Cairn CLO 111 BV 0.650| 2028 10 20 482,602 390,000 434,711 1.14
28 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.750 2028 15 371,087 374,695 387,930 1.02
29 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2026 15 385,733 392,381 387,285 1.02
30 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 1.000| 2046 15 363,191 358,325 378,874 0.99
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2019

58,461,884 6,223,852 14.10 1,501

2010 31
62,897,944 6,696,115 15.32 1,631

2011 31
71,434,645 7,604,932 17.25 1,836

2012 31
99,037,985 10,543,584 17.06 1,816

2013 31
89,446,622 9,522,487 17.06 1,816

2014 31
80,930,802 8,615,893 16.62 1,769

2015 31
62,793,186 6,684,963 16.62 1,769

2016 31
38,241,199 4,071,158 17.10 1,820

2017 31
38,320,854 4,079,638 17.13 1,824

2018 31
38,097,687 4,055,880 17.79 1,894

2019 31
2018 37,658,757 4,009,151 17.04 1,814
10 37,005,439 3,939,599 16.77 1,785
11 36,448,857 3,880,345 16.81 1,790
12 36,523,313 3,888,272 16.86 1,795
2019 36,986,934 3,937,629 17.15 1,826
36,942,648 3,932,914 17.16 1,827
37,468,317 3,988,877 17.45 1,858
37,616,815 4,004,686 17.52 1,865
38,100,583 4,056,188 17.79 1,894
38,155,792 4,062,066 17.93 1,909
38,235,355 4,070,536 17.97 1,913
39,071,719 4,159,575 18.32 1,950
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[t | B - . ___mas BALE (%) |
1= US TREASURY INFLATEPROTBD | *@ = ®EMB&E® | 2021/415 14.3 |
2 U S TREASURY INFLATE PROT BD ¥E | HEMESAEZ | 2026/1/15 116 |
3 U S TREASURY INFLATE PROT BD #E | wEMEERS | 2025/1/15 11.4
4 U S TREASURY INFLATE PROT BD $E 2 H=EMBEEAE | 2044/2015 105 !
5 FNMA TBA 4.0% NOV 30YR HE | HEEGMBEE | 2049/11/13 79
6 FMMA TBA 3.5% NOV 30YR ¥E | KMEFTMBEE | 2049/11/13 7.8 |
7 U & TREASURY INFLATE PROT BD #*[ HEREH NS 20281156 65 |
8 | USTREASURY INFLATE PROT BD HE  HEMEAEN | 2029/1/15 59 |
9 'US TREASURY INFLATE PROT BD *E | REMBEMNS | 2025/1/15 35
10 U S TREASURY INFLATE PROT BD B HEMEHR RS 2022/4/15 35 |
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284,050 1,344,465 4,145,922
(284,050) (1,344,465) (4,145,922)
577,300 616,830 4,106,392
(577,300) (616,830) (4,106,392)
949,910 914,313 4,141,989
(949,910) (914,313) (4,141,989)
2,884,060 1,221,594 5,804,455
(2,884,060) (1,221,594) (5,804, 455)
258,740 819,629 5,243,566
(258,740) (819, 629) (5,243,566)
590,870 965,008 4,869,428
(590,870) (965,008) (4,869,428)
364,900 1,456,548 3,777,780
(364,900) (1,456,548) (3,777,780)
212,200 1,753,400 2,236,580
(212,200) (1,753,400) (2,236,580)
86,150 85,370 2,237,360
(86,150) (85,370) (2,237,360)
17,260 113,350 2,141,270
(17,260) (113, 350) (2,141,270)
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USA USA PATRIOT ACT The U.S.
Bank Secrecy Act

CSSF 08 387 CSSF 10
476 CSSF CSSF
2019 11 2020 10 30
100 10
10 3.30 3.00
10 50 1.65 1.50
50 100 0.825 0.75

100 0.55 0.50

82/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

83/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

84/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad
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60

NYSE

NYSE
NYSE
NYSE
NYSE

NOCP
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BMA
BMA

2001 100

31

5,000 1972 Exchange Control
Act 1972 BMA

75

100
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2017 2018 31
2018 2019 31

131

23 103

2019 30 UFJ
106.46
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31

59,518

45
188

420
267
6,454

201

67,154

7,755
8,021
702

287
142
625

11,451

I =
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29,056

38,098

58,678

62

695
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31

1,367

1,367

168
93
86

378
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(257)
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370
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1,410
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31

634 67
(229) (24)
1,005 107
1,410 150
0 0
0 0
(1,633) (174)
(223) (24)
38,321 4,080
38,098 4,056
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2019 5 31

1,410 150
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101,020 10,755
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11,431 1,217
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(352) @37

395 42

3 0

(52) (6)

TBA (6) @

16 2
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0 0
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0

5 1

0 0

@ 0)
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0
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0
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(2,039) 17)
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2019 31
17.13 1,824
(@) 0.29 31
0.37 39
0.66 70
17.79 1,894

() 3.85
38,008 4,056

1.96

0.95
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ASU ASU
FASB
ASC 230 ASU 2016 15 ASU 2018 12
2019 12 15
ASU
FASB
ASC 230 ASU 2016 18
2018 12 15 2019 12 15
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FASB ASC 820 ASU 2018 13
ASU 2019 12 15
ASU ASU
NYSE
NYSE NYSE
NYSE NYSE
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2019 31
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CFTC FCM
FCM
FCM
1SDA
1SDA
1SDA
1SDA
0.236
0.236
0.5 D g5 @ 0.02 0.33 ®
0.5 @ 9.5 ®  0.02 0.33 ®
0.35 @ 0.8 ® g3 @
0.35 @0 0.08 @V g3 @2
0.35 @ 0.08 @ g3 @®
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JITF M
2019 31 2019 31 2019 31 2019 31
33 3,408 23 2,272 433 17,140
s @ @
9,333 | 140,514
©6)|  (6,651) @ 4,430 @) @7,133)
@Ol (3,638)Y)
(19,400) | (292,825)
G (3,243) eyl (@.162) 0 7| (10,509) | (155,905)
2019 31 2019 31 2019 31 2019 31
84 5,049 27 285 17 205
93 4,139
12 922
13 873
12 683
425 6,009
43 1,536
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 7
0 7
(136) (8.153) ase)| @679 )| ,929)
(220) (9,719)
®) (607)
(51) (3,500)
(50) (2.,890)
,5)  (66,110)
(76) (2.748)
52) (3,104) @405 (1,308  @n| (1,39) ©6)| (1,633
2019 31
531P | 37,715 P

129/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

93 8,480
48 4,559
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2019 31

i1y By iR
(i) [ ]

4. I50% due 101472021 3 350 3 353

Goldman Sachs Growap, Inc,

SRS due 0915,/2020 300 JUg

ING Bank NV

T OEREN due 1205 2000 100 101

Nordea Eredit Realkroditakticsolskab

* S00% due 10/01/2047 [kK 3 |

Nykredit Realkredit A/S

2500 due 10012047 15 L

& DO due 10,501/ 2047 s L]

Realkredit Dunsark A/S

2. GO0 due OT/01/2047 31 5

Toranto-Dominion Bank

BN due 031552021 5 200 200
971

BAT Interoational Finance PLC
2. 7500 due 0615,/2020 200 )

coe® oL ____________________________________________________

ATAT, Inc.

3270 due 060172021 104 101

4. 100% due 02/ 15/2028 ALl ol

YextEra Brergy Capital Holdings, Ine.

o BEER due 09,703,/2019 ] (2]

Petrobras Global Finance BV

B 009 due 01,/27/2028 233 240

7. 375% due 011772027 100 112
T34

s LURETERSNH 1, 805

(HRARIEES 1, 853)

RS AT 17, 5%

Fannia hno

o TR0 due 072572097 ] i

LEI0% due 07/25/2097 14 4

BTN due D5/25/2036 T i

& DO due 05,01,/ 2043 106 107

3. 000% due 08,/01/2043 450 154

3. B46% due 10,/01/2044 4 4

Fannie Mas, TBA (b)

3. BOUs due 070172045 2, B0 2. T42

4. 000% due 07/01/2049 2,500 L 0n

Freddie Mac

& M0 due 12/ 15/2087 23 =

Ginnie Maso

L BALS due 02720/°2049 198 155

3. 000% due 08,/20/2068 100 )

3 O O 6 640

(R L6, 5506}
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2019 31

01 i [P 1
TN { F-HR{E)

IR B R 117, 6%
Treasury Infletion Protected Securities {c)

0. 125% due D415,/2021 () i W, 553 ] 4. 500
0. 126% due O4015,2022 1,672 1. 858
0. 125% due 07 15,2022 531 520
0. 125% due D1S16,2023 357 354
0. 125% due O7.15/2024 257 55
0. 125% due 07/15/2026 302 i
508 doe 01152025 2,007 2,088
0. 375% due 0715,/2023 3 B4
0. 375% due 07/15/2025 1. 296 1. 303
0. 375% due 01/15,/2027 G4 B85
0. 375% due 07/15,2027 B0 B3
00 500% due 01152028 2,616 2 642
0. 625% due 07,715,/2021 11 Il
0. 6Zo% duc D17 152024 al a2
0. 625% due 01/15,/2026 (g) 4,483 4. 564
0. 6255 due 0215, 2043 111 108
0. TE0% due 0715,/2028 378 Ja8
0. 7508 due 02/15,/2042 112 113
0 TS due 02715/2045 540 538
0. 875% due 01/15,/2029 1,209 1. 264
0. B75% due 0271552047 453 A6h
L. 000% due 02715,/2046 i s
1. 3758 due 021552044 (g} - L ¥ S . ]
L. T50% due 01/15,/2028 1.011 1127
2.000% due 01,/15/2026 T30 Hid
21255 due 027152040 118 151
2. 125% due 021572041 360 465
2. 375% due 0101552025 g 4811 4. 354
. BOOR. due 0],/15,/2020 1, 830 2. 191
33755 due 04/ 152032 169 230
3. 625% due B4/15/2028 226 258
3 BT5R due D4/15/2000 111 [ B5]
L5 Treasury Hotes
S 000% due 02/15/2025 (g) 5, 190 . 195
2 125% due 073152084 (g) GO0 i}
2. Tels due 02/15/2024 (m) 2,200 2,380
AR B B ., 761
CHPH RS 43, B68)

== M TR 4B
Bane of America Funding Trust
4. 226% due 01,7200/2047 L] (L]
CIM Trust
34308 due 02/25/2040 L=] i
Civic Mortgage LLC
IRtk due 06/25/2002 d6 35
Countrywide Home Loan Mortgage Pass-Through Trust
30008 due 4252005 152 L
(5 First Boston Mortgage Securities Corp.
3. 050% due 01,/25,/2002 157 156
GSAMP Trust
4. 165% due 09/25,/2035 (d) 13 43
G5R Mortgage Loan Trust
4. BOT% due 09,25,/2085 o ]
HSI Asset Securitization Corporation Trust
2. DS0% due 05,725,/2007 ] B7
IndyMac INDK Mortgage Loan Trust
3 70N due 05,725,/2034 155 177
JPlorgun Mortgage Trust
4. 494% due 06/25/2035 a9 5

132/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 31

50T i [ET"

(TN - HE{)
Long Beach Mortgage Loan Trust
3 165% due 08/25,/2035 3 Bl 3 B4
Mellon Residential Funding Corporation Mortgage Pass-Through Trust
3. J00% due 08,15,2002 11 11
Hew York Mortgage Trust
1. TE6% due 05.25,/2006 (d) 73 T2
Option One Bortgage Loan Trust
3. IB5% due 115252034 bl 10d)
Saxon Asset Securities Trust
20 T40% due 0972572047 26 L
Silverstone Master Issuer PLC
o I4ES due 0172172000 200 201
Towd Point Mortgage Funding Granited PLC
1. B35% due 10,/20,/2051 GRP 250 316
Wallu Mortgzago Pass-Through Cortificates Trust
L 229 due 03/25/2007 (d) % a6 6
Wells Fargo Mortgage-Backed Securities Trust
4. 8534% due [0/25/2035 3 2
TP e 2 RN 1. 650
(PGS 1, BOG)

0. B50% due 10,/20,2028 EUR ] 435
Crown Point CLO & Ltd

3 528% due 07172028 5 100 LK}
Grosvenor Place CLO BY

0 T20% due 10/30,/2026 EUR 10a 111
Harvest CLO XIV DAC

0. B30% due 11/18,/2029 100 112
Navient Studemt Loanm Trust

3080 due 03/25,2066 3 iz i
Orwell Park CLO Designated Activity Co.

0. T80% due O7,18/2029 EUR 100 12
Springlastle Funding Asszet-Backed Notes

& I00% due 067272036 (h) 3 100 100
o koA EERARH 1, 42
(M miEs 1, 121)

AN T

Argentina Goverrment Internatiomnl Bond

6. 8755 due 01/26./2007 100 e
b3, BOES due 04,03/ 2052 AR3 [l 14
Argentina POM Politica Mobetaria

62, B0E% due D621 205 2, B0 5
Australin Goverrment Bond (2}

L 250% due 0272172022 AUD 360 297
& D00 due 0920y 2005 60 1
Aatonomous Commanity of Catalonia

4. 950% due 02/11/2020 EUR 104 115
Canada Government Bond

4. I50% due 12/01/2026 (e} CAD 154 (1]
France Governmest Bond

2. 500 due OT/E5/2000 (c) EUR 380 443
Italy Bucai Polieonali dol Tesore (c)

2 350% due D9 15/2024 63 73
2. GO0 due 0915/ 2023 107 126
Mexico Government Internations] Bond

1. BO0% due 11./22,/2035 (e) MEH 263 15
New Zoaland Goversment Bond

o GO0 due 09202006 (e) WD pLali] f ]
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2019 31

T v e O (i3

{TF-NLLD (R
Paru Governmsent Imternational Bond
Bo0% due 02/12/2020 PEN 100 i i
G 150% due 08/12/2032 300 a5
United Kingdom Gilt Inflation=-Linked (c}
0. 125% due 09/10,/2028 Gap 225 Ja8
1. B75% due 11/22/2022 388 573
U R 2,836
(MRS, 008)

LR G 1. En

LS| SR 0L

Banik of Montreal

1. BB due D6/03,/2019 () CAD 130 m
Canadian Isperial Bank of Cosserce

1. S55% due 06,/03,/2009 () 50 T

Ir—Lidp e s ei—id— 0. TR
Broadcos Corp.
3 000 due 06,/06,/2019 (F) i 250 L ]

Australin and New Zealand Banking Growp Ltd.

O BS0% due 0/03/2018 AD 4 3
0. TH0% due 06/04,/2019 i 3 2
L. 8908 due 06,/03/2019 -3 4 4
Bank of Mova Scotia

0. B0 due 06/03,/2019 CAD 1 1
1. B90% due 06/03,/2018 3 R ]
BAP Paribas Bank

(0, ST0%) due 06./03/201% EUR a2 2
Brown Brothors Horrimen & Co.

{0, B00%) due 06/03,/201% DER 4 1
Citibank N.A.

0. 3TO0% due 06/03/2019 GHP 0 1
1. B50% due 06/03,/2019 3 I7 17
DES Bank Ltd.

1 % due 06/03/2014 5 5
HSBC Bank FLC

(0, ST0%) due 06/03/201% EUR 3 3
0. 370% due 06/09/2019 Gl Z 3
JPMorgan Chase Bamk M. A

1. B90% duc 06/03/2019 P M 34
MUFG Bask Ltd

{0, 290%) due 06/08,/201% ¥ 1o 1
National Australis Bank Ltd

O, BE0% due 06032018 AUD 1 1
Royal Bank of Canada

1. % duc 06/03/20148 $ 1 1
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp.

(0, 570} due 06032019 EIR 2 2
1. B90% duc D8/03,/2019 % 4 4
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2019 31

R [F1°

(TN (- i)
Sumitomo Mitsul Trust Bank Ltd
(0, ST0R} dui 06,/00,/201% EUR 3z § 35
(0, Z30%) due (60372019 ¥ 21 [d]
0. 370% due 06,03,2019 GOF [ 7
1. B90% due 060372019 5 i 28

208
At T LB R 0. 0%

G0, SR dise 071920019 (1) ARS G0 21
I SRR 626
(AT
SRR G () 106,28 H 59,518
(RIS 58, 6T8)
B U5 0 R () (1) (0.5%) {196)
(RBEEE L2 7 A, EEE $040))
EOMORES L URN, M (55 T (21, 224)
BB 100, 0% $ 38, 098
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2019 31

AT ERNE N R L i 2 T (il ¢ TR

BN

 Pordl, FoEkRoaEiA SR ERRs R LT A D RS,

(a) 201950 31 ARECMBEE L LS ST R 5 R, IR SRR AR 1L 1%, 2R URMR A e |5 Re S
£ (RiC L o eSS,

(b]  SETTRRR TR,

(o) BEHROEREERKIS 7 b SBo LT Te S,

() fETRITIC - i,

(o) Hr—ai-12, IR E OOl e O £,

(F)  fr—abiia ik, WM E-Torpl G &R,

i Addks L OFE OO |

AR wme LA
i fiA&® (ACHAR) (ACHASE) fEAET Skt
B LRSI 04709200 000§ 6439 % 16, 463}
GRE LEMR 052002008 07/10/3018 (106} (106}
SGY .53 057212019 06/DL 3019 {1, 138) {1, 186}
i LR S i (7, T85)

bk BEL M|

ML

kA8 miR Bl hind
HEN firsf (HA7BSE) (HABSF) A Hfhf™
P Z, BRaN DEI6/M01S 07/ 1672019 3 (B0 5 (0L}
i3] 2. 6lTe 16/ 5018 07/ 162019 (1.371) {1, 376}
3 2. 625% =T S L ] OB/H/ 20149 {1, 148} {1,148}
b5 2, ks I TR 07/ 16 2000 4, 2640 {4, 200}
BPs & TI6% 05,30,/ 519 QB04, 20149 (B0} (BOG}
AR LIRS § (5 021)

Ak LTHEShENEOER
BRoREnERe
gr—rt—df b
BELE
_ EEmal WEET I AMHEWE 90 B i

i L
FIRRRT R 3 9 8 (Lis®m  § 6 560 I
# LR et [ 0§ (1,88 § (B B&S) 0§ (7,768
FEES W LA
I AT - a 13 {1, E—H 3 {6, ..’bT_r 0 £ (&, 021}
LR LIS $ 0§ (LTE) § (6 26T} 0 3 021
i Adat § 0§ (doa0)  § (12 B36) 0§ (157i8)
3 LN LU O L IR D R 5 (15776
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2019 31

e WD
HEN A F—dlr (ASHASW)  WEER S SR
P8 Fannie W 3. 000 OTAOCDME § TO0 3 (EeEr & (Tem)
ek b § (636} § (702}

i A TR o o B R | o R

EUFHL, 2019456 0 31 0SS, HESS L SMANLL HTH T Ol GR SRERONES LERAS (280 XhEROERThD,

(g} 20194ES5 A 3] BIME, TEO-R S —SEHOERmicl-SE, FHERE 16, 960 ¥ FAOiARERIHER E 2o THE,

LA S ERL fkAdri Lr

I RN BAlctad SN FOoRoRE  EEEAS cdaf—
HEN SEE  wrichES  RES  SbhDRE RS SN (3 A—E
e e el P 5
BEN 3 O 5 06 4630 ] ] § ¢ 5 (6463 3 G546 % fox]
GRE [ {106} ] ] {106) 106 il
SGY L] {1, 185} L] L] (1, 186) 1, 198 12
o AN B - KEE |
s 0 o (8, 01} ] (8, 021) #, 103 B2
Jrs ] ] o 7oz} vz ] {702
AN L URE OO oM g
&t (] 0§ (7.7EE) 3 (021} §  (Ton)

o010 RS A 31 BEET IR, SR oo EEHE AR 15, 705 4 FAaT, MICTERRR 2508 T Rl AR RS, NIRRT SRS G, R
BV LRG S LU R e S LR,

LW L s A DRI i, 82 FAOER TR L SRENY ENnD,

oy Ad—Fae—hiE, W FRTRY OB R S kg s GlRihg) SR BARLUE O pRERE L o -y
=L, [@— ORI e fT S @D A P =SR-S R S L SEEIRO A S TR SRS, + A —HERRE R OB
T, BRSNS ERNES A8 RN 280 L,

i o U nEK (M%) 13 AR
Aestralio Government 3-Year Bond June

Fatures Short D/ Ta1s 5 3 {5) 5 0 5 a
Amaitral s Government 10-YVear Bond June

Fatures Shert 062015 1 ) L] 0
Euro-Behl 5-Year Nove Sepresber Futures Long 082014 2 F 1 ]
Earo~BTF 10-Year Bond Jane Futures Short 06/ 2018 6 (13} 1 1]
Euro-Hund 10-Year Bond Septesber Futures Long 08201 23 11 HL 1]
Euro-Tux] 30-Year Bopd Septomber Futures Shert fLeTedelke] E L L 0
Euro0AT 10-Year Bond Septesber Futures Shurt 201 13 6] [ 5y
Eoro-Schatz I-Year Note September Futures Short QU 47 2 [1] [l ]
ILE Treasury 2-Year Note Septesber Fotures hort 92019 4% (58) ] (26
I.5 Tressury B-Year MNote Septesber Fatures short Qa0 = (31) L (1
IS Treasury 10-Yenr Note Scptember Futores Long 99/ 3015 Z1 Rt 18 i}
U5 Treosury 30-Yeor lond Septesber Futures Short /2019 n (78} o (303
U5 Trensury J0-Yenr Bend Septesber Futures Lo (/201 4 b ] H 1]
Inited Eingdom Tremsury 10-Year Gilt

Septesbor Futures Short 09/2019 i ) 1] 4]
Call Option Strike @ EUR 167, 000 on Buaro-

Band 10-Year September 3019 Futures Short PE/201% 2 (8] L3 (30
Call Opticn Sirike ® ELR 169, 300 on Baro-

tand 10-Year Septesber 2019 Futures Shert o708 2 12 [ L]
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2019 31
Call Dpticn Strike @ EUR 170,000 on Euaro-
Bund 10-Year September 2019 Futures Short 07/2019 2 % {1 § o ] {38
Put Option Strike B EUR 167, 000 an Euro-Bund
[0-Year Seplesber 2009 Futures Short DE201% - a Q [#4)
Put Option Strike § EUR 165, 500 an Euro-Bund
10-Yeor Sepiember 2009 Futures Short O7a01% 2 2 ] L
Fuy Option Strike 8 EUR 170, 000 «n Euro—Bund
10-Year September 2019 Futbres Short 07/201%0 2 0 [ i2)
Fommi § QI 3 6 3 (0

er
019 £

5 R 11 ARED

fwTFALE
L7 r LA HERS R ERRE gt | EREMS 000
T AT A= SWEH  (ASRSE AL FY MEmg B (s B i
Doimler MG 1, DO0% 12420/ 2020 0,277  EUR 10 8 [ o & 0 $ 0

| E ] ARMElE

ik Tl BHEE  (ASBE) MRk B {5 Wik plid
CIL 1G-02 Imdex 1. D00 &30S0 § 104) 1 H] 3 a 3 a 3 o
S
k] e E SR . EREERE
Eosal R R [ (A B WETE P8 ) Bk A
T F-Uonth USH-LIBOR 2, 9508 12/20/2002 3 w00 8 [ [ 5 2 5§00
-2 3-Month USI-LINGR 2. Bib% 10/25/2003 500 19 19 3 (1]
L FUemth USD-LITBOR 2. BT 1L/ 1972023 300 10 10 I 0
=L T-Uenth UVSD-LIEOR = BEIN 1312373023 ] 2 12 2 L]
2 1) J-Month USD-LIBOR 2, 500% 124102003 160 ] 6 I L]
g 3Uonth USI-LIRR 2, J00% 04./27,/2026 1, 100 (15) (15 i {5)
= I-Month USP-LIBOR 1, B&0% Q7/27,,2026 300 - 2 o i1l
o F-Meath USI-LIBOR 2 07 27/ 2026 1, o0 1 220 ] 8]
il SMenth USD-LIBOR 1, 750% 12/21,/2026 bt 5 14 o {2)
S|~ I-Month USD-LIBOR 3, 100% 041772028 B4 (23] L) o =]
Zim F-Menth USD-LIB0R 2, H50m 06,/20,/2008 B0 (12 144) 0 5
i J-Uenth USD-LIBK 2, 20 07/ 1872008 00 (1 (12 0 {2
2m S-Momth USIHLIROR 2, T65% 07/18/2028 210 ) (L4 0 ()
g d-Moanh USI-LEBOR 3034 132028 500 (300 {31h o 3)
o | 3-Memth USD-LIBOR 20514 1L/ 10/2048 20 3 (3h o 0
= d-Menth Usl-L1E0R 2, Bals 1812308 a0 L2 [} o 11}
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2019 31

S
TR e AL
@Fl EBAHNE EiEes  (A/B/E) Mk wE 5 T AR
4 I-Momth USD-L1H 2, 7a0% E2/ 19,/ 2048 ] 20 3 (] ] {3 ] 0
= J-Month USD-LIROE 3. D00 1219, 3048 204 (31} (43 ] {4)
i b-Year French CPI Ex
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Statements of Operations [Cont)
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Statements of Changes in Net Assets [Cant)
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGANIZATION

Each Fund discussed in e vepodt (each a "Fund” and collectively, the "Funds™), which alvoinduded eadh dass of umits of that Fund {each a "Class™ and colleiedy,
the "Clarses™), & A senies tust of FRMCO Bermuda Tnstithe “Trust™), a0 open-ended unit it estabiished under the Laws of Bemmuda as 8 multi-Senes fust pussiant
10 & mus deed exeqated by Windvester Global Tnast Company Limited on August £, 2001 (a5 amended fom time (o Sme, te “Trist Deed™) Efective s of the dose
of business (Eastem Sme) on Movernber 28, 2006, Winchester Global Trust Company Limited retired and was dischanged as trustee of the Trust and Browsn Brothers.
Harrinan Trust Commparry (Capman) Limited was appointed a5 rew mustee of the Trust for the owners of units of the Funds (fe “Unstholders™). Effective &5 of the dese
of busewess (Eastem Se) on Seplember 79, 2007, Brown Brothers Harriman Trust Compay (Cayman) Limited refired andwas dicharged a5 insstee of the Trust and
Maglas Trustee Senvices (Bermuda) Limited was appoimited as new trstes of the Trust As weed in this report, 30 references to the "Trstee” shal mean the person
Ikt e 45 Wikbes [0 thee Trust, Pacific Imeestment Managemeent Cofngany LLC (T PINMCO, ™ the “Manager™ of the "invesiment Adviser™) i4 the sponsor of sdwal
respomsible fior stnucturing the Trust

Thie Trusd is asbject to requiation and supenddon as provided for in the investment Funsds Act 2006 and related nees relating 1o standand finds

Thie terms of the Trust Deed conder upan the Truses, with the congent of the hl;rl,y:;f;-r_ the powetr, in e future, toestablsh further unch i JdkdiSon o the Funds
arendy in operation as of the date of this report

The Fumids presented in this report ase listed kel ow

| !J-.ﬂl ! i Forengn Low Dioratos Fumd Dftarad only 15 lund s walh 3 Trund dlmds' sirochue, b defad i the nibes of B

PRACE Beemepda L 5. Lows Duration Fund Tmeastment Trusts Agsocabon, Jugas, of o fnds wath 2 amelar sTuctoe m any o

PIMCD Emargmg backots Bond Fusd LITR pnEchon

PR Emerging bisrkats Bord Fusd (Yan-Had ged)
| PEMDD) Emanging bartots Bored Fund (1

PAACE) Eure Totsd Risturn Fund Liftered to rets] imesions o Jspan by way of public offenng hiomgh 3 detboial &
| PR Raal Retun Fund Japan, and may be ofienad 1o other swastors a1 e discrabion of tha Manager
| TR ot Tomm Swategy™ TifFen i Lo FeRal 11951003 0 Japan Dy Wy 0f PUbIIC cRTenng 1000 @ Bistibetor waior 8
sl hredlmg coenguany in Jagen, and meny b ollénsd 1o other invastons al the dudreton
of the Managa
i PR Ernergg Vdartivts Bond Fusd (M) Drfarisd oaby 1o other Funds 1 Serve a2 unddrlying nvastment wehedes o such Funds

® ite ST el S UER anwrr e POCE Sioor o Soisrgy e e Soad b b ety et 0 i o/ Ve~ rerwt e, el r Bl o ot Srreed® Doy doenest Siw ov [ e o 88 o el et i asiy oSt et

Linits of the: FIMCO Euro Todal Rebam Fund, PIMOO Real Retem Fund, and AUD, JFY, and USD Classes of PIMCO Short-Tem Stnategy have been regrstened under the
Finandial instruments ard Bachange Law of Japan. Unets of each of the remasning Funds and the | (IFY) @nd J (USD) Chawses of PIMGCO Shor-Term Stratedgy have nat
been and are not aimentdy axpected (o be regrnered under e Anandal nstruments and Exchangs Law of Japan . Accordingly, sich Units of these Funds may not be,
directly or indirectly, offered in Japan o to anyresident in Lapan, except in compliance with apglicable lapanese Laws and regulations

2 SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES

The fellowing Is & summary of signifcant aooouting polces consistently foll cwned by the Trust in e preparabion of it Anandal statements in confonmity wish
acoounting prindphes generally soephed in the United States of America (TU.5 GAAPT). Each Fundis treated as an investment compeanry under the reporfing
reduiremnents of U S GAAF The preparation of frundal Sustements i dcoordance with LS. GAAP féduites Management i make e50mates and Ssumgtions that
attect the reported mounts of assets and lisbilities and dedodure of contingent et and lialdiities an te date of the Bnancal Matements and the reported amoonty
aof ingreases and demeases in net assats from operations during the reporting period Achual results could differ from those estimates

i) Undedylng Fasd The Trustee and the Manager may apply dl or a portion of the assets of PIMCO Emenging Markets Bond Fund (ITF), PIMCO Emenging Markets
EBond Fund (¥ en-Hedged), and P00 Emenging Markets Bond Fund Il (each referred to herein as a "fund of Funds™ or the " Acquinng Fund ™, which invests in ofher
Funids) 1o the retpdctive cradit of the FIMOO Emerging Marcets Bond Fund (M) rederred to hetein &5 30 "Undirhang Fund™ of the ~Acquired Fund”). Any dsets o
apptied well be Beld in fuch Acquired Fund 35 if recepesd dinectly. Where Jesets are 5o apglied, the Acquired Fund will recond e Hue of wning 19 the rdlevant Adquinng
Fund af the isaue price per unit of such units andwill repurchase sach units at the repuarchiase price per unat of such units at fie Bme of repurchase

b Secoritien Transactions and Investment lcome Securities Yansactions are recorded a5 of the frade date for financidl reporting purposes. Sequnties purchased of
ol oo i w450 of delirgechaidwiry barsid mury be Sefed biyond  standand settdement period Sor the secuiey aftir te trde dane. Realized gand. and kg
from secarities sobd ae recorded on the identified st basis. Dividend income |5 recorded on e ex-dividend date, except certain dividends from forsign seaenties
where the ex-dhidend date may have passed which are recorded a5 soon & a Fund is Infrmed of the ex-dhidend date Interestincome, adusted for the acgetion of
discounts and smortization of prermiumms, i reconded on the aocrual bases fom settlernent date, with The exception of securiBes with 2 fonvand waning effective date,
where interest inoome i3 seconded on the aconsal basis from etfecive date. For comvertible sequnities, premiunms amributable to the conversion featuee ane not
amortized Estimated tax lighiites on certan forsgn seaarities ave recorded on an aooual bass and are reflected & components of interestincome or net changs in
unrealized apprediation (depredation) an investments on the Statements of Operations, & appropriate. Tax liabilities reafiped as 3 resull of sudh Sedarity sales are
refiected 35 & component of nel seakzed gan (oss) on investmenis on the Statements of Operations. Paydown gains and kisses on mongagereaned and other aset-
backed seourithes; if any, ane recorded 25 components of inferest income on the Statemsnts of Operations

Ervenil Baperd | Mg 57, 2008 10
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[reltat ctligations may be placed on non-asooual status and related interest
imcceme iy b reduced by ceasng qurment acaals and weiting off interest
receidide when the collection of Jl or 3 porticn of interest has become
doukitful based on consistently appiied procedures. A debd obligagion is
femicved fom non-SoTual s when the Baue netumes iNteres paments
of whren colectability of interest ks probable

(e} Cah and Faredgn Cusrency The financal statemnents of each fund are
presented ysing the cumency of the primany economic erinonment in which it
Operdties (Theé “Tumctongl cumency™)

The murkced values of fofeign sequnes, qumency hobdngs and other Fssets
and kabihties are ramdated ino each Fund's funcional arrendy bised on the
aurent exchange rates each business day. Purchases and sales of sequnites
and inome and expense iters denominated in foreign armendes, if any, ae
translaned into &ach Fundls respectn: mcsonal currency a8 e exchange
8 in eedt on the Irindacon dite, The Funds do nod sepanatdy repon the
iffects of changes in foreign exchange rates from duanges in markel prioss on
securities held Such changes are induded in netreadized and net changes in
wnrealized gaEn o lorss dom mvestments cn the Statements of Operations

The: Fumnds. may imeedt in Boreign cumenicy denominatid securities and may
engage in foreign asTency ransachons either on a spat (Cash) basis at the
rae presaling in the cumency exchangs marker at the dme of trough a
forey & foreign amrency contract Realized foreign exchange gains or losses
ansng o Sales of Spaot Aofeign Cusmendles, Qamendy Garys of kisks reailed
betigeen e rade and seement Gates on SeuiBes Marsacions and the
difference batween e recorded amounts of dvidends, interest, and foreign
wathholding tioes and the hunchonal qurendy equivalent of the smounts
actuaity neosved of paid are induded in net realized gain of bess o fardgn
CuMeny IranSacions on the Statements of Operations. Met unsedized foreion
exchange gams and Bosses anising from changes in foreign exdhange rates on
foreign cenominated assets and Babiltes other than imesiments in seomites
hebdd an the endd of the repdrtng pencd ane imduded in et changs in
umredlized appreciation cr depredation on foreign qumendy assets and
Fatalives on Wi Statements of Operadons

Theee Mt Aissel Value ("NAV™) 2nd total retures of cenain funds (or Clayses
thereol, & applicable) are presented in the ourrency for which the NaY is
reported (She “NAY qimency™) as detaled in each Fund'’s Offering
Memceandum (the "Offering Mamocandum™). For the purposes of the
preseniation of the MAY and the todal retum in the NAY qumency, the
beginning and ending NANS are cofmverted using the period bignaing and
engding exchange rabes, respectivedy, and distribetions are comverted wing the
exchange rate at the fme of the dstribution: See the following tatde for the
MAN currency and Rincional qurendy of eadh nespective Fund:

Furmrsornl
Fard e WAV furrerey Koy
FIMACE] Bermueta Fot g oo Daration Fund Japanssa yan 15 dallar
FINECE] Bermnds 1 5. Lows Duraion Fund Japaniga yan WS dallar
| AN Emergeg Marka: ond Fund LITTFI Japansa yen U5 dollar
| AMCD Emerpng Madie Bond Fund ) U5 dollan W5, dallar
« iED
| PIMCD Emargesg Markae Bond Fund (TesHedeeh | Japarssa yn 5. dollar
| FINED Emergeg Marka Bosd Fund i g pan U5, dctr
= JBR]
& J[H
*  JINA
& MK
] J TR
& J AR
PIMCD] Fnto Tesad Hesors Furd Ero _| ke

] Frrsttoond
FunalCums: WAN Currangy s
PAUCE} Ha Pisnn Fuond U5 dollsr U5 delar
FRIOD Stoit Term Soramgy
= AlD Fasirsin doly US dodee
o JUM Japanase yn 5. dodee
= JEm Jipan s yan U5 dole
. Y Japanesa yn US dodler
= ED LS doller L5 dolle

{d) Malticless Operatiens. Each Clacs of & Fund offered by the Tnasthas
rights bo the assets of the Fund equal to that of other Clastes of the same
Fund, except for gpedfic assets and oains and losses designated to a Class
relaing b0 curency hidging operations. Inoome, non-Class spedfic mpene,
anvd non-Class speafic redized and unrealized capital gains and bosses are

Al ccated to each Class of wnits based on She relathee net aveets of each Cass
of the respective Fund Class sped B0 expenses. aarenty induwde
management, advaory, adminisratee and demnbubon fees, whene agpboatde

{u) Distribaution Pelicy The fofowing table shows the antidpated fequency
of disributions for sach Fund. Distributions fom: each Fund may be dedaned

and distributed o Unitholders cnly upon the authorization of the Manager,
which authorization may be wittheld at the Managers dsaetion

PN E e Tetal Ranmn Fund
Daalured sred Peid Monthly:
FALACED Erveat g Wiarkats Bend Fand LITE)
PN E e gung M rlopts Bond Fond [Yin Hadgad)
P Emarging Markets Bond Fund |
MO Short-Tam Siraiegy

= JUM

- J RS
Daclured and Pyid Quartory
MG Barrrnnda Foseign Low Durstvon Fend
PN Barroeda U5 Losw Duraton Furd
Declared and Poid Annually
FIMCT) Fand Hatem Fund
PANAC) Shsri-Tiam Sire ey

= Ad
- I
= G0

The Murager doss mit mepect to declute distributies wits resgect bo thin

Fund |or Clunses theenol, if upphe iblel, But may. inite dise retson, declare ard
ey & viviburtions to tha Usitheld imis.

AMCD Emarging Marksts Bond Fond M)

Distribunions, it any will generaly be made from the relevant Fund's (or
Classs, if applicable) nat mvestment income. In addition, the Manager may
apthorize the pagment of net realised capital gans avalable for dsmbution
acdiional dismbutions may ke dedared & the Manager deems appeopriane
Distributions paidwith respedt to any Fund {or Clats thereof, if applicable)
will reduce the NAV of sudh Fund {or Class thereof, if applicable). At the
decretion of the Unitholders, cish diswibutions from 4 Fund (or Class thefedl,
it applicabde) may either be reinvested in additiona wnits of 2 Fund {or Class
thereod, 2 applicatde) or paid 10a Unitholder = cash Cath payments vall be
paid i the NAY currency of the Fund. Each Fund {or Class therec!, if

3ppd catie) may declare farther desibations if considensd neessany in ofde

Ervenil Baperd | My 57, 2008 1

156/352



Notes to Financial Statements

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

lo maintain a reasonable eyl of distributions for a Rend (or Class thereof, if
applicable) In the event that these is inadequate neg income and net reaiped
capital gaens o pay a distribution of a Fund (or Class thereod, if applicable)
requined by the Offering Memorandum, the Manager may pay a distribuson
cortising of & postion of the cigatal of sich Rand (or Class thenea, i
applicable)  Destributions not ooll ected within sé years from their due date
will Lapge andwall accae 1o the benefit of the rélevant Rand (or Class thereod,
if applicablie)

1] Neww Accounting Pronguncements in March 2016, the Financial
Acoountng Standards Board ("FASE") isused an Accounting Standands
Update CASUT), A% 2016-05, which provides guidance refated to the
irmgact of dherivative CONTACT Novations on certan nelamonships under
Acoounting Standaeds Codfication Toplc (TASCTY 815 The ASLH s effective
for annusl pericds begnning atter December 15, 2017, and interim period
within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018 The Runds have
aoopted e AL, The implementation of te ASLHEE not have an impect o
amy Fund's finandal statements

In Aurgust 2016, the FASH issued an ASUL ASLN2016-1 5, which amends ASC
230 o clanfy gaidandce on the dassification of certan Cash receipts and cash
payments on the Staterment of Cath Aows. The ASU s effectiee for annial
perinds beginning after December 15, 2015, and interim periods beginning
after Dederrber 15, 2019 The Funds have adopted the ASU The
implementation of te ASU dd not have an impad on any Fund's financd
shatements

In Mgrwernber 2006, te FASE maued an ASLL ASU 2006-18, which amends
ASC T30 1o pecedde quidance on the dassifcaton and presentation of
changes in restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents on the Statement of
Cash Bows. The ASU s effectve for annusd periods Begnning after Dedembes
15, 2018, and interim periods beginning after Decercber 15, 20019 The Ffunds
have adopred the ASU. The implementation of the ASU did nod have an
ienpact on ary Fund's finandal statemenis

In August 2008, ®e FASE issued an ASLL ASL 201 E-53, which amends A5C
20 to moaddy the disdosure requirements on fair valoe measurements The
AL is eflective Tor annual periods begnang afer December §5, 2019, and
interim peiods wathin thote arnud peniods. The implementation of the ASU
remavies of modfes cenain dsdocune requirements AR this time,
management has eected to early adopt the A5U and the chamges ane
imcorponated in the finendia statements

3 INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS

1n) lnvestsent Valuntion Policies The price of a Fund’s units is bied on
the Fund's MAY The MAV of 3 fund, or each of its Classes, a5 applicable, is
determined by dividing the total value of portholio invesnents and ofher
assets anbatable o that Fund or Class, less any Babilithes, by the otal
numbet of units cutstanding of that Fund o Qlass. On each Fund's Dealing
Diary (s desiribed in e cuerenit Cferding Memoranduem of the Trusg),

Fian units are onchirgeity valued a5 of the doss of reguar rading on the Hew
Toek Stock Exchange ("NTSE Close ™) information that becomes known fo
the Fumds or their agents afier the time a3 of which MaY has been caloulated
o & pirticuld dinywall not generally be ubed (o rewodctively adust the price
of 3 sequrity o the MAY detesnined earfier that day Each Fund reserves the
right to charge e time 55 abwhich its NAY is caladated if the Fund dodes
eling

Fiorr puwpecrses of caboulating @ MAY, portfolio sequrities and other assels for
wihich market quobes are readly available are valsed at marketvalue, Market
walue is generally desermined on he basis of affiaul dosng prioss or fe Ll

reported sales prices, of if no sl e reported, based on quotes obilained
froen established market makers of prices (ndudeng evalnated prices) spplied
by the Fumnds” apgwoved pridng serices, quotation reporting gysteens and
other thind-party sounces {hogether, * Pricng Senrices”) The Funds will
rrorendlly wse pricing dia hor dormestic equiry seduities reosived shortly alter
the MY4E Close and do not nommaily taloe into aomunt racing, dearances of
setlements shat take place after thie NrSE Close. I market vialue pridng is
wied, & foreign (non-LLS) edquity security Traded on 3 Toreign exchangs of on
e than one exchange b oypecally valued using pricing informaton from the
enchange conzidered by the Manager to be the primary echange. A foreign
non-105 ) equity Security will be valued &5 of the dose of (rading on the
foreign exchinge, of this NYSE Cloge, if the NYSE Close coours before the end
of trading on the foreign exchange. Domestic and foreign (non-1 5 ) fxed
i seaafities, mon-tadhiinge raded defvaies, snd squity oplions ane
norrnally walued on the bt of quotes oblained from beoker and dealens o
Pricing Senioes using data refleding the earfier dosing of the prindpal
markets for those securities. Prices obtained from Pridng Seraces may be
barsed on, among oter things, infoemation provded by marbel makers o
estimares of marker values obaaned from yield data relating to investments o
seumities with smilar dharactermstics. Certain fived income: Sequrities
prechated o B Gelayec-delivery Bursls are manked 1o market daly eatl
Letderment at the iofwiand sertement dale Ex I|.'1‘-.}-_--‘.'.1|1‘|1 oplice, exepl
equity options, futures and options on fistures, are valued at the seifement
pefice: detirmined by the relevant eohinge Swap dgresments st vilued on
the basis of bid quotes obtained from brobers and dealers of marker-based
prices suppied by Pricing Services or other pridng sources. A Fund's
imvistmenits in open-end management investmint companies, odher than
exnchamge-raded fundk CETR™), ane valsed an the Navs of sudh nvesments
Open-end management invesiment coempanies may ndude atfliated fnds

3 foseign (non=L 53 equity security’s value has materiafly changed after the
dose of the senwity’s primany edchangs of prngpal market but before the
WYSE Close, the sequriny may be valued a1 far value based on procecurnes.
established and spproved by the Manager Foreign (non U 5 Jequity
desutithes, that do mol trade when e NYSE i3 open ane 380 wiheed 51 far
value, With hesped] Il'n‘P:.‘_:l (nan-L 5 ) eqaity dequmies, 4 Fund may
determine the fai value of investments based on infoamation prosdded by
Pricing Sennced anvd other Shind-pasty vendors, which may recomrrmesnd far
vakie or adustments with reference 1o other securities, indices or Jssets In
consicerng whether £3r valua®on is required and in determrining fae

vatlues, & Fund iy, among olher things, crsder Sgnficant events (which
may be considensd 1o indude changes in the value of U5 seounities of
seaqarides indioes) that oo ter the dose of the relevant market snd befiee
the MY5E Olose: A Fund may uifize modeing tools provided by thind-party
weridors v denermine Tair values of foreign non-105 ) sequiBes. For thess
purposes, any movement in the appficable referemoe mndex or instnament

(" zero Irigger =) between the earfer doge of the apphcable forsign market
avd the NYSE Clote mury be deemed 1o be & sgnificant event, prompiting the
appdication of the pridng model (effectivedy resulting in daily tar

valuations) Foregn exchanges may pemal iradng in foreign (non -1 5 )
iy Securities on days when the Trest is fot open Tor business, which may
result i @ Fund’s portfolio invesimenis being affectedwhen Unitholders are
unatde to buy of sell units

Senior secured oatng rate loand for which an acive secondary market edsn
1 & redtable degree will be valued an the mean of the last avalable bidtk
porfies i thee muarket for moch foare, a5 peovided by 3 Pridmng Serve Senbor
seaured Boating rate koans for which an active secondary market doet not
edat 1o a religde devree will be valued an fair value, which is interded 1o
appioedmate market value. Invaluing a senios seured floating rabe boan at
fair value, the Tactors considered may indude, but are not lmited to, the
Tollcwinng (3 e creditcrthingss of the Dodrower and any intermediate
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participants, (b she terme of the foan, {2) recent prices in the market for
similar loans, if any, and (b recent prces in the market for insrumenss of
similar quality, rate, period il next intefest rate resat and maturity

Imepstmens valued i qurendes ather than the funchional aameny

of & Fund ane comverted o the funchonal currendy using exhangs rates
crbagmed from Fricing Serdces. A5.a result, the valise of sudh imestments and,
im B, the MAY of the Amid's wnits may be atiected by changes in the waloe
al urendes in retabon 10 the unconsl qurency. The value of iInestments
traded in foreign matkets or denominated in aurrendes other than

the fumctional osmenscy may be affected significanthy an a day that the Trist is
niot open fof busness. As areudl, to the exent that a fund holds Reeign
{noe-U S ) investments, e valee of those vestments may change at times
when woi cannaot purchase, redesm of exnchange units and te value of such
irrvestments will be reflecied in the Fund's next caladaned Nay

Irroebarnen s Toe which rurcdt quotes of magke] based valuations e nat
readly ailatle e valued at far vdue a5 determined in good faith by

e Muanager of perions acting a1 their direction. The Minager has adopted
e tiods dor valuing secuides and ofher a55ets in deoemstances where
markel quites ane ot readdy avallable, v has debegated to PIMCO the
responsiblity for applying the fair valuation methads. In the ewent hat market
quites of marke] based valuatons ane mof readly pegdable, snd the wun ]
of It cann ol be vaiued pursuant (0.4 Mansger appdovd valligtion
method, the value of the security or 3sset will be determined in good faith by
the Valuamion Commities. Market quotes &fe congidered not readily valabie
in cinoumes? an oes where thene is an absence of qunrentor refiable market-
based data (e g, Trade information, bidfask information, indcative market
quiotations (" Enober Quates ™), Fridng Sendces” prices), induding whee
events cour after te dose of the rebevant market, but prior 10 the NisE
Close, that materially atfect the walues of the Fund's seuities or aels in
addition, market quotes are considered not readily available when, dee to
exvracrdnany draims Lances, (he enchanges of markers on which the

secur ies rade do nof open for trading for the entire day and no other
market praces are avalatde The Manager bs responsible for monitoring
sigrificant ewents Tt moy materially stec e values of the Furd's secusitied
of assets and for determinineg whether the value of the applicable sequnies or
asgits should be resvaliated in light of such significant events.

When  Rund wses M vilastion 1o delerming Se vilue of 8 poetiolio sty
o gthver aseet for purposes of calaulating its MAY, gach investments will not
e priced on whe basls of quotes from the primany markoet in which they are
trached, bl rather mgy be priced by anather method that Se Manager o
persodns acting 21 thelr direction Believe reflects farvalue Fair valuation may
require subjective determinasons about the value of 2 seourity. While

the Trust's policy is intended o result in 3 caoulation of a Fund's HAV that
Tairy refects caamny vaiipss ot of the tme of pricing e Trust CAneol ensine
that fair values determined by the Manager or persons acting at thesr
diraction wiowkd acosrately reflect Hee puice that a Fund aould obtain for 2
sscurity i Hwoere 1o dispose of that seamity b5 of the e of pridng (P
irvstanice, in a foroed or dsmessed saled The prices used by a Fund may ditfer
frorm This walue that would be realiaed if e seosiBes were sobd

) Fair Valwe Hierarchy |5 GAAR disoribes Tar value a5 the price thil

a Fundwiould recsive to sell an aset or pay to rarsfer 3 Babeity in an onderty
transaction between market parddpants at the measarement date. It
eutablishes a fair walue hierardsy tal paoditoes. inputs i valuation methods
and requines dacosure of the S valiee hisrandy, separately foreach maor
canegory of ssets snd habiltes, tat segreganes fair value measuremenis into
beseds, (Lewed 1, 2, 06 3) The inputs o methwodlogy used for valuing securnties
are rob mecestanly s indcason of the duks maociated with inesting in Siose
seurities Lewels §, 2, and 3 of she fair value hierardey are defined as follows:

= Leved 1—Cmated prices in adive markets or exchanges for identical asiels
ad] Rt

* Level 7—Significant other obsenvable inputs, which may indude, b are
il lirmited bo, quited prices for sirrdlar assets or Babilites i markets that are
active, quoted prices for identical or simiar 3asets or Rabalitles in markets thar
A NOCacive, Inputs ather than quoted prioes that ae obserdable for the
asals of liabilities (sudh & inferest rates, yield ainves, wolatlifes, prepayment
A, s Seventiel, oredt Akl and dedault rates) of osher market
cofroborated inputs

= Lol 3==Significant uncbsenvabile inputs based on e bestinformation
Bvalatle i the droumELances, 10 e extent oldenvabiz MO A nol

ol gble, wiech may indude asmpbions mide by the Manager of perions
acting at their direction that are wsed in determining the fair value of
It

In acoordance with the requirements of US GAAP, the amounits of ransfers
i amd ouf of Level 3, if material, are disdoted in the Nodes to Schedule of
Ivvestments for eadh respective Fuand

For fair valuatkons using sionficant unobsenyable inpuls, LS, GAAR fequires
1o chsdiose ransders into and out of Lewel 3 of the T value hieraechy and
purchiases and isses of Level 3 assets and Babilities during the pericd
AkRlonally, LS, GuAP reguies quantitstve informuation regardng the
wgnihicany unobdervatde infuts uied in the determination o Tar value of
asels of liabikes categonized as Level 3 in the fair valee Rerardwy. in
sccordance with e requinements of U5, GAAR, & 1ar vilue histardny. and it
material, details of significant unobsenable inputs, have been induded in the
hobes 10 Schiedue of Irvestments for each respecive Fund

{e} Valuntion Techaiques and the Fair Valee Hiemichy

Lewed 1 and Level Z trading sssats and tiading labilities, ot lair value The
valuation methods for “lechriques™) and dgnificant inputs used in
cheteamrinng the i values of PTG S minbes oF olivwer gisers and habdites
categorized as Level | and Level 2 of the fair value hieranchy are a3 follows:

Fooed imoome SecuwriBes nduding oorporate, comvertibe and muniapal bonds
avd notes, US govemiment agendes, U S, meauny obligations, soversion
{ssaess, bank |oand, coreentible predferred sequrities and mon-LES. bonds ane
normaly walued on e basis of quobes obtained from brokers and dealers oo
Pricing Servioes that wie broker-dealer quotbons, reported wades of
valuation estimates from ther intem.al pricing modets, The Fricing Senvices
Ingemal modes use inputs that ane obaervable such s issuer detalls, intersst
ranes, yisld curves, prepayment speeds, oredit riskstpaeach, default rates and
quated prices for similar asets. Sevurithes that use simllar valation
techriguees and inpuls 35 desabed above are categorized as Level 7 of the
fair value hierandy

Fiooted] ieacinimo: Scun B purdh ased o 3 delaryed-diiwry bases of 25 3
repurchase commitment in a sale-buyhadk ransacion are marked 1o markes
dabyuntd setfement at the forward settiement daté and are categonied o
Lewvel 2 of the falr value hierarchy

Wortgageselated and ssset-backed sequnifies e pardly issed as wparate
tranchis, of dianses, of seomities within exd deal. These searities o also
norrnally walued by Pricing Sensces fat e broker-deser quatations,
regorted trades of valuaton estimates fom ther intema pridng modets. The
pricing maodels for these securities wsually condider tranche Jevel atiribules,
cumrent manker daks, estimated cash fiows and market-based yield greads for
each trande, and inooporane desl collatersl performance, a5 avallable
Mortgagesalated and assetbadied securithes that use similar valuason
technigatt and inguis &8 detonled Sbove e cabbgofied 2% Level 7 of the
air vl Bierarchy
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Cornmaon sbodks, ETFs, suchanige-traded nates and finandal derivative
imsEruments, sudh & futures conwacts, rights and wamants, of ophons oh
fusures that are raded on 3 national securites sachange, are stated at the
farst reported sae or settlement price on the day of valueation. To the extent
1heie sequnities ane Sctively tracked and viluation adustments are nalapplied,
they e categoeized a5 Level | of the fair value hierardy

Imeestments v alued (denominated) in curendes ather than the funcBonal
curmency of 3 Fund e cometed 1 the luncomal OUFTENCY NG exchange
rates (oumency spot and Sonward rates) obtained from Priceg Services. As a
result, the NAY of 2 Fund’s umits may be affecied by changes in the value of
qurte e i ielation 1o the fundional curmency. The walue of sedunbies iraded
In foresign markets or denominated in cumendes other than the funciona
currency may be affected dgnificantly on a day that the Trustis not open fo
business. Valuation adustments may be applied o certain SeouniBes that ane
solely waded on a foreign exchandge 1o sooour fof the marke? movemen(
biebwein the dose of the foreign market and the N SE Close. These seumities
are valued using Pridng Sereices that consider the cormela®on of the trading
pranterms of the foreign seaurity 30 Bve inmradry wadng in the L5, marden; for
irvestments. Sequrities using these valuation adiasiments e Categorized as
Ll 7 0 thee Lar value feeranchy. Prefermed secunBel and other equabes
Iraddied o inacve markets.of valued by reference 1o similar insruments ane
alsy categorized as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Equity-finked seqwities are valued by referending the last reported sale or
wiMlermenl price of e linked referendced squity on e I',|.1:|";_I| waluaon
Foreign exchange adusiments. are applied o the (a5t reported price (o
convert the linked equty™s tradng currendy to the contract's satilng cumenoy
Thiete Ervestments are cabeqorized 25 Level 2 of the Rair value hierandhy

Imeettments in regittened open-end Frvestment compuanies (oter than ETFS)
will be valued based upon the MAVS of sudh inves tments and are categuized
a5 Lol 1 o she Tair value hisranchy, Inveitmenss in unrsgistened open-end
Irvestment companies will b cabalated based upon the Navs of such
Irreestments and are considered Level | peovided that Se NAVS ane
whesreable, cabaulated daby and are the value atwhich both purchases and
s wall b conducted

Equity eschange-raded options and over the counter fnandal dervatve
instruments, sudh & tonsand foneign cumency contracts and options @nvady,
duive their value from undertying assel prices, indices, reference rates, and
atfer inputs of 3 combinaton of hese tacmors. These Contracts sne nommally
valued on the basis of quotes obiained from a2 quotation reporting system
eslabhabed marked makar of Prscing Senaces (nomaly determined a5 of the
NYSE Chorg). Depending on e product and the terre of e ransaction,
finanda derivative insmaments can bevalued by Pridng Senices using a
sefied of techinkues, induding dmislytion padng modds The pridng models
uie inputs than ane obrerved from adively quatied markets such 5 quoted
perices, issuer detalls, imdices, bidiak spreads, mberest rates, impled
wilatiities, yield cunves, dividends and exchange rates. Finand al denvae
imssruments that use Similar valuaton tediniques and inputs & desribed
above: are categorized as Level 2 of the Talr value Merasdey

Cuntrally deared swagd and ot the counfér svaps difive thisir value from
undertying asset prces, indoes, reference rates, and oshes inputs or 3
comianation of tese factors. They are valised wiing 2 bepker-cealer bad
quotation of on market-hated prces provided by Pricing Sendces. (nonmally
determined as of the NYSE dose). Centrally deared swaps and over the
COUTEr Sendpes Can be valued by Fricng Serdces wing & series of technigues,
induding smulation pricng models The pridng modals mayuse inputs Sat
are olrienatd Trom dcively quated markets sudh 8 The dvermight ndex Swip
e (TOIT) London nterbank Cifiened Rate (TLIECRT) forward fate, infenest

rates, yiehd curves and cedi jpeeads. These seourities are categonized 25
Level 2 of the fair vilue histachy

Lewel 3 trading assets and trnding Finbilities, ad bair value Vher o fir
valuathon methad is spplied by the Manager Sat uses Sgnificant
tsnobsenable inputs, irvestments will be priced by 3 method tat

the Manager of persors acsng at thesr direction believe refleas far value and
are categoized as Leved 3 of the fai value hierarchy. The valuasion
techniques and wagn alcant sheifs usesd in chetermmen the Tar vabues of
portfolio assels and Rabilities categorized a5 Level 3 of the fairvalue hisrandy
are g folows:

Py pebcing prcedhunes 420 e base pide of B T incoime S0ty and
dalequently sdust the prce proportion sy Lo make value changes of § pre-
determined sequnty deermed 1o be comparable in doration, generallya L%
Tredgury oF stner sigh note bired on counlry of isdeande. The bade phce iy
e brober-dealer quote, aniaaion price, of an inemal value 5% dermeed by
analysis of market dafa The base price of the security may be reseton a
peviodic burds based on the aailablity of markel data and prodedunss
Sppioved by the Valuaton Commitiee. Sgnificant changes in the
tunobaenable inputs of the proey pricing peodess (thi base prios) would resdt
in direct and proportional changes in the $air value of the teaurity These
Gisnies are Caleqoried as Lewel 3 of the Rar valus histardhy,

i third-party evaluated vendor pricig 5 mot avaflable o not deemed 10 be
incicative of fair vabe, the Manager may et to obtain Broker Quotes
direcsy from the brober-deaber or passed through from a thind-party vendor
i thee event that fakr walie fs barsed wpon 8 single sousced Broker Qudle,
thiesa securibies, are categonized as bevel 3 of the fair value hierarchy Broke
Qe e Typically reeved from 5 ablished market particpants. Although
indeperigently received, the Manager doss ol Rt S anipanendy 1 view
thie underking inguts which support the market quotation. Sgnificant
changes in the Broker Guote would have dinect and proporfional change in
the fair valize of the seomity

Shaor-bermn et instrumenis (such as commerdial paper) having a remaining
maturity of 60 days of less may be valued at amortized cost, sobong as the
amcrtized ot value of such shom-tenm debd srmuments is sppradamabely the
same a5 e fair value of the instrument as determined without the e of
amartized cost valuation. These sscurilies are cateqorized 2 Lewd I or Lewd
3 of the tar value hisrandty dependng on the sourae of the base pice

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

in} Delayed-Delivery Transachons Certzn Funds may purchase or sl
it on & delaysch delivery badis. Thiese ransadtions ivolve a
codrrnimment by @ Fund to pundhase o sell seqinibes for 3 predetemmined price
o yield, wath payment and defreeny taking place beyond the qistomany
setement period When delayed-delivery fransactions are culstanding

& Fund wall designate of recen as collatenal liquid Eoets in g amolr
sfficient to meet the puschade price oo regpecive obligafions. When
pemchasing a sequrity on a delaged-delvery basis, a Fund assumes the rights
and gk af ownership of the sequnty, indudng the ik of prce and yeld
fluchzations, and takes sudh fuctuadons inbo acoount when determining its
HAY A Fund may dispote of o rendgatiate 3 delaped-delivery traracion
et il 5 enteded indo, which iy el f an g redlided N of Barst. When

& Fund has soid @ sequriny on 3 delayed-delivery basis, the Fend doss mot
participate in future gains and kosses with resped bo the seawity

b} Inflation-Indeced Bomda Cortim Funds muy imeedl ininfatonandeed
bondk inflation-ndexed bonds are fooed inoome seqriies whose prinopa
vahe b periodially adusted by the rate of infation. The interest rate on
thiesie bonads is generaly fced atistuance 3t rate Jower than typical bonds
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Crver thie life of an infladon-indeced bond, however, interest will be paid
Brased o a prancipel value, wihich is adusted fof inflation  Any ingreass o
decrease in the pindpa amount of an Enflation-indeed bond will be induded
as interest income on the Statements of Operations, ewven thowgh imvestors do
G0 receis Their frinapal uniil ity H-:f.arﬁ-_r.-l of e {uigm! B
pincipal upon maturity (35 afusted for nflation) s guaranbesd in the case of
L5, THRS. For bonds that donotprovide a similar quarantes, She adustied
principal valie of the bond repasd a8 maburity may be bets han he aigingl
perincipal

{¢i Lean Paricipatiens, Assig k& and Onginations (=rtan funds may
ienedt N ciibct debl instrumen s whech afe imlenedts m amounts owed 1o
lenders of lending syndicates by corporate, governmental, of other bomowers
A Fund's svestments in boans maybein the form of partidpations in inans or
assigaments of all or 2 portion of loans from third partees or imvestments in o
enicEmations of Ioans Dy e Fund A boan is often ademnts tered by & benk o
ather nanda mshtution (the "lendsr”) that acts a5 agent for all hiolders. The
agent administers the temms of the Boan, a5 specfiedin te loan agreement

A, Fuid vy ifrves in ol liphe senies of srandhies of & loan, which may R
wanging terme and camy different assodated isks. When a Fund purch ses
assignments Srom lendiers it aoquires dred rights agaenst the bormowers of the
baans: Traese boans gy ndude partidpations in bridge loar, whidh e loans
taken cut by bormowers for 3 thodt period (ypecally bess than one year)
pending amangement of more permanent Bnanan g through, ior ecample, the
isuande of bonds, frequently high yisld bonds issued for the purpose of
AOOQUIETONS

Thie bypes of Boans. and related investments in which the Funids may imvest
indudie, among cthers, senior leans, ubondnated koo (nduding seoond
Trem Ivimes, B-Motes and mezzanene loans), whole kans, cormencal resl
estate and other commendal loans and snsctured boans. A Fund may
onigingte loans or Joquire direct interests in haens through pimary loan
dissributdions amdfol m privale Tansaciond. in the cie of subondinated loare,
there may be sgnificant indebledness ranking ahead of the bornower's
obdigaton to the hobder of such a loan, induding in the event of the
orrowner's. insoheency. MeZzanine loans are SypdCilly Sedured by a pledge of
an eqaly interest i e modtgage borrower that owns the real estate rather
thas & interest in 4 mortgage

|ireetmen s of loans ay incucke unhanded lodn commetment, which e
conitraciial ohitgations for funding Ununded loan commements may induds
revotving qedit fadlites, which may obligate 2 Fund to supply add donal cash
1o thee Eirower on déemand. Unifurcid boan commilments represent a st
obligasion in full, even hough 2 percentage of the committed amount may
ol b utdi zed By Bhe booroser ‘When invesiing in 4 lean partaapation,

a Fund burs Hee right to meveive payments of princpal, interest and any fees to
wihech it i enstied onby froen the lender sellng the baan agresment and only
upon meceipt of payments by the lender from the bomrower. A Fund may
recedve 3 comemitment fee based on the undrawn portion of the underlying
firwer of creit podtion ofa loan. n derlain droamriances, & Fund may e 3
penalty fee upon the prepayment of & loan by 3 bomower. Fees eamed o
pawd are moorded 4% 4 component of nkerest iNCome of iNterest apenie,
respctively, on the Staterments of Operaticns. Unfunded loan conrmitments
are reflected as 8 lablity on the S1atements of Assers and Liabilnies

{di Mortgage-Relaied and Other Aset-Backed Securities Certan funds
iy irveest in morhgage-nelited and other rssel-badeed Sequnities that dnectly
o Enclrecsly represent a partidpation in, of are secured by and payabie from,
foans on real propenty. Morogage-related seoarites are eated from pools of
residential of comimendial morigage boars, induding mortgage loans made by
Lairs aid [0 Ensrmunoas, moetgage bankers, cormmendal bants and
athers. These sequrities prowide a monthly payment which consists of both
inbarest aned princip#. Interest may be determined by &ed or adustable rates

Thee rate of prepayments on underying mortgages will atiect the price and
vidatility of & montage-relaned security, and may have the etiect of
shorlening of extending the eflective duration of the sequrity relative towhat
was antidpated at the Sme of pundhiase. The Smefy payment of prindpal and
Imenes Of cernan maor g fel Sl securities IS guarantesd with the hal fwth
avd ekt of tee U4 Gowernment Pools dreated and guaranbeed by non-
govemenental e, nduding govennmen t-ipaonsonsd corpanations, imay b
supper tied] bry varticans forms of suranoe of quaranbees, Bul there can be fo
FEsUEance that private inurers of guarantors can meet telr obtigations under
the insurance pafdes of guaranites amangements. Many of the risks of
ivstng in mortgage-related seaarites seauned by commencal mongage
laas et the effects of local and ofher eConaomic condiiions on real eirpe
markets, the abiity of tenanis somake lease payments, and the sbiity of a
progarty [0 Jract and fetlin 1enants. Theds soafides miy be e ligad snd
iy exdalbal greater price volatlitg than othér typed of mortgage-relsted or
other asset-badved seounities. Other asset-badked seounes are oreaned from
marry Bypees of assets, indudag butnotlimited 10, aulo [oans, sccounts
recervable, such 35 oredit card receivables and hiospital account recehiabies,
Porne equity knans, student loens, boat laans, mabdle home [oans,
reestional vehide boans, manufadured housing kaans, ainaatt beases,
computer leges and sndcaned hank boans. The Furd may invet in amy beel
of e Capitsl Sructure of an dsues of mortgage-bached of sse Hhacked
seqarnifes, induding the equity or “first loss™ randhe

(o} Collaternlized Morigage Obligatiens ("Ch0n") e debe obligations of a
feal enmty that ane coflateraized by whole mormgage |oans of peivate
miorigage bonds and divided info dasses. CMOs are struchared into mudtiple
s, often refermed to 5 " ranches”, with each dass Dedring 3 different
staned mananny and enbted 1o & dthient sdvedule for payrments of prrdpal
and inberest, induding peepayments. CWOs may be tess Bouid and may exhibit
greaber price wolatlity than other types of momgage-related o sbel-tadced
Leruithes

i Shripped Morigage-Backed Secarities ("5MES) 2re denvative mulh-
dass morigage securities. SMES are usually stnochured with two dasses that
risgerve cithirent proportions af the inbérest and prindpal distibusons on 4
pood of mongage aswets. An SMES will hawe one dass that will receive dl of
the interest (e mlerest-only of "0" dias), while the other dirs will recsie
thie entire principal (e prindpal-only or “PO" dass) Paments received for
¥ are invcluded in interest inoome on the Sarements of Opetatons Becayse
oy prinecipal will be received at the mawrity of an 10, adjusiments ane made
W the cosl of the decurity on 3 monthly Budis untl rransity. Thete
shusrent aee incuded in inberssLincome o the Statements of Qe agoim
Payments. received for PO are treated as reductions to the et and par value
of the Securilies.

{g) Collaternlized Debt Oblignsions ("0 000 ") include Collatenihzed Bond
Gibligations {805 ), Collateralized Losn Obligatons "CLOS™) and other
similary stnachured seamifies CBOs and CLOS are types of asebbacked
st A CEC) s & trust which i badeed by o diverafied pood of fegh sk,
bedpws irvestment grade fied income seourities. A CLO s 3 tnust typacally
collateralized by a pool of [oans, which may indade, among atfiers, domedtic
el forsign senior secured loans, seniior unsetured loans, and asbondinate
corpoeate hoans, incuding loans that may be rated below imvestment grade o
equivalent urrated Joans The risks of an investiment in a C DO depend langely
o thee type of the collateral securities and the dass of the (0O in whidh

& Fund irvests In addton 1o the normel redes assocted wath foed ncome
seqarnifes disarssed elvewhiere in this report and the Funds’ Offering
Memorandum (&g, prepayment fisk, ol rid, Bausding ik, markel risk,
struciural risk, legal nsk and interes) rabe ik (which may be exacedated il
the interest rae payable on a smachured finanding changes tased on
rrulliplés of changes in nberest rabed o imveriely to changs in intinest
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rates)), CBOs, CLCk, and ather € DOs camy additional ks induding, bulnot
it £, (5) thee prsaibdity than dhistributions froem collaterdl sexurities will not
e aderquate bo make interestor other payments, (i) the quality of the
oollateral may dedine in walue or default, () the sk that 3 Fund may imvest
ir CBCs, CLOS, of ofher CDOS that are suboedinate 1o other disses, and ()
the comples: steucture of the sequrity may mot be fully understood at e tdme
ol s rnent and many prodiece disputes with the issuer of unexpectid
iFrestiment results

i) Payment In-Kind Securities Ceriain Funds may ipvest in paymentindond
sauf fes (“FIES™) PIs may give the isauer the opfion at ead interest
pergrreend date of fmak ) MbEnesl PNt N #ther cash andior sdditional
et securities. Those addidonal debt seasides usually hawve the same tams,
ncluding matyrity dates and intefest rates, and asodated ks a3 the
criginal bondt The daly market quotateons of the cnginal bonds may induds
e accnaed interest (rederred 10 a5 8 “dinty price™) and require & pro rata
adustment from the unrealized appredation or deprediation on investments
to interest receivable on the Statements of Assets and Liabiites

(i} Restricted Securities Certam Funcs may hold Frvestments that sre
subgect to begal of coniraciy s restrich ong on retale. Theds tecumies may be
sold privately, but may be required %o be regstered or exempbed from such
regisration et being sodd 0o e pulblic Private placement ssuriies e
-genr-f.‘:ll:,'-j-)u'_u}j-_-;] 1o e pesriched . DVSgcral OF fest ISt innoe Lamen B iy
irwolve Gme-corsuming negotiafions and expences, and prompt sale at an
atoeptabie price may bk ooy o achieve. Redncted imvestmishts held by
the Funds at May 31, 2009, as applcable, are disclosed in the Motes
Schedule of Investments.

{0 Structmred Motes Cermiain Fundh may invest m strucunid mones aod ofher
el aned invSirumen 35, which & priviassly .'Il;l;-_‘{l.j:iﬁ debl oblgatcns in which
the principal andf of inkerest is detemmined by referenice to the performance of
abenchemark assel, macket of interest rane (an Tembieddied indix™), such
sedected sequnities, an index of sequrities of spedfied inferest rates, or the
differentdl performance of mo assels of marbets, sudy a5 indexes refecting
bonds. Structured instnaments may be issued by awporations, induding
Banks, & well & by goverrmental agendes, The e of such stuciured
irvsruments moemally peovice that thelr prindpal andior infersst paymenis e
1o be adjusted upwards or dowemwands (but ordinariby not below zerc) o
refiect changes in the embidded index whie the Snactuned insiruments e
outstamding As 3 result, the interest andfor prindpal peayments that may be
maide on a structured product may vary widely, depending on avariery of
factors, inchading the wolafility of the embedded indiex and the effect of
changes in e emibedded indexon prindpal andior interest payments

ki LS. Gevernmenl Agencies of Government-Sponzored

Exlarprisas Certan Funds mayimaest in sedanities of U S Giemment
Agencies of govemment-sponsored enterprises. U% Govemment seowities
are cblgations of and, in certain cases, gairaniesd by, the U5 Government,
s agendies of msrumentalities. Some U3 Government sequnies, sudh a5
Treasury balls, notes and Donds, and sequribes guarantesd by the Government
Magonal Morigage Association CGNMA™ or "Ginmie Mae"), are wpported
Lay thes tudl taith sned crechin of e U5 Gowsrenent, alisérs, tach a6 thode of
e Fedierall Home Loan Banks, aré sagpaorted by e right of the i to
borrows from the U S Department of the Treasury (the “U 5 Tressury™) and
cifeers, such & thote of the Federal National Momgage Asuod aion (T HaMA™
or “Fannie Mage), are supported by the disoretionary authority of the US
Govemment 0 puzchase the agenoy’s obdgations. U5 Govemnment securities
mray inchadie Teno coupan securisies which do not demmibute inberest on a
urmen? buasks and terd 1o be subject b a greater fsk than interes-paying
securities of similar matunities

Govemment-ralated guaranton {.e., not badved by the &l faith and medin of
the L5 Gowernment) incliade FUMA and the Federal Home Loan Mongags
Corpaoration {"FHLMC® or *Freddie Mac™). FHMA i 2 govemmentsponsored
corporation. FHbA purchases comentional §oe., not insured or guarantesd by
vy Qoreenmnent agendy) residental origages nom a Bt of approved
sellen'senvicers which indude state and federally chartered savings and boan
asodations, muna savings bhanks, cammendal backs and aredit unions and
moipage bankers. Pass-throwgh seaarites Poued by FNMA e guaranieed &
1 timely payment of principal and interest by FNMA, bt are nof baded by
the full faith and cedt of the U 5. Govemment. FHLMC isuses Particpation
Cenificates CFCS"), which are pass-thiowgh senmines, ach representing an
ndnvicked imlerestin 3 pocl of resdensal mangages. FHLMC guarantess The
fimedy payment of interest and Wimate collection of princpal, but FCs are not
Erdchoesdh oy thee el 1tk dnvd credit of the LIS, Gowermimen!

Under the direction of the Federal Housing Finanoe Agency, the Federal
Hational Mortgage Astodagion ("FNMAT) and the Federal Home Loan
Miortgage Corporation {“HHLMC ) have entered into a joint initiatve 1o
disnslO J OOMITON Sesuntaion plathomn Tor B riau rance of & unilonm
miongage-hacked searity (the “Sngle Secuity initiatve ") that digns the
characterestics of FNMA and FHUMC cienBicates. The Singbe Seusity Initiatve
was implesneniid on June 3, 319, and the effects it may have on the market
for ortage-hacked securites ae undertan

Foll-fminig sirategies can be used where a Fund seeks to exiend the
Egaration o sty of a poditon, ech a5 2 TEA secunity on an underying
Fxted, by deoeing out the posiion befone enpiration and opening a new
position with respedt to ssbstantally the same underhing asset with a laker
epiration date. TRA sequrites purdhased or sobd are reflected on the
anements of Assels and Liateliies 55 an asset or Habding, respectivedy

{1 Wihen-lzsned Transmetions Certain Funds moy purchade of Wl securitie
on 3 when-issued basds, These wansactions ne made mndtionaly becaue a
seatity, afthough authonzed. has nod yet ben issued in the

marken Transactions o purchase or el sequnities on 3 when-ssued basis
imyrtve 3 commizment by & Fund 1o purchase or sell these seouriges for a
predetermined price of yield with payment and delivery taking place beyond
he Cued Barieny Setdemend period. A Fund may sell when-iied sedaines
brefore they ane deftvered, which may resultin a realized gain or loss

{m} Bank Obligatians Eank cbigations inwhich a Fund may invest indude
cextificates of deposit, bankers” acceplances, and fixed fime deposits
Certificates of deponl are negonable cerificaies g agant finds
deposited i a commerdial bank for a definite period of ime 2nd eaming a
specified return, Bankers’ soceptances see negosale drafs o bills o
enchandge, nofmally drdwn b 30 iMDOrTEr OF expofie 1o pay for ipeathic
merchandse, which are ®aocepied” by a bank, meaning, in effect, that the
bk uncondtionaly agrees to pary the face vaioe af e Bitument o
maturity  Fxed Sme deposits are bank obfigations payable a1 3 stated
maturity date and bearing interest a1 a fooed rate. Fieed Hme deposits may be
withidrawm on demand by the imvestor, but may be subject to eary

i thdrawcal penalies whoth vary depending spon marke conditiors and the
refmamning maturity of the obligaton

£ BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIOMNS

The folkowing disdodures contan enbormation on the Funds” atality tolend or
borrowy cash of securities bo the extent permitted under e Criflering
Wlesrrcr an churn, whidh may be viesasd 55 bormosang o fimang i) W AVERCTRONS
bry thee Funds. The location of these instruments is described below. For a
detaied description of oredt snd countenpany risks thal cin be dsaodiated
with bomowings and other finandng ransactions, pleate tee Note 7,
pnapal Kiskes
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0] Repurchase Agraements Cortan Funds may engage in repurchass
agreements Unckr the e of 3 ypcal repurdhase agreement

2 Fund purchases an underhying debit obiigation (ool aseral) asbject 1o an
obligation of the seller to repunchase, and a Fund to resell, the obligaton at
an JereEd-upon price and time. IS0 ofen Matuity repundiase Sreement,
there is no pre-detemined reporchase date and the agreement can be
termninated by tie Fund or counterparty a1 any tims: The market vakee of the
onllateral must be equal b or exceed the 028 amount of the repurchase
obligagons, indudng interest. Repurchase agreements, induding acTued
intenesl, are induded on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities. interest
epmed i reconded a5 a compenent of inlenest ncome on e Statements of
Operaion In pemi of incmeied demand for oollaterd, 3 Fund sy pay &
fee fior receipt of coll ateral, which may resull in interest expense to the fund

b} Reverse Repurchaze Agresments Certan Funds may enter mto reverse
repurchase Sgeements. In A reverse repurchase agreement, & Fund delivers a
saurty in eochange for cath o 3 finandd Eatitution, the counterparty, with
A simultaneous agreement Lo repunchase the same or substanSaly the same
Securi by AU an agreed updon pce and date. i e Open malrity revere
repurchase agresment, there is no pre-datemined repurchase date and the
agreement can be termenated by the Fend o counterparty aTamy tine

A Fund is enfithed bo recinst prindipal and intenest payments, i any, made on
the sequriny delivered o the aeunteparty during the tarm of the agreement
Cash recerwed in exchange for secunties delivered plus aazued interest
payments o be made by 3 Fund to counterpartses are reflected & a Habdity
on the Statements of Asets amd Lisblites Wlerest payenents made by & Fund
to counteparfies are reconded a5 3 component of interedt expense on the
Srasernenls of Opesatons. I period of indeased demand Tor tie Seoumity,

& Fuind ey fedenst & fee Bof ude of e Secunity by the counteparty, whidh
may result in intenest inoome: bo a Fund A Fundwill segregate assets
determinied ta be liquid by FIMCO o wall athensise aover 1t abdigations
under reverse repundnace agresments

{c) Sale-Babacks Certan Funds mayenter into finandng ransactions
refermed 1o &5 "sale-buybads” A sale-banvbade finandng ransadion consists
of & sabe of 2 security by & Fund 103 fnandal nsBhution, She Countemary,
with & dmultaneous agreement i repurndhase the same of substantally fe
ST Se0mily ot an agresdupon price and date. A Fund i3 nod entifed 1o
receive prindpal and interest payments, if ay, made on the seaiity sold o
the: copmeparty dunng e e of the agreement The ayeedHapon
proceeds for sequities to be repurchated by a Fund are refledied a5 a liablity
on Bhe Staements of Asets and Liabdines. A Fundwall Pecogmide net indome
represenied by the proe diferential bebween the pnoe decenved for the
ransferred sequrity and the agreed-upon repurchase price This is commonly
federred Yo & the "price drop’. A price drop comsises ol () the horegone inferest
and irflationany income adusments, if any. & Fund woald have othenaise
recetved had she seouity not been sold and (i) the negotiated finandng tems
between 3 Fund and counterparty. Foregone interest and inflationary income
adustmenty, of amy, are reoorded a5 components of inferest ingome on te
Stanements of Operations. Interest paynrents baded upon negotated finangng
terms made by a Fund to counterparties. are recorded 34 3 component of
FiliEedl expeite on the Stmements of Operatond. b penods of incregsed
demand for the sequrity, 3 Fund may receie afee for use of the sequrnity by
the counterparty, which may result in interestincome to a Fund. A Fund will
seqregate assets deterrmined 1o be Bquid by FINKCD or will othensise cover its
obligations under sale-buybade transacions

(i) Shart Sabes Certain Funds may enter ino short sales ransactions. Shon
S dre transacion s inwhich tee Fund Sef a security T IE may ROl cwn
A Fund maymake short sales of secuntes o i) oftset potential dedines in
hong posdtions in simila seauities, () W ingease the Sedbility of te Fund,
(i) far imeetmenil fefurn, (vl 2 pan of a fisk arbitrage strategy. and {) 5
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part of its. cverall portiolio management strategies imvolving the use of
desivative insinaments. When 4 Fund engages in 3 short sale, it may borrow
thee sty sold thiort and deliver it to the countarparty. The Fund will
ordinarily have to pay a fee or premium 1o borrow a sequrity and be cbligated
Wiy respuary B Berndier of the Security sy dividend of Pilenest That accrues on the
sequity during e period of the lpan. Seourities sold in short sale ransadions
aned the dividend o intenest payablie on such securities, it any, are neffedied a3
parabde for shoet sabes on the Statements of Assets and Liabilites. “hort sales
expoee the Fund to fe risk that it wall be required to cover [ts shoet posidon
at & fime when the sty o other ssset has apprediated invalue, s
resulting in Bosses 1 the Fand A short sdle b5 " against the box™ if

thee Fund Bodds in its portiasa or has te night to.aoquere e Uty wld
short, or securifies identical to the sequrity sofd short, at no addifionad cost

A Furd wall B subect 1o sdBnon Fscs o e extend hal it engages in shon
sbess thad ane Aol " gaenst the bt = A Funds less ona shorn sale aould
theoretically be unfimited in cases where the Fund is unabde, for whatever
reason, tocise oul ity short pasition

6 FANANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Solkowarg disdodunes contain anfomation on haw and why the Funds use
finandal dervative insraments and how finandal detivative insumenis
aftfect the Funds' finandal positon, results of operations and cash flows. The
lcation and far value amounts of e indtruments on She Stalements of
Assets and Liakilides snd the net realized gain (oss) and net change in
urrealized appredaion {depredation) on the Statemants of Operations, eath
categorized by type of finandal derivative contract and related nisk exposure,
Sreinduded in a tabie i e Notes 1o Scthedele of ements. The financa
derivative instruments cutstanding a5 of period end and the amounts of net
reabzed gain (oss) a0d net change in uniesined Jppred aton (deprecation)
on finindal derfeatied indtruenenty duding the period a4 divdcred in the
kotes to Sduedule of Ivvestments, serve as indicators of the volume of
finandal demvative activity for the Funds

{n} Fervenrd Foreign Comency Contrmcts Cortan Funds muy engage
forward foreign qumenicy conbracis in connection with setfing planned
purchases or sales of securiies, to hedge the ourency exposure assodated
with some or Al of 8 Fund’s securities o &5 part of an inestment stralegy. A
fionward doregn correny contract fs an agreement bebween o parties 1o by
anvd sell & ernency at a set price on a future dane The market value of a
forward Soreign cumency confract Sucheates with cranges in foreign aorrency
enchange rates. Farwand foreign oumendy coniacts are marked 1o markel
daify, and the change in value is recorded by a Fund a5 an unreaized gain oo
lorss. Realized gains o bosses ane equal to the diference between the value of
this COnrat AL S e 1w s opened Jnd the value 1 e time it was dosed
and are reqorded upon delivery or receipt of the ouerency. These contracts
may ol markel Ask in entess of the unfeaized gain o loss reflected an
thi Seatimients of Assets and Liakalites In addifion, & Fund duld be eposed
10 risk if e counterpanies ae unable 1 meet the temms of the conracts of if
the vaioe of the amendy changes unfaiorably 1o the fscional ammency, To
matigane such rigk, cath of seauties may be exhunged & collatersl puraant
tis the berns. of the wnderling contracts

Certain Funck having a hedged Class may also enber o forwand forsign
cumen oy condracts designed bo offset e effect of hedging at the Fund level in
coficder 1o beie the hedged Class wath o0 expdrne 10 oumenced ofver than the
functional cumendy. There can be no guarantes that these Class spedfic
forward foreign cumency confracts will be successful

ib) Futures Comtracts. Certain Funds may erfer into Sulaes contrac. &
funres coniract 15 an ajreement 10 buy of sell 3 se0entyor ofher 3368 for a
setprice on 3 future date and aee traded on eothanges. A fund may use
funur e QONIFRC 00 MAmage i expotune b the Seoanites kel of 1
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mdremenls in inbenest rates and currency valaes. The pimany risks ssodated
with the use of futures conrects ane the impeniect comelation betwesn the
change in market value of e sacurities hedd by 3 Fand and the prices of
fusures contracts and the possibility of an Miquid market Futures contracs
ate viliued based upon ther qaabed dady serement prices. Upon entering
imbo a futures conract, a Fund is requined 10 deposit with iis fubares beoker an
amcuntod cash, 5. Government and Agendy Obiligations, of sdect sovreign
debit, in acoondance with the inits)l margin requirements of the broker of
exxchange, Fubures conTacts are marked (o market daly and based on wich
mdrements in the price of the contracts, an appropdate payable or receivable
for thie change in walue may be posed of colleced by the Fund {”Fuluees
Variation Margin™) Funres Vanaton Marging, i amy. are dodosed witn
cenirally deared finandal desivative instruments on the Statements of Assets
andd Lugtalinies. GRS OF oiyiss ane recogrioed but nol condichred reaized unel
s coniraCTs ixpure of dode Fubures coniracn sl B vaning degress,
risk of boss in ecess of the Fubares Vanation Margin induded within
exchange Waded of centrally deared finandal deivative instruments on the
dtanements of Assets and Llabelifies.

{c) Optioas Comtracts Certain Funds maywrite of purchase options to
enhance rebums of 10 hedge a0 &asang position of faure imvestment Certan
Fuatck may werine Call and put options o deouriBes and inancal dervative
Irvsrruments they own of inwiich ey may ivest. Witng pot options tends
Lo indeaie & Fund's exposure to the underbying instrument. Writing call
opfons tends 1o deease 3 Fund’s exposisne bo te andering insrument
When 3 Rund wrines & call of pul @n annunt ecual 1o e premium redsned is
recorded and subsequently marked to market to reflect the aement value of
1k iy written . Thesge armoun s ane included on the Statements of Asies
and labwlines. Presimidnd recereed from '\.\Tll,illlg ophofl wlech exfire §ie
treated s reakzed gains. Premisms received from writing options which are
emercised or doved aee ackded 1o the proceeds or offsel against amaunts paid
on the underyding Ritures, swap, security of Cumency Mansaction 40 detemmne
the realized gain of kss. Certain ophbons may be weitlen with premian to be
determinied on a futwre date. The premsums for these options ane based upan
vl woll gty prarreters af spedifed temre. A Fund & 3 weiter of an
Gpaan has n contrnd over whither the 'JI'DG!-'-:|T‘I5II'I"C".‘III'I'!§|":1 gy b sold
("cal "} or purchased ("pait ™) and &s areustt bears the market risk of an
unlpmtatie change m the peice of the indtrument uwhdtying Bi witten
opdon. Thene is the risk 8 Fund may not be able to enterinto a dosing
transaction because of an ilfguid markes

Cartin Funds mby 30 puechase put and Call options. Punchasing call opaoi
temeh 1 weregse § Fund's eopddure 1o the ul‘d‘-rll.m-:j s I reenL F‘l,u-'d'l.f_mg
put opdons tends to dedease a Fund's exposare o the underking insrument
A Fund pags 3 precrsumwhich is nduded a5 an et oo the Statements of
Asgats and Listalises and satmequenty mared to market 1o reflec the
current value of the option. Premiums ped for purchasing options which
eapire are treated a5 redli ped hosses. Certain opfions may be purchased with
premiyems 1o be determined on a fisture date The premiume for these options
are barsed wpon imgdied volaslitg parameters al spedfied serms, The risk
assodated with purdhasing put and call opons is Brited to the premium
pasd. Premiums paed Tor punchanang opton s which are ensraiied of doed ane
atded fo She amounts paid o offset against the proceeds on the underlying
Irrestment ransaction 1o desermine the redized gain of |oss when e
undhring fransacion i ewcuted

Credit Default Swaptioses Certan Funds maywnte of putchase ol defsdt
seaptions to hedge exposure to the qedit risk of an investment without
making 4 comimesment 1o the underbfing insnament A credi defill s aption
i an cyrtion 10 %6l or buy credil probedion 10 a spedBe refenence tny enteing
into a pre-defined swap agreement by some specified date in the fure
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Fereign Cormency Optiens Certain Funds may write o purchase foreign
CuETENCy Optaons 00 be used a5 3 short of ng hedge agamnst porsible
varniadons in forelgn eechange rates of to gain exposure 10 foresgn umendes

Inflstion-Capped Optieas Cortain Funid may waite or punchase inflation
capped options o enhance retums of for hedging opporiunities. The purpdse
of purcharsiveg inflation-capped options is 1o protect a Rand fom inflation
Efrsion Bhowe & Cean fate on 3 geven notional exposure. A flood can be
wsed bo give dowreside probection $0 imeestments in inflason-finked products

Interest Rate-Cappod Opliene Certain Funds may wiite of purchase intenest
rate-Capped optons b0 enhance rebums of for hiedging oppar unities. The
purpose of purchasing indefest rate-capped opgions is 1o protect 2 Fund from
fiosaing rate sisk above a Certan rate on a gven nodonal exposure, A fipcr
can be used bo give downsade prodection bo iveestments in inberest rate linked
ey

Interest Rute Swaptiona Certan Funds maywrite of pardhase interet rate
raptions whith are opsons (0 enter ito & pre-defined swap agreement of
10 shorten, extend cancel of ofewase Mty 30 SENHNG DA MFSEmEL
bry some spedified date in the future. The writer of the swap$on becomes the
COUN BEFT Ty 10 the: S if the Duyer exerdses. The interest qale Saugiion
,j-_:ﬁl,-‘-'ls-,'-:lrh.ll ipely wihiaghed the |,|,|:|'1_1' of the waption wall be & Sodrite
regefver of & fimed fate payer upon exendse

Dptions on Exchange-Traded Futeres Coatracts Cottan Funch maywiite o
purchiade cpiois. on endhange-traded futures contracts (" Fulures Oplion ™) i
hedge an exdsting position or fulure imeestment, for speoulative purposes.or to
g expbune 10 masket mowements. A Futanes Cpion 15 an oplicn
Contract inwhich the undedying imsrument it 3 sngle fulures omiradt

Optises on Securities Cerlin Fundk may wnie of purchise oplions
sequnites 1o enhance retums or fo hedge an existing podifion or future
InvESITERL AN OpI0A 0N & S0ty e 4 spedfied seunty o the uwndilying
instrument fior tee opion contrad

{d) Swap Agreemante Certain Funds may invest in swvap agreements Swap
EFEETENL ae balmeraly Reganaled Mpeemnents e beivei A Fund Jod &
Cpan B Ty 10 exich e of S0 Ervestmen Cath Bowd, Jes, 1rr-_-n;|
orences of marked-linked retums at spedfied, fulee intenals. Swap
TR My be privately regatiated n e OTC marked of may be deaned
threugh & third party, bndwn 25 4 gniral counterpany of detivatives dearing
onganization {entraly deared swape™) A Fund may enber it asel, Tedt
default, cross-cumency, inberest rate, total retum, vanance and otber fomre of
SNAD ATERMENS [0 MaNage 15 expasure (o gredin Qimency, interest rate,
conmredity, equaty 3nd inflagon k. 0 connecion with Bese ageements,
seauities or cxsh may be idenffied as collateral or margn dn accordance with
the Dirrs of Bhe fespeClive DD agresment s b provide Jisens of value and
recoise in the event of default or bankmuplopnsolvency

Centrally deared swiaps e marked to market dally based upon valzations as
dhetearrined Srom the underhying oontract o in scoedance with the
Fequirernents of the ceniral couniereTy of devatred deaning onganization
Chamges in marbel value, if any, are reflected a5 a component of net dhangs
in unealized 3ppreda von (depredation) on the Saatements of Opérations.
Duaily changes in waliabon of oenirally dedred swaps ("Swap Vanation
kargin®), if any, are dsdosedwithin cenbrally deared nancd derivative
Insirurnents of i Staternents of Assets and Lisbilides OTC swap payments
recerved o paid &t the Degnning of the measurement period are induded on
the Staterments of Assers and Liabilines and repeetent premiomes pad of
received upon entering into the svap agesment 10 compensate for
diflisrenci betwesn the stated temm of the Swap bgreemenl and prevaling
market condifions (oredt spreads, oumency exchange rales, inberest rates, and
other rebevant factorsh. Upfront presmiems recesved (paid) are initially recorded
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a5 liablities (assets) and subsecuenty marked to market 5o reflect the ument
walue of the Swap. These uptront premmiurs s recorded a5 realized gans of
fsses on the Statements of Operations upon termination or maturity of the
vwap. A liquidation payment received or made at the terminasion of the swap
i recorded &% nealiped gan of oSS on the Staterments of Operationd. Nel
peioch payments received oo pald by a Fund are indisded as part of realized
gains of lostes on the Statements of Operatons

Foor pustpcriet of .luﬂ‘.q"l‘lﬂqu'..iﬁ af 3 Fund™s inves imend polices and
restrictions, avap agreements, like ofier derivative insruments, may b=
walued by 3 Fund at market valee, notienal valie of fill exposure valioe I the
cawt ol & aredit default vwap, in appidng certain of the Fand's s iment
polides amd restrictions, the Fundwill valie the oedit default wap at its
riodonal value or it full exposure vialue § 2, the sum of te nodona smount
or the contract phus the market walue), but may value the oedit default wwap
At rarket walue for purposes of applying certain of te Rund's other
irwestment polides and resdridions. For example, the Rund may value gedil
default svaps atfull eposure value for parposes of the Fund's medit quality
Quicknes (1 arry) Decause spch vatue in genetal bemmer refects the Fund's
attual economic exposure during the term of the oedit defas swap
agreement. As 3 nesult, 4 Fund may, at Bmes, have rational exposone 1 an
assel s (betore neting) that i greater of lesser than the ated limit of
restriction nated in the Fumd's Offering Memorandum In this comtea, both
the notional amount and the market value may be potitive of negatie
depending on whether the Funid is selling or buying protection thraagh the
aredit defanlt swap. The manned in which cerien securities of ather
imsfruments are valued by the Fund for pupodes of applying investment
prodicies and restnctions may difler from the manne in whidh tharse

ieve st e vilaed by ather Bpes of ifne3300. ENERnG indo Svap
agresments invobves, o vanging degrees, elements ofinterest, aedit, marker
and docurentation fisk in extess of the anounts redognided o e
Sranements of Assets and Liabehities. Sudh risks ivvoive the possibdity that
there wall b no Boued market dor these agresments, tat the oounterparty t
the agresments may default on its dbdigation to perform or disagres a5 fo the
eneaneng of contracnad temms in the aoreements and hal thene may be
unlasratie changes i inlgnest rates of the wilues ol ghe asser o whadh
the swap is based

A Fund’s mmum sk of lods fnom counterpaity gredit risk is the discoumted
it value of the cash fows o be receved Fom te counterparnty over te
confract’s remaining Fe, to the mxdent that amount is positve The risk may
I mriregated by handneg a master nesting rangernent Detwesn 3 Fand nd
1 counterpanty dnd by the posting of collaneral to & Furd b0 diver 3 Fund's
exposie 10 e counterparty.

T the extent a Fund has a policy to lmit the net amount owed 10 or bo be
received from 2 sngle counterparty under edsting svap syeements, sudch
lirmwlaton onlby Sogiies 10 Counlerpartes (o OTC weapn and does nob ahphy o
cenirally ceared svaps where the counterparty is 2 cenfral counferparty or
derivatives dearing ceganization

Credit Delault Swap Agreements Certain Funds may enferinto

et defandt swaps on coeporate, ban, soversign, LS, muridgal of U5
Treasury issues to provide 3 measure of protecion against defaults of the
imsupers e, fo reduce risk where 3 Fund owns or has exposure to the
relirenoed d:i-g.jllm:lm 1 Bake an St I-;l'lg of Short podition wilh respect
to the likefthood of a partiodar issuer's defadt. Credt default swap
Anresments invialve one panty making & smeam of payments fefered o as
the biryer of protechon) bo another party (fhe sefles of protecion) in exchange
for e eight Do recenve 2 spedfied relum in the event that the referenced
enlity, obdgation or index, s spediied in the avap agreement, andengoes a
cerkain qedit event. &5 a selfer of protection on cedt defaull swap
agresrments, & Fumd will gemerally neoere Trom dhe Duyst of photeion 4 fsd

rate of income throughout the serm of the swap provided that there i no
et event, As the eller, 3 Fund woukd efectively add leverage tails
porifolio becaase, in addtion loits botal net assets, the Fund would b=
saibject to irvestment exposure on the nofional amount of the swap

if & Fund is 3 seller of protecton and a credin event oones, a5 defined under
the restrs of Siat paioular swap agreement, 3 Fund will either ) pay 1o the
baryper of prodection an amount equal to the notional amount of the swap and
take detieny of the rederenced otigancn, ofver delverstie obdganons of
undetying securities comprising the refersnced index or §i) pay a net
setiement amaont in the form of cash o sequrities equal to the nofiona
amount of the swap bess the recoveny value of the reterended abligatmn of
tandestying sequnities comprising the referenced indes If & Fund is 3 buyer of
protecton and & credit event oomar, a5 defined under the temes of at
paticula weap agreement, 3 Fund will sither {i) recehe from the seller of
proecion an amount egua 1o the noSonal amount of e seap and deliver
the referanced obligation, other defveratde obligations or underying
seamities comprising the referenced index of (1) receive 3 net sttement
HOOUNE N e form of cash o deounines equal 10 the notionsl amdunt of the
swip less thie recoweny value of the referenced obligation or underking
sbllrites comprsing the neferenced index. Recovery values ane estimated by
markel makers considering sithes indusiry Standand recosry rabed o entity
spedific fachor and consderations untll 3 credit event ooours. i a edit event
has ooored Ehe redovery value is determined by a falitated anction
wherebey 3 mirimum number of allowable broker bids, 1ogether with a
apeified vakpanon memhod, sre used 1 cakoulane the sentement valig. The
ability b deftver other obligations may resultin a dheapest-to-deliver opfion
(e baryer ol prodection™ nght b dhoose B deliverable obligation with the
linreat viue fellomang 3 credit evint)

Credit defaslt swap agreements on aedt indces invole one party making a
siream of payments bo anodher pary in exchange for the fight o recehe a
apecilied et en the esent ol 3wiite-dosn, prndpe shomfall, infeest
shortfall or defaultof Al or part of the referenced entities comprising the
editinder A oediindex &5 a basket of credit instruments o expoeunes
detigned to be fepretentative of some it of the aredit market 45 2 whole
Theese Indbces are made up of reference cedits that are judged by a poll of
dedlers 1o be the most Bouid entities in the aedl defaull svap markel baved
e e sechor of the inder. Components of the indices may indusde, bul are
it [imrabed oo, imeestment orade sequntes, high yeeld secuntes, Jssel-bached
senmities, smenging markeds, andfor vanous aedi ratings within each secior
Crechit nchoes are waded usng oredin delaudn wwaps valh SEandaidized temm
inchading 3 foed speedd and standand manrity dates. An ndex oedn defidl
swgp references all the names in the inde, and if there §s 3 default, the oedt
el i seitied bated on That name's weightin Te index The composition of
The indices changes pericdically, usually every tix montfe, and for most
Indces, each name has an equal weight in the index A Fund may use aedi
default wwaps on aredit indices to hedge 3 portfiolio of aedit defaalt seaps o
bk, wehich 15 |ess expensive tham it would b to bury maey credit default
Swapns 1o achieve: & Sl eflect Credt defaullt swaprs on indioes ane
insinsments for probacting imeestors owning bonds against default, and
vaders une them i speailate on dhinges in cedit qualing

implied et spresds, represented in abaoine rerms, wiilized in determining
the market vaue of cedit default swvap agreements on coporate, lean,
sowereign, U5 manidpal of S Treaminy Kswes 34 of period end, if any, ane
drsdosedin the Rates 1o Schedube of vesiments. They sene a5 an mckoats
of the cument status of payment/performande ride and repeesent the likelibood
otk of et for the rebsenced entity. The implied aedt spread of 3
paticular referended entity reflects the it of buying'seling protedion and
may indisde upfront payments required 1o be made o enter intp the
syeement Wider oredit ypreads epresent a detericration of the relerenced
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enlity"s credi1 soundness and a greater likelbood or sk of defaglt o other
creddt event coourming & defined under the reoms of e sgeement, For gedi
default awvap agreements on asset-badved seamrities and gedit indices, the
quoted market prices and resulting vahses serve as the indicator of the ourent
sttt of Bhe paymenuperiomance sk nceasing markel wakies, in drolute
terms when compared o the notional amount of the swap, reprasent a
deterscration of e reherenced snity's aredit soundhess and a greates
likefihgcd of risk of default o ather credit event ocauming 5 defined under
thee teeres of the agpeement

The maimum potental amoant of fulure payments {undioounbed) that

& Fund a4 2 seller of progection oould be nequined S0 make under a gedit
defaull smap aoreement equas the nobonal amount of the agresment
Nethonal amaunts of each indiicdual gedt default swap agreement
outstanding as of period end forwhich a Fund is the sellés of prateciion are
dischosed in the Motes 1o Schedule of Invesements. These potental amounts
weould be par Bally offset by ay necovery values of the regpectie referenced
obligations, uptront payments received upon entering nto the agresment, o
el amgun B nedisved from Bhi serternent of buy proection aedi defaull
PWap agreements enfered into by a Fund for the same referenced entity or
enlifies

Imiwrest Rate m' Agresments Certain Fynds are sulyedt 10 intefestrate
risk exposure in the nomal course of pursuing her inves ment objecties
Thie value of the fooed rate bonds that a Fund holds may decrease itinberest
15 e, To help I|-;|;ig-_- AL thes ek 0 d %o mdintan ins alility to
generate income at prevailing market rates, 3 Fund may enter into intenest
rate svap agreements. Interest rabe swap agresments nvolve T exhangs
try 3 Fund whith andther pafty Tor Hhelr respecive oommitment to pay of
peceive intprest on the otionsl amount of prindpal Certain forms of inenes
rale Seap agreemen s may indude: (i) interest rate caps, under which, in
retum for 3 prerum, one paty agrees bo make payments to Se other b0 the
Entent than interest rates exceed & specred rate, of “cap”, (i) interest rate
floors, under whidh, In retum fior 3 premium, cne party agrees b make
payments to the other to the extent that inferest rates fall below a speafied
e, o “Rood”, (W) innenesl rate Collars, under whadh & padty Selis a cap and
purchases a fioor or vice versa in an afemps to protect itself againt interest
fe mivements exceeding ghven minimurm of maximum ket (iv) callable
interest rabe Svaps, under which the buyer pays an upfront fee in
onnvsicleraten Tor ghe night (o early 1ermenate te Svep Tansacion in whils,
at a0 cost and af a predeterrmined date and time price bo the maturity date,
() spreadiocks, widh aow e mIERel AAlE Swap users 10 [odk in he
Toreedrd difterennial (or spredd) beteeen the imterest rate Swap rate and a
spedified berrchmark, or (M) basis swaps, under which hwo parfes can
exrhange varable Rlerest rates based on ditfienent tegments. of money
arket

Total Aeturn Swap Agreements: Certain Funds may enter into 1083l retum
wap ayeements 10 gan or mitigate exposure to the underlying reference
Total retum Swap sgreements imohve commatmen s whete singe of multiple
@sh #ows are exchanged based on the price of an undirying reference asset
and on 3 fimed or wanabde inbeest rate. Tolal refum Seap agresmeents may
rrviche ComEImEnts 10 pay interedt in sothange Sor 3 marketdinked retum
Qe counterparty pays out the wotal retyen of & spedfic underying reference
asset, which may indude a sngle secunity, a basket of seawities, of an index,
and in retum receives 3 Sooed or variable rate. AR the maturity date, anet czh
B 15 t—xl’l‘lan}-d where e 1008 retam 1% equivdlent to the returm of thi
unierfying reference asset less a finandng rate, if any. As arevefver, a

Fuand windd recisve purgimen (5 b sed on iy positve 1o8M fetum Jndwould
G parymnends m e event of 2 negative tatal retum AS the papr, 3

Fusnd wioidid owe panyTrents on any positive tota retrn, and would recene
paymens in the eventof anet negative lal reham

7. PRINCIPAL RISKS

I 1he recrrrial Course of Business, the Funds jor Aoquired Fands, 3 applicable)
trade finandal instnements and enter inta finandal trarsactons where risk of
potend.al boss exisis dae 1o such things & changes in the markel {market risk)
or fadure or inabiity of She other party to a transaction to perform (oredit and
coun Berparty k). See below for & detaled description of select peincipal
ke

Fund of Fomida To the extent that certain Funds imest substantidly all of their
respectie adtets in Acquined Funds, the nidks stodated with imvesting n
these Funds will b= diosely relaned b the ritks associatedwith the sequites
and ofher imestments held by the Acquired Funds The ability of the Funds to
achieve fheir respective investment objectives may depend upon he sty of
the Accuted Funds [0 achiee Seer reipeci imvestment aljecives Thire
can be no assurance that the vestment objective of amy Acquired Funid w

B achiewed The NAV of a0 ﬁ.u,u:pu:-; Fand vall fltuate in fesponie
dhanges in the repecive Mt of the Accquired Fund i whidh it imests

In the poemiad course of business, Aogired Funds Frade fnanaal nssuments
anvd enter into finandal transacions where ride of potential boss exists due o
changés in the markel (masket k), of lefure or nability of the over party o
& tramsacton bo perform {medit and counterparty sk

Mariod Risds A Fund's imvestments in finandd derivative instruments and
ather hinanda induenents expote te Fund 10 vamous ol such a5 bt not
Iirwated 00, inberest rabe, foreign (non-U 5 ) aumency, equity and commodity
risks

interes) rate sk is the rish that fieed inoome seaxities and other insruments
i by & Fund miny decime in valug Because of an inCredle o interest raes
As nominal interest rates fise, the valse of eriain fived income seaites held
Ery 8 Fund i Bleely 10 Gecreatse. A mormenal i enedl file can be detaibed o
thet surn of 3 real inberest rabe and an expected inflaton rate Inberest rate
changes can be sudden and ungredictable. and a Fund may bose money if
thiese changes ane nok antidpated by Fund mansgement A Fund miy mof be
abde 10 hedge against changes n nterest rabes of may chisse not o do 50 Tor
sl of ther redsons. In addition, any hedges may pot work a5 intended

Duraon is & meaume used to determine the sensitityof 3 seanity's pace o
chandges in inbanest rates that indorportis & seaanty’s yeld, coupon, find
maturity and call features, among ather charactensie. Comesdiy is
additional mesie wed 1o understand a sewnty™s or Fund's inferest rate
sernitivity that measures the rate of change of derdtion in response to
changes in interest rates. Frosd income Seouises with longer durations tend
T b mcee sensitive bo changes in interest rates, wualy making Hhem more
volatile than seurities with shoeter durations. A wide variety of factors can
G interest Fates Do fise (6.9, central bk mond Lary polick, infation
ranes, general egonomic aondifons, i), Under qunrent ecomomec cond tons
indienesl rales ane rear histodcally bow bewsds. The Funds arrently lace a
hesghitened level of intenest rate nsk, espedally ance the Federa Resens
Board has ended 115 quasnii tatve esing program and has begun, and may
continuae, B raise intérest rates. To the exient that the Federal Restrve
CORNREES [0 FalsE neredk raleL, tere 5 & A5k Bl rates aonods the tnanoa
Yyilermn My rite. Further, while bond murkets have Stesdly grown (ver thi
parst three decades, dealer "market making™ akility hasnot kept pace andin
sirne Carves hat decredsed. Given the importance of intermrediary ~marke
mking” in areating 4 mobust and sctve marke!, Sosd ncome Seaues ane
ouerenty facimg incresased volaslity and liguidiny nsks. Al of these factor
codectively andior indradually, could cause a Fund 1o lose value. if e Fund
It emough value, e Fund could face ingreased Unitholder redemptions,
winch could force the Fund to Bgusdate investments # 1 disachvan Lageous bimes
of prices, thereby adversely sffecting the Fund Also, the Fund may be
ettty afecied when & Liege Unitholder punchases o nedeens Linge
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amounts of units, whidh can cotur at amy time and may impact the Ffund in
the: same manner 35 3 gh wolame of redemplion requests. Lange Unitalides
transactions may impact the Fund's Bquedty and net aset value Such
tranzactions may aluo inease the Fund™s ransacion costs of othersise
caipe the Fund 1o perlorm differenty than ntended Moneoas, the fund is
subgect bo the risk Hrat other Unithodders may make imves ment dedisions
based o the duoices of & large Unitholder

The Fenid my imsesl "Jl_'n|1::.u'|'."|r:|'| sesturines that e ecomammically Tied 10
Angenting and thiss subjedt bo vanioms risks, sudh as polifical, economic, loal,
market, and ourrency risks Curmently, investiments in Angentina are
particdarty sisbject bo efeas tram the countrys high inflation, sconamc
imstabelicy, and polidcal wnrest

A Fund may have significant exposure toissuers in the Unsted Kingdom The
Lini b Kinipdoen's. dedrtacn bo lednat Shie Buropean Uneon mry impact Fund
e, This decsaion may ciuse Wkatintd vwolatity in foreign excthange
markets, lead o weatness in te exthange rate of the British pousd, result in
& surstained perod of marke t uncertainty, and dedtakilize some of all of e
other European Union member countriss andior the Eurozons

Foreign {non-U, 5.3 sequrities in this repoet ave dlassified by the country of
imcorparation of 3 hobding In Ostan RSLAN0ES, & Seounity™s courtny of
incorpatation mary be diffenent from it country of conomes axposune

IF & Fund sfovests ciresciby an Tosiagn {mon-L0 S ) cumrenges of in Seourite:d that
trade &n, and receive revenues in, foreign (non-U0S ) aurendes, of in financal
difhvitive mAuments that provide epodurs to Beagn (Ron-U 5 ) asmendes,
it wall be subjedct o the rick shat those cumendes will dedine in value relalive
b the base qurency of the Fund, ar, in e case of hedging positons, that

the Fund's bate cumencywdl dedine in walue rdatve 1o the cuméncy being
hedged Curmendy rates in forslgn counimies may fuctuate sionricantly over
short periods of time for a number of reasors, induding changes in interest
rates, intervention foe the fadure to imensene) by LS. or foreign govemnments,
cenral banicd of swprangtional entiles wdh &5 the nlemancnal Moneiany
Fund, or by e imporsition of qamency controls of other political developments
im Bhe United States or abroad. A5 a result. a Fund's investments in foreign
cunrEncy-genoman ated securities may recioe Th Fund's netunm

Thoes muarheen vilues, of equities, such a5 oomemon Stodcs and preferred seorites
o equily related investments such as ffures and options, have histoncally
fided e Bl in peridc Cpchid i iy deciae de 10 Geerdl ket

comd Bons whidh are not spedfically related (o 3 particular company, such a5
real or pencehed adverse economic conditions, changes in the geners
oulack fior dorporate eannings, dhanges in mlenedt of curtency rates of
adverse imveston sentirment generally. They may also dedine due to factors
whoch affect & partiovkar industry of industnies, such & labor hortages of
intresded produchon costs and competitiee conditions within an ndusiry
[fferent types of equry secuites may resct differently 1o thes
developments Equity secmities and equity related investiments generaly have
greater market price volatility than eoed inoome seaurities

The Funds may invesl in certan s muments that relyin some fashion upon
1 London interbank Offered Rate (TUBOR™) LIBOR is & average interest
rate, determined by the KCE Benchmark Administration, that banks change
o grther for thee e of thom-tenm iy The Liniged If.m-:'r;‘n'u"u':. Finandad
Conduct Authority, which regulates LIBOR, has announoed plans to phase out
the wse of UBOR by ®eend of 2021 There remains uncertainiy reganding
future utiization of LIBOR and the nansne of amy replacerent rate, and any
posential effects of the ransidon asay from LIBOR on 3 Fund or on centain
Irsruments in which 8 Fund imeests ae not known

Credit and Comnterparty Rimba A Fund will De eopoted 1o credit rish 0
parteswath whamit rades andwill also bear the nsk of 1Bement detialt

A Fured minimi 2 concentrations of credit risk by undentaking transactong
with & large ramber of custommess and counnenpartes on regognized and
repuiable exchamges, where apglicable. OTC derivative ransactions are
sulbject to the risk that a counterparty to the ransaction will not fdsl it
coniracual obligatons 1o the other party. 4% many of the protections afianded
1o ceniirally deared defivative ransactions might not be avallable for OTC
derivafive randacions. For deratives traded on an exchange of through
cenilrdl counberpaty, redit sk retides with the credivorthiness of

the Fund's dearing broker, o the dearinghoute ircelf, rasher than 1o a

coun terparty in an OTC dervate wansaction. Changes in regulathon relating
1o 3 Fund’s use of dervatves and related instnunents could patenbally bt
of irmpact the Fund™ Sbdity 1o imvest in deriithees, limit e Fursds sbiling 1o
emmpdoy certain strategies that wie dervatives andior adversaly affect te value
of perfommance of dervatives and the Fund . A Fund could lose money if the
it of Quarantor of 3 feed income seaurty, of e counterparty 1o 4
finandal derfvative instruments contract, repurchase ageement of 3 loan of
peor tficli secutitiees, i5 unablie or urwilling So mabe Gmedy prindpal andior
ingenect payments, of 10 othendse hanor it obligations. Secuwities and
finandal derivative insmuments are aubject 1o vandng degrees of aedit sk,
which may be reflected in aredit ratings

Sirvilar 1o creditrisk, & Fund may be expaied m ountpaty sk, of e sk
that an institution of other enfitywith which 3 Fund has ursetted of open
trarsactons wall default. FIMCO, a5 the Manager, minmies coun ter party
risks b0 the Funds theough a nimber of ways. Frioe bo enbering into
rariacions witls & new countepadty, the PINCO Coumeparty Risk
Committes conducts an exenshee dedt review of sudh counterparty and must
Fpinchne the wie Of Such counlefpirty. Furthemode, puripdat b the perms of
The underlang contracL 1o e extent Hat unpaid Seoants owed 10 4 Fund
exeed 3 predetemmined trechold, such counterparty shall acvance milaterd
W &t Fund in thee Fonmof crsh o securies squal in value to Sheunpaid
amount owed to 8 Fund . A Fund may invest sudh oollateral in secunities of
other instruments andwill ypecally pay interest 10 the counterparty on the
collateral received. If the unpaid amount awed to 4 Fund subrequenty
denreases, & Fund would be eegured 0o fetum o i Countepamy Ml ora
portion of the Collaterdl previoutly sdvanced PIMCO'S d1tmits i minimize
coun terpar by risk may, howsever, be ooesshul

Al transactions in listed seamies ane settiedipaid for upon delbeny 1zing
appioved counterparties. The e of defadt 15 considensd renimal, 55 delivery
of seaurities sold is only made once a Fund has received payment. Payment i
ke o 3 purchase onoe th seoantes huve Deen delivered by he
counterparty. The tradke will Tasd il either party Tais to mesed it obligigon

4 MASTER NETTING ARRAMGEMENTS

Thee Fisnels mupy be Gabject o varias metting arangements (T Maste
Agreemnents ") with select counterparties. Master Agresments govem the
Tt of Cerlan Tansacsons, and e intended 10 reduce Bie counleMaty ol
Fsociated with relavant ransactions by spedfying qedi protecion
mechanisms and providing standandzation that is intended to imgrove legal
cestanty Each type of Masher Agneefment Qo irtain Bypes of
mrarsactions. Diflerent types of mansactons mey be traded cut of dfferent
legal entities of affliates of a partiodar ahganamtion, resulting in the need for
multiple agrésments with 3 single counterparty. As the bMatter Agreementy
e spedic o unigue operations of detferent Joet types, they Alow 3 Fund o
diose cut and metits botal exposure 1o 3 counterparty in the event of a default
with respect bo all the ransactions govemed under a single haster
Agperrent with 3 counterpary. For Snind sl feporting purpases the
Stabements of Assers and Ligbdkties generally present denivative assets and
liabities on a gnoss baks, which reflects the full sk and sxpasunes prioe bo
AEtling
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Notes to Financial Statements

9. FEES AND EXPENSES

Each Fumd s subject 1o the
Applicable, Takben separy

fndlowineg fees payable an the Sollowing annual rates (stated as a percentage of the average daly net awsets of each Fund, or Clans, if
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Notes to Financial Statements

The management, acvisory and administrative fees, if gpplicable, are paid monthly in arrears to FIMCO for providing or arranging for the peovision of advisory,
administragve and thind-party sendces induding audi, ossipdd, mustes, pormiolio sommting rousae legal, manster agent and printrg sefvices. The agendy and
distribution fees, if applicable, are paid monthlyin amears to reimibwse Enandal intermedanes that provide senvices and distribution relating 1o the units of the
applicabde Fund {or Class thereof, a5 applicable). in the case of the PIMCO Bammoda Foreign Low Duration Fund and PINCO Bermoda U3 Low Duration Fund, FIMCO,
ut of its managemen foe, will Dear the oosrs assodiated with advacey nd adminisinitive servoes, 0 1% of which i3 desigraned 1o cover adminiSiratie exgendies in
exchange for this fee, FIMCO will bear the costs of cerain thind-party sendces requined by the Funds, induding asdit, austodial, Bustee, portfolio accounting, begal
fransier agpent and prntng sendoes. FIMCO, and not Unisholders, would benedt from any price decrease in the oostof such third-party services, induding decreases
feaulting from a0 indedse innet asets b addton, with respedt 1o Funds that are abge o a0 adminirative fee, PIMCO gererally makes a profit on 4ach a fee

As noted in the table above, certain Funds and Classes of Funds are not subject to management, advisory, admindstrative, agency or distribution fees. PFINCO lapan
L, FEMCO" affiliate in Japan, s paid 3 fee from the lapanese investment Trusts of other investment vehides that imvest in i Funds or Classes and 3 portion of
such Tt it e aBocaned 10 FINKCO 1o compendate it for il servioes

The Fumis (of Classes thereol, g6 applicatie) may bear other expendes related 10 ther operaton that 4re nol overed by the management, advwriony, sdministate,
agency o dsiribufon fees, induwding bat not limibed 100 ) taxes and governmental fees; (1) brokerage fees and commissions and other poetioko ansaction expenses;
Erits ol BT oG monsy, .'u_l:,-_ﬁ.-.;_; iihERER! expedrie: (v Ax i tuley fxfe e, ||'J|,:!a||-‘_: ot o i -,_j.;lil,':f. s indemni Cition expented; dnd {v) Sy dapendes
dted of dlocatde 1o & wpedfic Class of umits, &5 applicable. FIMCO hi paid, of will py, the organizational expendes siasdated with PIMCO Shert-Tesm Strasegy’s
itial satup

FINMKCO andior its affiliates will initially advance to PINKCO Short-Teem Sbratedy all costs and expenses, induding kgl expenses, incured in connection with the inifia
public l_-1|-_||.':; of the JFY and LD Clasees of Urats of the Funed in Lipan (“0ffering Expenies™). AL of near the commencement of the Fund's opsrations, the Furd wil
reirmise PIMCO sdior itd affiuates for the Offer 1] Expmiicies ddvandid and will amorge sich l.:ll.'\-_rrn:; Expo s cot T first fiscal yeudr o W5 Ceer B8icars. HiGwarei,
FIMICO has agreed bowaive reimbursement of the Offering Expenses to fhe extent $hat s expenses exceed 0 05% per annum of the wum of the JFY and 60
Clarsses’ Wet Asset Value {the =Offering Expense Umitation™) Amy Offering Expenses waived due to the Offering Expense limitation may be recouped by FIMCO andior
its atfikates for & pericd not eaceeding Sve years from the comeencement of the Fund™s aperations; provided, the amount recouped by FIMCO andfor it4 affikates shall
ot exteed 0.05% per annum af the sum of the JFY and USD Classes” NAY. I either of the JPY and LED Classes of Units of She Fund is terminated price 5o the full
reimbursement of gl Orffering Expenses, PIMCO anddor its affiliates shal not seek reimibursement of any remaining wnrelmbursed smounts om thal Class
Furthermicee, if both of the 1P and USDr Classes of Units of the Fund are terminated price 30 he full reimbarsement of ol Orffering Bxpenses, FIMCO anddor its affliates
shl not Sesk resmbrssment of ay remaning unramburssd amoonts from the Fursd. PIMCO has pasd o wall pay, all oodls aod expensss, nduding begal expenied,
ricurred in conrechon with e mehal pubhc oferng of the AUD Class of Units of the Fund in Japan, A4 of My 30, 20019, thene wieé no recoverstie Oflermg Egpenies
to PINCO andor its affliates

PINKCO has appointed SMEBC Nitioo Seaurifies Inc. 1o act & Agent Compamy and Distibutor for the dstibution and senadng of units of the PINCO Euro Total Retum
Fuafd, PIMCO Reall Retams Fund, and the IPY and VST Clastes of PINCO Shoft-Term Steatedgy 10 fetad imvestons in Japan . PIMCO has sppented SMBC Nikko Saowineg
Inc 10 act 3 Agent Company for seniding of units of AUD Class of PIMCO Short-Term Srategy. Mo agent companies hawe been appomted Tor any of the other Funds

FIMKCC) has pad the coganizationdl expenses assodated with the areation of the Trust. If further Funds are laumnched, such oosts directly attributable to the relevant
Find may e home by the relevant Fund
10. RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS

The Imvestment Alvser 15 3 related party (o the Funck and (5 & mapon ty-owned subsbdany of Alang Asse! Managemen &G Fees patd w0 the related party, if any, are
disdgsed in Mote 9, and acoued related padty fee amounits, i any, are dadosed on the Statements of Assats and Liabilises

Alkanz Asset Management AG, a related party of the Tnast, cwned 0 064% of the net assets of the FIMCO Short-Term Srategy as of May 31, 2019

Certain Fuends ane permitted to purchase or sell seawities from or 1o ertan related affiliated fundk under spedfed conditions outlined in procedures. adopfied by the
Imvestment Adviser. The procedures haee been designed 1o emure that any purchase of sabe of sedurities by a fund from or so another fund that is or could be
considered an affilate by virtie of having 8 common adviser (o affiliated imvestment advisers), is effected at the cument market price. During the period ended May
21, 2009, the Fandi) beloy -n-:'|.|-_'|---1|r punchases snd sales of setunbies amondg SiMhanesd Tunds (Smounis m Eousan)

Fund Prordmes Sl
PIMDT Bew rresda Faresgn Loww Dureoon Fand ] o3 115
PPN By U1 5. Liwty Dt Fund a Fal
FIME B gprng Mkt Band Fundl 148 o aEm
PIMDD Boro Toesl Retum Ford E]] am
FIMED Fisal Aetues Fund a 08
LT ShorrTerm Sarasey 624 TEA

11. GUARANTEES AND INDEMMIFICATIONS

Uincer the Trust's organizational doasments, certain parties (induding fee Trustes and PIMOO) are indermnified against certain lisbilites that may aise out of
performande of their dulies 10 the Funds. Additionally, in the nomal course of business, the Fundt enter into contrads that contan 3 vanety of indemmification dauses
The Funds” mamum expodure under these arrangements is unbnown a5 this would irscive future daims that may be made against the Funds that have not yet
cooumed. Hownever, the Funds have nothad paor daims or losges pursoant 1o these confraces
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12, UMITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST
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13, REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS

Funk. are not named 2 defiencants in any material litigation or arbivation proceedngs and ane not sware of sny matena ltigaton o daim pending of

threater

This formgoing tpesid onky a0 of ths date of this repon
14. INCOME TAX

bidert 1 B
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Return Fund
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0 0
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGANEZATION

Each fund disussed In this report {each a “Fund™ and collectively, the =funds™), which also indudes each dass of units of that fund (each a <Class” and collectively
T “Classes™), is a Series st of PO Bermuda Trust (the “Trust™), an apen-tnded unit fust estabished under the fasvs of Bermuda as & multi-Serkes rust pursuant
1o 4 frusk deed exsazted by Winchester Global Tnst Company Limited on August 8, 2001 (a5 amended from time to Sme, the “Trast Deed™) Efectiee 35 of the dose of
business (Eastern time) on Noverrber 28, 2006, Winchester Global Trust Company Lirmited retied andwas dischanged as rustee of the Trust and Brown Brothers
Hariman Tnast Compamy (Cayman) Limited was appointed as new tustee of the Trust for the owners of units of the Furds (fe “Unitholders ™) Efective 35 of the dose
af Buisiness (Eastem Sme) on Sepdember 29, 2017, Brown Brothers Harriman Trust Company (Caman) Limited retieed and was decharged as 1 iee of the Trist and
Magies Trustes Senvices (Bermuda) Limited was appointed a5 new tneshes of the Trust. A wsed in this report, 3l references, to the “Trushes® thall mean the person

thean serving a5 tnustes to the Trust, Padfic Investment Management Company LLC {("PIMCO,® the “Manager” o the “imvestment Adviser™)is the sponscd of and was
responsitie for stucturing the Trust

The Trust 15 sufedt 10 regulaton and superision a5 provided forn the Irvesiment Furds Act 2006 and related niles rdating 10 standard fands

The terms of the Trust Deed conder upon the Trusiee, with the consent of the Manager, the power, in e future, bo establish furiher funds & addigon to the Funds
dirfendy i opeta i 25 of teé dite of this fepait

The Fund. presen ted in this report e irsted bl ow

PR Beemeda Foragn Low Dumton Fund Ofmad only bo Funds vaif @ "Fued of Fussds™ shucia, a5 dabaad in B relis of the
PIMCE) Bermuda LS. Low Duraticn Fund Trveiestreent Trussts Asocsation, Japan, o o fusdswith 3 smelar s¥uctens in any ofter
PR Emenging Mariats Bond Fusd LETR poi it o
PENMD]) Ernergrg Mobarkts Bored Fusd (Yian Mad ged)
PRC0 Emerging bbark ot Bord Fusd 1|
| P00 Emenging Markets Bond Fusd 1|
PRI Euro Total Hatuin Fund Crifier anf to reind irmaiziors o J agem Iy wiy of public offerng hioagh a disbetar
‘.__F'.Hll“-‘halﬁehjnF-.rd Japan, and may be oflerad 10 othar sswastors 31 Ba disoration of the Manager
| PR Shonn. i S anesy” Ofiried 10 rét] invisors m.J g by vy of public ofterng thivegh & datibetor aadion
salee: hansdlimg company in Jagpan, and may be offered to otha imvastors st the disoeton
of tha Msnaga
| PR Emengmag Markats Bond Fusd (M) TfFor od oty 1 other Funds o sarvwas underying nvestment vetedies B such Funds

MW S i ATUER Dlire 1 PORES C- ot S 6 A O 0 0 T A PO, e B0 9 SR AR Searae Dy Lok e A, 0 A oI § el SRR 8 A

Units of the P00 Eurp Total Refim Furid FIMCO Redl Retm Fund, and IPY and LSD Classes of the FIMOO Shoet-Tem Sirateqy have been regestened under the
Anandal instruments and Exchange Law of Japan Units of each of the remaining Funds and the | (1IFY) and I (USD Classes of the FIMCO Shoit-Term Strategy have
ot been and e not currently expuctedd 1o be regritered under the Rnendlal knssruments and Exchange Liw of Japan  Accordingly, such Units of thess Funds may pol
b, chrecty of inderecly, offered i Japan of 10 dery resadeniin Japan, exepl in coenplisnce wath Joplicabie Lapanete Linvs and requlaticnd

2. SIGNFICANT ACCOLINTING POLICIES

Thee follsing |5 & suemmaey of sionifcant scoousing poddes corsrtently followed by the Trust in the preparation of its financial staements in Condomity with
Ao0anting princgies generslly soepted im the United States of Armerica (Y5 GAAP) Each Fund B treated &5 20 Frvestment company unded the repoting
requirements of LS GAAR The preparation of fnand 3l statements in soomdance with LS, GAAP requires management (o make esimates and assumptions thag
aftect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and dsdosure of contingent assets and liabilines at the date of the Enandal statements and the reported amoents
of ihdreaded ghd decreates in el aisets from eperafions during the reportng period Actudl résults oold difler from thode estimanes

{n) Undwrdying Fesd The Trugtes and the Manager may apply Jl or 3 portion of the assets of FIMCO Emengng Marbets Bond Fund (ITF), PIMCO Emergng Marden
Bond Fund {7 en-Hedged), PIMCO Emenging Markets Bond Fund 1, and PIMCO Emenging Markets Bond Fund il (sadh referred 1o heren &5 3 “Fund of Funds™ or the
Phoquinrg Fund® swhich st B oofher Funds) 0o e fespedtie oredin of thie PIMCO Emangng Markets Bomd Fand (W) frefernsd 1o heredn 25 30 “._?'ﬂér‘i,m-.) Fumd™ o
e “Acquered Fund™) Aﬂ:,' at5els L0 applied will be hedd n wich Acquired Rund il recened deecly’ Whens isens dé so sppled, the Aogianed Fund will record De
s of units 1o the relevant Aoquinng Fund 51 B isue prioe per uat of such umts and vall repurchise such umns af the repundhire poce per unil of 9dh units Jn the
fime of repurchase. Acoadingly, the abdity of the Acquiring Fund to advieve its ivestment obgective will depend upon the ability of the appcable Acguired Fund to
achieve its imvesiment objective. There can be no assurance that the invesment obgedive of the Acguined Fund will be achieved

{b) Securities Tramsactions and Investment lcome SeCurilics Vaniamons e recorded & of the made date for Bnancal reponing parposes. Seunties pordised of
S0l oo wihenasied o dedayed-deliveny basis may be Setthed beyond a standand setiement period for the secunity afer the rade date. Rediped gans and |okes
Fam seduafitied Loid ane redonded on the aenthed oodt bade. Didensd income i feoorded on the ex-dhvidend dite, sxtepl certin deddendh from Tods N se0sides
where the ex-gividend date may have passed, which are recorded as soon as a Furd is informed of te ecdividend date interest income, adjusted for the acmetion of
dhsoimnts and amortization of premeums, is recorded on the aoorual basks Fom settlement date, with the exoepion of ssqurites with a fonward staring effective date,
whhire intenest income is secoodied on the acosal bursis, from efleciae date. For comeertiblie secusities, prermiunm attitutabie to te comersion feanme ane nat
amcrtized Estimated ta liabiiBes on certan foreign seawities are recorded oo an acous bass and ane refiected a5 components of intenest incorne or net dhange in
unredized appreciaton (depredation) on invesements on the Staements of Operations, & sppropriate. Tax llabiktes realized as & result of such seourity sales ane
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refiacted 35 a compaonent of net realized gain Foss) on investments on the
Sagrerments of Operations. Paydown gains and o5 on mongage-telated
and cther avsetbacked searities, if any, are recorded 25 components of
interest income on the Statements of Operations

Dot cbligation: may be placed on non-acmual satus and related inberest
imcomne may be reduced by ceasing qurrent aconals andweiting off interest
pecenable whin the oolletion of 2l or 3 poetion of imeres hag become
doubitful hased on consisten thy applied procedures. A debt obligaton is
remivid 0 non-BoTual Suatus when he B MeEumes iNGENEL payments
of whien collectabifity of nberest is probutde

{e} Canh and Foreign Currency The finuncal statenents of each Fund are
prasented using the cumency of the primary economic errvinonment in whidh it
operates (the “functional asrency™). The fundional aurency for the Fundsis
e LS. dollar, exepl fod the FIMCO Euro Total Return Fund whvich i4 the
Eurg

The market values of bafeign seunses. curency holdngs and other assets
and Babdlities are ramslated inte sach Fund's funcSonal arrendy based on the
ment exchange rates each business day. Purchases and sales of securites
and ircime Aned expense item denorminated in fonEnn aurendes, il oy, e
franilated in o each Fund's nApedind: Lindbona currency af the exhange
e in et on the transacion dite The Furd oo ol separtely repodt e
effects of changes in foreign exchange rabes from dramges in market prices on
securities held Such changes are induded in net reized and net changesin
unredlized gan of borss fnom ivesdiments on the 5tatements of Operations

The: Fumds. may irvest in Sorelgn qumency denominated sequriies and may
endgage in forelgn currency ransactions ether on a spotl (cash) basis i the
rate prevaling in the cumency exchange macket at the me o hrough a

fonw and foreign currency contract (see Finandal Derivative nsirumentis)
Realized $oreign exchange gams. of keises aisng from sales of spot Toregn
QaTendes, Qurrendy gains of bosses redized bebween the rade and sattlement
canes o Seauified arsactions and te difenende Delwsen foe recorded
amounis of dhidends, inserest, and boneign wishholding Laes and the
functional currency equivalent of the amouns actally received of paed are
incheded in Rt redized gain or koss on Boregn Aumency ransactons on the
Statemenits of Operations. Metunredized forsign exchange gains and losses
ansing frem changes in foregn exchange rates on boreign denomnated ausets
and liabilities other than nvestments in secmities held at te end of the
reporting period e Indwded in net change in unrealized Jppdedation o
Qprecition on loregn Curtency dsets and listilives on the Statements of
Operations

The Mk Assat Value (R and total retums of certain Funeds {or Classes
thereof, 2 applicable) are presented in the arrency for which te NAY is
reportid (the "NAV curency™) a6 detaled ineadh Fund's Ciifering
Memceandum (the "0Mering Mamorandur™. Fof the pimedes of the
pretention of e MAV Jrd the 1054 retam in the NAY curendy, the
beginning and ending NAYS are oomverted using the period beginning and
ending exchange rates, nespedivily, and ditibations e comertid uding the
exchange rate at the tme of the dstribution See the following tatde for the
MY curmency and funcional qurrency of exch respective Fund;

P MAY Furesonal
Carreny ey
PIMCD Barmaks Fremgs Lows Dt ation Fusd Japangsayn | U5 dollar
{_PIMC Bermuds U5 Lows Diration Find Japanesa yen | 115 dellar
| FANCE Eresrgeng Markag: Bond Fund LITTF) AN e 5. dotlar
ML Emeigeg Mad i Bond Fund i} L5 daflar 5. doflar
J C
= L0

Ny Tt ool
FandClms: Curvercy Durvetny

F) Ervarging Wit o Bare Figre [¥an Hadged] Japarasayen | WS dols
PR Ermvergung bbark e Bored e ] Jamnasg yan S dodw

& JiBAL)

= JO0R

= JONA

w MR

= JiTHY

]
FACEE Erioer gpesgy ok e, Barsd Frd 10 Jamrasoven | US dolw

LT -

= JIENY)

= JOORY

s JikA

= J KRN
P00 Eura Tootal Return Fund [iT [Euto
PO Real Pisatn Frand LS dollm Wh dols

| PAMOD St Term Sramsgy

= JUM Jumrazayen | UG deldw

s Jish Sty U5 dells

. BT Jamnmayen | VS dola

s |IED U5 dollm U5 dodu

{d) Melticlass Operatiens Each class of a Fund offered by the Tnosthas
rights to the awets of the Fund equal %o that of ofher dasses of the same
Fund, except for pecific st and gaing and krises dessgnated 1o 3 dass
redating to cumency hedging operations. income, non-dass spedic expenes,
avd non-dass spedic realized and unrealized capitad gains and looses are
Mlcecatiod R idch alass of units based on foe relative nel assets of cach dins
of the respectine: Rind Class spad e expendes cumendy indisde
management, sdvisory, administrative and dsmibution fees, where applicatie

i} Distribution Palicy The fofiowing table shows the satiopated requency
of distribirtions for each Fund . Distributions fom each Fund may be dedared
and disiribuied to Unitholders only upon the authorization of the Manager,
which authonization may be withheld at the Managers dsoetion

FIMCD Epro Tosal Batn Fund

FIMCH Emergng Markets Bond Fond LIITR)
BT B ot iy it Bl Pl [V o -Hadg ad)
PINCH) Emearging Markets Bond Fand ||
FINCH) E e ging hibarkets Bond Fund NI
PG Short-Tarm: Se gy

] JUMm

= JRED
PN Baxrasda Fosesgn Loy Duration Fend
FIMCH Barmoda U 5 Low Dirstson Fund
FIMCH) Read Ratem Fund
PG Sheut-Torm: Stra gy

- SFT

= 180
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Tha Manager desa nol sxpact 1o deslers dimribetions with recpect 1o this

Furd [ Clymnan thoveol, i sgphioeb'el, Bl may, in e dcretion, dociare and
ditrizations o the Uniholders 2 sy tima.
PIMACD Emenging Mark ats Bond Foad (M)

Dastritu s, [F sy, will generaly be made from the relevant Fund's (or
Class's, if applicable) net imvesmend income. In addition, the Manager may
authorize the payment of net nealized capital gains available for distibuson
Addtional distribufices may be dedared a3 the Manager deems appropriate
Dstrtu o, pasd with respect to any Fund (or Class thereod, if spplcable)
will eyl the BAN of such Fumd (oF Class theneod, of applcabie) AL the
disetion of the Unitholders, cash distributions om a Fund for Class thereod,
il applicable) may ¢ither be rereited in addBonal units of 4 Rund (or Class
heereod, i applicable) o paid 1o a Unitholder in cath, Cash purpments wall be
paid in the Ky currency of te Fund Eadh Fund (or Class thereaof, it
applicable) may dedare further distribuSons if considersd necessary in onder
1o mantan 3 reasonabie bewl of datributions for a Fund for Class thereof, if
applicabled in the event that teere is inadecuate nelimoome and net reaized
capital gains to pay a distribution of a Fund (or Class thereod, if applicabie)
recuired by the Crffering Memaorandum, the Minages may pay 3 daibution
condsing of o portion of the capital of Sich Rand (or Class theneal, i
applicable) Déstrbuiors nod oollecied within st years. from their doe date
will lapre andwall aooue to the benefit of the relevant Fund (or Class thereof,

il applicatde)

ifi Mew Accownting Prensus s in March 2016, the Franod
Accounning Standeed Board (FASE™) isted an Accounting Sundands
Upcdane: (“ASUFY, ASLL 200605, which prowicks guidince relased 1o the
impact of desivative contract novations on certain relabonrdhips under
Acoounting Standards Codfication Topc ("ASC) 815 The ASU s effaive
for annusl pesiods begrning after December 15, 2017, and inlenm periock
wathin fiscal years beginning after Decsmber 15, 2008 At this ime,
ranagement s evalisating the implications of these changes on e finandal
shatements

In August 2006, she FASE issued an ASLL ASL 201615, which amends ASC
230 to dafify gudance on thi d asssbcation of certan cash reosipts and cath
paymenis on the Statement of Cash Aows, The ASU 5 effective for annial
pericads beginning atter December 15 2018, and interim periods Degumng
after Decenber 1%, 2019 Al this time. management is evaluating the
ienglications of these dhanges on e finandal statements

In hgwember 2006, e FASE Bausd an ASLL ASU 2006-18, which amends
ASC T30 to provdde guidance on the dassification and pressntation of
changes in restricted cath and restricted cash equivalents on the Statement of
Cash Rows. The ASLs efecive for annusl periods begnning afier Degembes
15, 2018, and interim petiods beginning sfter December 15, 2009 AL this
time, management is evaluating the impications of these dhanges on the
financia sratments

In MWarch 2007, the FASE ssued an 5L, A5L 200708, wiidh prowides
quidance related to the amortization period for ceriain purchased callable
el westuribes hild 30 4 premagm The ASLU S eflecie Tof annu sl pediods
b{«‘plu‘uu-{] after Detember 15, 2009, and svbsim pesiock within fical YEHS
beginning after December 15, 2020, This ASU was adopied by the Funds. The
implementation of the ASU dd not have an impact on any Funds financal
ALAlETEALS

3 INVESTMEMNT VALUATION AMND FAIR WVALUE
MEASUREMENTS

{n) Investment Valeation Policies The price of a Fund's units is based on
e Funsf's MAW. The KAy of 3 Fund, or aach of i dasses. & spplicable, is

determined by dviding She total value of portiolio imeettments and ather
Ssers suitunsbie oo that Fund or dass, less any Bakilides, by the ot
bt of unets conseanding of Mhal Fund o Class, On esch Furd™s Dedling
Doy (3 debcnbed i e curment Oitenng Memdrandum of the

Trust), Fund ueats &n¢ ordnaey walued a5 of the dose of reguisr rading on
The New Yok Stodk Exchandge ("NYSE Oode™). Information that becormes
kw10 the Fundk of thesir sgents Ster e time 25 ol which NAY has been
caloulated on 3 partiodlar day will not generally be ysed fo retroactvely adjust
the price of a security of the MAY detemined eafer that day. Each Fund
resifves the rght to change the time a5 of which (& respective NAY &
calculated if e Furd dosss earker

For purpodes of cladating & NAY, portfolia wcurities and ather agses for
which market quotes ane readly avallable are valed at market valoe Marbet
vake b generdly determined on the basis of ofical desang prices or the last
riported sales prices, of if no sales are reported, based on quotes obtsined
frcen established market makers or prices dnduding evalpated prices) supplied
bry thie Fuamds’ apgroved pricng sendces, quotation reporing systerns and
ather rind-panty Souroe (rogether, "Fridng Senvioes™) The Funds will
norrmially use priong data for domestic equity seourities recehed shortly after
the MY4E Close and do not nommally tate into acmuns rading, dearances o
weterments thal Lake place afer the NYSE Close. I market valud podng it
ursed, 3 foeeign (non-U.5) equity security raded on a foreign exchangs of on
mige than one exchange i sypically valued using pricing iedommation from the
exchange considered by the Manager to be the prienany exchange A foreign
(non=LES ) equity securitywill be vilued a5 of the dose of trading on the
forelon exchange, of thie NYSE Close, if the NYSE Close ooours before the end
of rading on the foreign exdhange. Domestic and foreign (non-L15 ) fxed
irscome seaunities, non-exchange iraded derivatives, and equity options are
morenally waued on te burst of Quotes obaained tomm broloers and geale o
Pricing Sendoes uting data refleaing the emfier dosing ol te pinapal
markets fior toose secunities. Frices obtained from Priong Sersices may be
Bt on, among other things, information provided by mardoel msken of
estimates of market values cblaned from vield data rdating to invesiments o
seurides with smilar charactenistcs. Certan fined income: sequnites
purchated on 3 delyyed-delivery basis are marked to markel daily until
setfement at the fonward sertement date Exchange-traded optices, eept
equTy options, futures and cptions on fulures fvhich are dsoussed below),
arewalped at the setHement price determined by the relevant exchange Swap
agriernints ane valued on e basis of bid quones obsaned from beokers and
deders or market-based prices supplied by Fridng Sesvices or ofher pridng
sources. A Fund’s investments in open-end management invesiment
companies, other than exchange-traded funds (“ETFs7), are valued at the
WA of wch invesiments. Open-end management invesiment companies
may ndude sffiated hndk

o 5 Peiign (fehi-L. 5 ) eduity siturity’s valiet fud fateialy dhanged st the
dhime of the Ledunity’s primany enchange of prnapsl markel bul before the
WYSE Close, the seurity may be valued 31 f3r value based on procedares
estabdhed and approved by the Manager. Forsign (nor-LU S ) equity
serites that do fot trade when the NYSE is open are o valued at far
vakue. With respect to fonsign (non-U5 ) edquity securities, 3 Fund may
determine the fair value of imvestments based on information poovided by
Pricing Senvices and other thind-parsy vendeors, which may recommend far
vake of adjusiments with reference 1o other seourities, ndices or #sels In
S i) it thied Tl v aBon 14 fegeted & B |_$_-[|,-.‘|'|‘n‘4||-_:| Yt

vithaes, & Fund may, armdng other tingl, combder Significant events (which
iy b conickenid 0 ineduadie chorges in the walue of U5 eaunified of
sequnifies indices) that ooour after the digse of the relevant market and before
the NYSE Close. & Fund may uslize modsing tools provided by shind-party
winidors 8o determine fair values of foreign (non-L15 ) seamities. For thess
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purposes, any movementin the appficable reference index o instrument
("zero e between he earlier dose of e applicadle foreion meket and
1k NYSE Cloge may be deemed 1o b2 & Sgnilicant event, peomping the
application of the pridng moded {efectively resulting in daly fai

valpatons). Foreign exch anges may permil trading in Soreign fnon-U 5 ) equity
sacurities on days when the Tnast is not open for business, which may result
in a Fund's portfiolio Evestiments being affected when Uinithol ders are unable
b0 by o sell urits

Lol secured fioating rate koans for which an acee secondary market edsts
104 el able g will e walized a1 the mesn of the Lt pradabie bediak
prrices o the markel for Such boans. a0 proicked By a Pr ) SErace  SEn
secured floating rate loans for which an active secondary market does not
et 10 & relidble degres will be valwed o {ar value, whidh is misnded 1o
Approsimate markel valiee In valuing a senicr secmed Boating rabe loan a1
falrvale, the factors considered may indiade, but are mof limited 1o, the
Tollowing: () the qedtworthiness of thi bocrower and any intermediane
participans, &) e teems of thie laan, () recent prices in e markel o
similar oans, i any, and () recent prices in fe marked for insruments of
similar quafity, rate, period untl next inferest rate resat and maturity

Imeestments valued in qumendies other than te funcional qamency

of 3 Fund are converted 50 the functional currency wing exchangs rates
thidned from Fridng Sendces. As a result, the value of sudh investments and
in furn, 1he HAY of the Fund's mits may be affected by changes in the valee
of cusrendies in relanion 10 the fencional currency. The value of imsesimens
rradded in Soreian mndtkers of dersoimmated m oarences ather than

I funchional a refy ray e affected Sgnificanty on b day that the Trust i
nod open Sof Dusneds AS & reult, f the extent that a Fund helk foreign
{non-U % Jinvesimenss, the value of tipss investments may change at times
wihven you Ccanmat pundhase, redesm or exchange wnits and hievalue of such
Frvectments sill be reflacted in the Fund's nest calndated MAY

Imeestmen i for which market quotes or market based valuations are not
repdly aeailpbie o valued a0l vidoe 8 determined in good Fath by

the Manager of persons acting 2 their direction. The banager has adopted
mesthods for valuing seqaities and other asets in deasmstances where
ikt quobes ame fot readily available, and has delegated to PIMCD the
respansibiiity for applying the far valuation meshads. n the event that markel
auotes of marked based valuances are ok readly avalable, and the sty
or asselcannot be valued pursuant bo a Manager approved valu ation method,
e value of the seamity of asse?will be determined in good faith by e
Watustion Comer mee. Market quotes se considered not resdily invailabie n
armsLances wheere (Rheri s an abdence of curment of fehalle marke!-taded
data g, rade information, bidsk information, indcatve market
quatations (“Broker Quotes®), Pricing Sendces’ prices), induding whise svents
oocur atter e dose of the: rebevant maket, but pce Bo the NYSE Clote, that
manerially afec e values of the Fund®s secntied o assels. In addson,
mrarken quotes ane considered not readly available when, due 1o exmacdnary
arqumstances, the enchanges of markels on which the sequnses rade & rot
open for trading Sor e enfire day and no other market prices e avalable
The MI.‘\!!jH’ 15 s panii bl Sor :T:r'nua'\-llnl;'_p.’ﬁ'llll,'uul eventi Bhal may
rraterially afeq She vl of the Fund's seousties or a5 and b
detenaning whethér B value of the applicable Seouiieg o sdens shauld be
resvalieated in Bght of such sgnificant events

When 3 Fund uses L1 valiason 1o determine the value of 8 portiolo sequrity
of Difver asset for purposes of calaalating its MAY, widyirvesmments will not
be priced on the basis of quotes from the primany mardiet inwhich they ane
tradisdd, bl rather mury be priced by anctter metdd that the Managir of
festicans. SCting a1 ther dnection befieve mflects Rar value. Fair valuasion may
reqire subjective determinafions sbout the value of 2 senrity, Wwhile

the Trust™s policy i intended 1o resultin a cabculagion of a Fend's HAY that
Tty reflects security values & of the time of pricdng. the Trest cannol ensure
that fair walues determined by the Manager or persons acting at ther
derection would acarately refiect e price that a Fured could obdain for a
Seciny i it weere 10 cipose of thal security &5 of the geme of pricing (or
Inestance, in 4 fodced of didtresied Sale) The peices uied by b Fund iy ditfer
trom the walue that would be realized if the seounites were sold

{b) Fasir Visdwe Hiorarchy U5 GAAP desaibes fav value a5 She price that

a Fund wooahd receive to sell an asset or pay 1o ranster a liability in an ordesty
vardaction betwesh madkel paetapents al the measurement dane. B
estabdishes & Tirvilue hier anchy that profn e nputs 0o valua Bon method
avd requasres. cisdosure of the far vatue hierardwy, separabely for each major
category of asuets and Rabilities, that seqregates far valee mesunements into
lieveld (L 1, 2, o 3 Thee iryputs oo e thodology wied for valuing sedrities
are nof necescanty an incication of the ks sodated with investing in tose
seowites. Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the fair value hierandy are defined as follows:

® Leved 1=Cobed prices in adne markets of exdhandges fof Kentical adsets
anud akwlitie s

w Ll 2= Signifcant ather (iereable inputs, whith muy mdode, bun jee
ot limited to, quoted prices for similar assets or Babilies in markets that are
active, guoted prices for identical or simiar assets or Babdities in markets that
e noLadive, inpats atfher than quotied priors that aee obgendable for the
axtets of labilities sudh & iterest rates, yield aunves, wolatdities, prepayment
speads, loss severities, oedi rides and default rates) or ofer market
coreboraned inputs

= Lo 3—Significant unabsereable inputs baded on te bétt information
available in the deasmstances, 1 the extent obsenvable inputs are ol
available, winch may indude ssgamptions made by the Manager of persons
acting &t thesr direction that are used in determining the fair valse of
investments.

I accdrdande with fhe requrements of LS GARE, the amounts of ranslers
beestwveen Levels 1 and 2 and trasefers in and cut of Level 2, If matenid, are
desclodid in the: Nates 1o Schedule of Investments for each respective Fund

For far '-'J’.l,u'.r:-:l';l.'_.'nl; sgnificant whibdenssbie inputs, L5, GAAP figuires 2
recondliadon of the beginning to ending balances for reponied fairvalises that
peresents chamges atiributable fo readized gain (oss), unredized appredation
{deprediation), punchases and sales, acoued decounts (premiums), and
transfers in and cut of the Level 3 canegory during the period The end of
perind value is used o the ransters betasen Levely of the Funds” sssets and
liabllities. Additionally, 15 GAAP requires quantitathe infarmation regarding
the significant uncbeervable inputs ened in the determination of Lar value of
aasals of liabikties categonzed as Level 3 in the fair valos Herardhy In
sccordance with B requiraments of LIS GAAF, § 1 value hisfarchy, andif
maleri, & Livel 3 reconclistion and detsils of signicant unobdenabie
inguats, have been indudied in the Motes to Schedube of Investmants for sach
respectie Fund

{c) Valuntion Techaiquez and the Fair Walue Hierarchy

Lewel 1 and Level 2 wnding as2etz and tading labilities, st laie value [he
vk ation reethods foe “Technigues™) and sigrificant inputs usad in
detemrinang the fairvatves of portalio seaanies o olfer asses and liabdides
categoeized 35 Level | and Level 2 of the far walue hieranghy are 35 follows

Fimed irvcoime: Securites mduding corporale, comeertibie and munidpal bonds
and notes, LS gowermiment agendes, LS. meatuny obligations, soversign
fesues, bank loens, comvenible prederned securnities and mon-LLS, bonds are
norrnally walued on the basis of quotes obtained from brokers and dealers o
Pricing Services that use beoker-dealer quolabons, reported Bades of
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waluation estimates from their mlemal pridng models. The Pridng Serdces?
ntemal maodels e inputs that ane obsenvable such a5 ssuer dedals, intenest
rates, yisld Qarves, prepament speeck, credhtimkouspeesds, defaul rates and
quated prices for similar assets. Seurifies that wse smilar valuation
ekt And inguts a5 desribed albove ane Cabego d i Level 2 of the
Eair vl hisrachy

Finesd i come Securities purchased on & delayed-deliveny basis of 454
repurchase oommitment in 4 sale-buybade ransacon are marked i markeq
haidy untl setSement a1 the Torwaed settlement dane and are categonned 35
Lewed 2 of the fair value hierandry.

Mortgage-related and asset-badbed secunBes are wsually isawed a5 separate
tranches, of dasses, of seoantes witun each ded Thets E0unDes ae J0
oy walped by Pridng Senaces tat use beoker-cealsr QuoLatong,
reported rades or valuaBon eshimates from their internal pridng models. The
picing models for thede seduities wsually consider tranche-level attrbutes,
current marked data, esimated cach floss and market-based vield spreads for
each ranche, and inoporate deal ooll ateral perfarmance, as availabde
Mortgage-related and asset-badoed sequniBes that uie similer valration
techraques and ingurs a5 desribed above ane categor zed a5 Level 2 of e
fair walue hietarchy

Cornmion shadks, ETFS, exchange-traded nates and finandal derivative
instrurends, such. &5 futures contracts, right and warrants, o options on
fusures that are traded on 2 national securites exchandge, are stated at te
last repaorted sale of settlement price on the day of valuation. To the extent
Ihess secunites are activedy maded and valuaton adjustments are nat applied,
themy e categor ped 45 Level | of the tar value hisrandhy

Ireestmeen t5 v aloed {denominated) in cumendes ather than te funcional
currency of & Fund are comverted 1 the funcional cunrency using exchange
rates (qumendy spot and Sorward rates) obtained from Pridng Services. As a
result, e MAY of a Fund's units may be affected by changes in the value of
qurrendies in felagon 1o the Suncqional curmenay, The value of sequnities ir aded
i1 foresgn markels of denomminated in currendies other tan the Sl
airendy may be affected sonehcan®y on & Gy than the Trust 55 nof open for
business. Valuation adustments may be applied o certain sequrites that ame
soledy waded on a foreign exchange to aocount for the muarke] movement
betwieen shee close of the Tordgn markes and the NeSE Close. These seauwities
are valued using Fridng Services that congider the correlation of the trading
pantems of the foelgn sequriny 10 the intraday srading in the U5 mareets for
rvestments. SequnBies using thede valuaton adusiments are categonized a5
Level 7 of the far value fierandhy. Prefered sequnises and other equilies
fraded on inacive markets of valwed by reference 1o smilar insruments are
alsy cateqorized a5 Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Equany-linked seuities are valued by referending the last reported sale or
settlernent price of thee linked referenced eguity on the dayof valuation
Forsign eachange adrsiments are applied o the last reported price to
oorvvert e linked equity™s rading cumency to e coniract's setting aimency
Thesse EviStments ane categoeined &5 Livel 2 of the Rar value Rierandy

Inveresammen 15 in Tecps ered open-end imestment comganies (pmher than ETFS)
will b valued based upon the MAYS of sudh imediments and are categornized
a5 Level 1 of e fair value hierarchy. investiments in unregistered open-end
Ienvestment oomganies will be caboulited badsed upon the Navs of wch
imvectments and are considered Level | provided that she NAVS are
obdervable, caboulated daty and are thé value s witich both purchaes and
et will b conducted

Erquity exchange-raded options and over the counter nandal dervafive

instruments, such as forward foreign cumency contracts, options contracts, o
S dgreRmnents, desive thei value from undertying siset prices, indoss,

reference rates, and other inputs or @ combination of these factors. Oither
Than swap agreements, which are viaksed using 2 Droker-dealer bid quotation
o on marked-based prices provided by Frideg Sendces o other pridng
sources, Shese contracts are nosmally vahsed on the basis of quotes cbitained
o & quitadon PeprTing Syiem, ek muckel ke of PIII‘_'II'r:j
Senices (nomally determined a5 of the NYSE Close). Depending on the
peicechect and dhe permrrs of the trardaction, Snandial desfvative instnaménts can
b wdlued by Fricing Senices using a seried of tedwmigques, indudng
simidation pricng modss. The pridng modeds use inputs that are obsened
troem actively quoted markets such a4 quoted prices, tsuer details, indioes,
backrask speeads, imerest rates, impled volatlites, yield qunves, deddends and
enchange fated Angndal demalme insruments et e drmls vauabon
technigues and inputs as desaibed above are categorized as Level 2 of e
fair vidue histarchy

Centrally deased swaps listed or raded on 2 mulstaeral or trade fadliny
platform,_ asch & & registered axchange, are valued at the daily setlement
prrice determined by the respective exchange (if avallable). For centrally
desred credit detaull avaps, the deaning Taality fequars it memben 10
percvidie actionable price levels ammoss complete ben snachunes. These levels
dongwath external thind-party prices ae Used to prodince dady Sefement
poriced Thete secmities are categonized as Level 2 of the Lar value heranchy
Centrally deared interest rate swaps ane valued weing a prcing maoded that
references the undeftying rates ndudng the cwsmight indes swap rate and
London intsrbank Offered Rate ("LIBOE®) foreard rate to produce the daly
serement pice. These Securities s categonded o Lavel 7 of the far valioe
Perarchry

Lewel 3 trading nzaets and trading Habilities, ol fale value When o far

vk ation method is applied by the Manager that uses significant
unobsenvable inputs, investmenis will be priced by 3 method hat

the Manager or persons aciing &t fer drecton beleve refecs far valee and
Sre categnized o5 Leved 3 of the Tar valde hierarcey. The vauabion
technicues and significant inputs wged in determining the fair wabues of
portiolio aasets and Fabaitees canegorized a4 Level 3 of the lir vahes Ritrandy
o s Tolows

Prcey pricing prodedures 0 e base pice of & fosd inaoime Se0uiny and
sutseguently adust the price proportionally bo market value changes of 3 pre-
deteiraned ety deemed 10 be oomparable in doraton, generdlly 4 U5
Treasing or soversign note based on country of issuance. The base price may
b & broker-desler quote, ransation price, of an intemal value a5 derfved by
anabysis of imarket data The base price of the seaxity may be retelon 4
periodic backs based on the aailabling of market daa and procedres
approveed bry the Vak ation Commithee. Significant changes in the
unabsansable inputs of the progy pridng prooess (the base price) vould rewll
i et anad peopoitonal chamded i the fairvaie of the sedungy Thess
sequities are categorized as Level 3 of the fair walue hierardyy:

Short-Lem debt instomenis (sudh a5 commendal paper) having a remaining
maturity of B0 days of lets may be wakied 31 amortized gost, so long as the
arnoatzed cot value of such shon-tenm debl s mumsnis is appraamately e
same a5 the fair value of the instrument as determined without the we of
A oo valuanion. Thess securities de categonized &5 Leved 7 of Lewel
3 of the far valise hierandvy dependng on the source of e base poice

4, SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

in} Delayed-Delivery TransacBons Corta n Funds may purchase or sell
SEquities on 3 delayed-Celnery Dasks. These IransaKms maohe &
aomrmirnent by 3 Fund 16 pordhide of Sl Seoun e Tor a predeemned [rice
or yield, with payment and delivery taking place beyond the astomany
setiement pericd When delayed-delivery ransactions are culstanding,
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& Funndwill designate or receive 35 collaterd liquid assets in an amamt
sufficient bo meet the purchiase price or respedive cbligations. When
prurchasng & semity o0 § il ayed-didivery Buss, a Fahd saEmes tie fights
and s of ownerhip of the wdunty, snduding the rrik of price and Weld
fluctuatdions, and takes such fluctuations into acount when determining it
WA A Fund may dispose of of renegofiate adelayed-delivery ransaction
Al it i enbened into, which may fesult in 4 realied gain of loss. Whin

a Furd had S0ld & security on a delaped-delreny bunsis, the Fund does not
participate im future qains and lomses with respect to the seaity

b} Indlatisn-Indexed Bends Cerfain Funcs may investin inflafion-indesed
bonds. Inflation-indeced bonds are fixed income secarifies whose prindpal
vadue s periodcaly adusted by the rate of inflation. The interect rate on
fore: bk i4 generally fosd an issisance i a rane kvt tran typical bonds
Crvir the life of an infladon-indexed bord, however, interest will be pad
based on a pindpal valise, wiich is adusted for inflation. Amy ingrease o
decregte in the peindpal amount of an indation-indeced bond will be induded
75 Incesest ingome on e Statemmenis of Operations, even though mvesion do
noT recene: thedr prindpal ontl matunty. Repaymment af foe i grl bond
principal upon matwity (a5 edusted for inlation) is gquarantesd in the case of
WS TS For bonds that do not provide & aelar quardniee, Bhe sdusied
principal value of the bond repaid 2t mansrity may be bess than the oniginal
principal

fe) Lean Participatiens, Assignments and Originations Corfan funds may
Frees] i dinect del insinurnents whech a0 pTEMets in SEM0un i oaed [o
lersdiers, of leniding Syndlicates by comporate, governmental, of other bomowers
A Fund’s investments in Boans may be in the form of partidpasions in loans o
assignments of 3 or 8 portion of loans from thind parties oo investments in o
arigrations of l1oans by the Fund A baan is often ademstid bired by 3 bank or
oifver Snanddl insitution (the Tender™) that acts a5 agent for 2l holders. The
agent adminishers the rerms of the boan, &5 specfied in the loan aoreement

oA Furd gy imeesd in reodtiple series o Branches of & loan, shich may hae
warging temes and camy different assodated fiks. When & Fund purchases
assigrments from lenders it aoguires dired rights against the boimowers. of the
loans. These loans may indude partidpations in bridge logns, which are loans
Rakcen cut by bomowers Tor & thort penod (fypcally bess than one year)
pending amangement of moee permanent fnandng through, for ecampls, the
wsuance of bonds, frequently high yield bonds issued Sor e purpose of
aoouistions

Thee types of koS and redaned invisiments i wiich e Fumds IPuly ifrvesn
ificlude, aiang oRhers, Senior Hodnd, Sebordaated ke [ ndudng woond
fien loans, E-Notes and mezzanine bpans), whole loans, commerdal real
estate and other commendal loans and sructured dpans. A fund may
orlgimate boans or aoquine direct intenesks in boans throwgh pimary laan
distributions andfor in private ransactions, in e case of whordnated |oans,
It may be ggnificant indebiedness ranking shead of the borrower's
obligaton to e holder of such alean, Induding in the event of the
roamoweer's inscheengy. heezzanine loans are typically seasred by a pledge of
AN ey inberest in e Momgage bormower Mt owrs e real eiLae 1 he
13 3 i et N A mrigage

Imvesstmeen s in Toans may indiode unfunded loan commitments, whidh ane
contrachaal obligations for funding Unfunded |oan commitments may incude
et credin faclives, whech may obligane & Fund 1o apply sddtions cath
o the bmowver on demand . Unfyrded Boan commmitments. eepreent & Liture
obligaton in full, even though a percentage of the wmmitted amount may
R be utdlized by e borfower. When investing in a lean partdpation,

& Furd haes thee right 10 recene paments of pindpal, snberest and amy fees bo
witich it s entitled only from the lender welling the koan agresment and mly
upon seceipt of payments by the lender from the bomower, A Fund may

receive @ comimitmen  fee based on the undrawn porfion of the underying
liree: of crediit poron of & koan. I Cestan drqummritances,  Rand may receive &
perudty i upon the prepayreent of & boan by 3 bofiower. Fees eamid of
paid are reconded a5 a component of interest income or inberest expensa,
fesspectively, on the Stanements of Cperanices

agoof My 31, 2ME, the Fonds had no unfusded loan oommimments
ditanding

i Maerigage-Belated and Other Azset-Backed Secwrities Certan Funds
may Irvest in morigage-related and other asset-bacied seqanites that diredly
o indivecly fepretent 3 pathipation in, of ane seauned by and payable from,
loams on real property. Morigagefelaned seomities are areged from pook of
residential or commendial mongage oans, nduding morgage loars mack by
savings and loan irstitions, morbgage bankers, commencal banks and
athers, These seourimes provide & monthly parsment which consses of both
inferest and prinopal Interest may be determined by fined or adistatde rates
Thee rate of prepayments on underying mortgages will affect the price and
volatility ol @ morigage-tel aved security, and may have thi effect of
shonening or extending the effective duration of the sxurity relative towhat
was aniopated at the Gme of purchase. The Bmedy payment of prindpa and
insterestof certan mortgage el ated securities is guaranieed by she &l tanh
and crediit of the U5, Gowerrment. Pools areated and guaranteed by non:
goverrenentyl Hsuers, nduding govennmen spaftoned COFPORaHoNS, My be
supported by wanious forms of Emurance or guarantees, but there can be no
aumance that private imsurers or guaranbors can meet heir obfigations under
this insurance polcies of GUatanles srangements. Mamy' of Be ks of
Inwersting in muortgage-refated seourites seoaned by commendal mortgage
Iours. refiecy e effects of local and ofher economic conditions on real estate
markets, the ablity of tenants %o mabe leate payments, and e abdlity of 2
property to atract and reran tenanss These seouites may be less ligad and
may exbibat greater price wolatility than other types of mortgage-related or
ather asset-badbed secunties. Other gose-badoed tecunises ane oreansd from
ey Bypes of Assets, ndudng suta lians, aed cad recenabies, home
equity loars, and shadent koars

{n} Collaternkzed Mortgage Oblgations (“CN057) e debt oblicatons of 2
leigal entity that are oollatér dized by whole mortgage loans oF private
rgmgace bonds. and dewided i dadees. CMOS jre structumed inio maltiple
classes, often refered bo as "randves®, with each dass beaing a different
stated mabanity and entiled fo a dfferent schedule for payments of pincpal
and interest, indudng prepayments. CW04 may be s Bgud and may exhibil
greater price wolatling than other fpes of mongage-relatnd of siael-Dacked
LenmitEs

{0 Swipped Mortgage-Backed Securities (™00 57 are dervative muls
dass mortgage saourities. SMES are wsually tudued with wo dasses that
fescenae ciflenent proportions of the interest snd pindpal divibutions on A
pood of mortgage assets. An SMES will have one diss that wall receive Jl of
the interest {the interest-onby or "0 dass), while the ather dass will receie
the entire prndpal (fe pincipal-only of "PO dass). Payments received for
K5 are mduded in inberest ncome on e Statements of Operations. Begause
oy pricipial will B reverved a1 the manurity of an 10, adusments s made
iy he cost of e Seouiny on a monthhy busis unid manging. These
adustments are induded ininterest income on the Statements of Operations
Paryrraents reeivid for PO ne tredded 45 reductions i e 0051 and par value
of the Seurilies.

g Calll Ered Debt Dbligat (*CD0E™) induide Collaterali 2 Bond
Cibdiga ions (*CECs*), Collaberafized Loan Obligagons (“CL0s") and other
samilady stnachured seawities CBOs and CLOs are types of sssetbacked
seouites. & CBO is & trust which i Badoed by o dversified pood of Fegh sk,
Bicnw irnvesiment grad fixed income Seurities. A CLO-i5 4 inst iypecaly
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collaterdlized by a pocd of loans, which may induds, among ofhers, domestic
and foreign senior seoured loans, senion unseoured kg, and subordnate
corporate loans, induding loans that may be rated below investment grade o
equivalentunrated loare. The rigks of an investment in a CDO depend fargety
n the type of the collaterd secunties and e dass of tie COO N which

& Funi invests T addifon fo e pommal risks assodated with fived income:
securities disoussed elsswhens i this repon and the Funds’ Offering
Nemarandum (2 g, prepayment risk, aeditrisk, lHquidity sk, market sk,
sructural sisk, hegal e and intenest rane sk fwhich may be exacerbated if
the imtieresh rate pavabie on a sinyctured finandng dhanges based on

el ipies of chamges In intefest fates of imversely 10 chamges in intenest
rates)), CBOs, CLOs, and other €000 camy additional risks induding, but not
Ermiteed o, () the possibility that dstibutions from oollateral securities wal not
b aeruane o ke interest of ther paments, 1) the quality of the

ol aner 3l mnary declice im vl of delaalt, (5) & Fund mudy fvedd i CBOS
CLCH, of otbr COO0% thad are spbondrat 1o 0% casses, and {i) the
compsex stnncture of the sty may not be fly undersiood at Se tme of
irrvesitment aind mudy produce diputes with e suet of uhepedied
Frvestmeent results

b} Payment In-Kind Secupities Certain Funds iy invesd in payment inind
sscurities (UFIKE"). PIKE mdry givee T istu i opSon A0 eadh interest
payment date of mating intenest payments in esther cash andvor additional
debit sequrities. Those addidonal debt seouides umally hawve the same tams,
ncluding maturity dates and intenest rates, and ayvsodated ddes o the
origimal bonds The daly marker quotations of the ceiginal bonds may indud
e sarued interest (redemed 10 a5 & "dirty price™) and requEne & pra fata
adustment from the unrealized appredafion or depredation on investments
B interest reveivable on the Statements of Assets and Labilites

1) Reatricbed Swcuritien Certain Funds may hobd mvestrments that are
subfec? fo begal of conmraciua restrictions on resale. Thete secumtes may be
sold pervasedy, but are required o be regsiered o exempied fom sich
registration befione being sofd to the public Frivate placement sequrities are
generally consdered 1o be resmcied Dispoal of resmed securitles may
irwolve Gme-corsuming negotiafions and expences, and prompt sale at an
acoephable price may e difficult o achieve Restricted seqwitses cutstanding
Aty 31, 2008 ane dackesed in the Botes to Sdwedule of Bves iments

i U, Gavernment Agencies ar Gow - Sp d Enterp
Ceatain Funds may ivwest in seamities of 1145 Govemment agencies of
government-sponsored entesprises. US Govemment seorities ane
abligasons of nd, in ceriain cases, quarantesd by, the U5 Gondrment, it
agendes of mimementalites. Some U5 Goverfiment secunbies, sudh a5
Treasury bllls, potes and bonds, and sequrites guaranteed by the Government
Mashonal Margage Aswodation ("GNMA" or "Grinie Mae"), are wupponed by
thex full faith and aredit of the L 5. Government; oshers, such as thase of the
Federal Home Loan Banks, ane supported by the right of the issuer 10 bomow
frorm the LS, Department ol the: Treasry (e U 5 Tresury™ and others,
ek &5 those of the Federd Manoragl Moriage Ssodabon ("FRIWA™ o
“Fannie Mae™), e sapported by the desaetionary authonny of the LLS
Gowednirent 1 purchade the agency's obligatons, LS Govemiment Securities
may inchade 2ero cospon secunifies. Zen coupon seaurifies do nod distritute
inbenest om & curment bads snd tend b be subject toa greale fisk than
imleties -paying securities

Govemment-related guarantors (&, not backed by the ful faith and edit of
thes W% Govemnment) indude FNMA and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation ("FHLMCT of “Fredcie Mac™). FRMA 15 2 govemmen -4pon sored
corporation, FMA purdhases cofvenbional (e, not irdited of guaranteed by
amg Qowernment agency) residenitial mortgages from a list of appeoved
sellerienicers which indude state and federaly chartered tinings 2nd loan

assodations, mutal savings banks, commenda banks and aredit unions and
monmpage benkers, Fass-thiough secunites Baued by FHMA @ quarantesd &5
o timety payment of prndpal and interest by FMA, but are not badesd by
the full faith and edit of the U4 Govemment FHLMC isuses Participaton
Cenificates (T8, which are pass-thicugh teuites, eh rpresning &
landrided intenestin & podl of residential momgages. FHLMC guarantees the
timedy payment of interest and Wtimate colfection of princpa, but PCs are not
bk by the sl $aith and credil of the U5, Goermmment

R -8 TN SArSEGRES CIN b s vahene 8 Fand teeks o etend the
ExRTATION OF rrsunity of & poumon, dech 3 0 TRA Sdunity on 30 uh derying
asset, by diging out the position before expiration and opening a new
position with respect to wibstantialy e same undertying et with a later
expiration date. TEA secunites purdhased of sold &e reflocted o the
Statements of Assaty and LiakeSties a5 an awel o labilty, respectively

ke Whea-lzsued Tramsactons Certun Funds miy pundiase of Sell setunlie
o wihisn-assued Badis. These Sransactions sre imade oondiionslly because 3
sequity, although authorized, has not yet been issued in the market. A
comemiment is made by a Fund ho purchase of sell these seqmities for a
priedetermined prce of yisld with payment and delivery taking place beyand
the astomary setement penod A Fund may sell when-issued seasifies
befiore thiry are detivened, which may result in a realized gain or loss

5. BORROWIMNGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The folkowing disdasunes contan information on e Funds” abdity tolend or
borrow Cah O SeCuriies 1o the extent penmitted under te Offertng
Mermorandum, whildh may be viewed 35 borowing o finandng o ansacions
bry thee Fumds. The location of these instruments is desaibed below . For a
detaled desciption of credit and coanterparty ridks that can be assodated
W harmosn. g and bt Iinamr.] ranshcnons, plidne see Note 7,
Principal Bisks

in} Repurchaze Agresmmats Certain Funds may engage in repurchase
agreements. Under She termis of & typical repurchase agréement, a Fund takes
possession of an underhying debt obligation (ol steral) subjedt to an
clfiation of the teler 1o repurchae, Jod & Fund [0 reell, the obligation a1
0 aresd-upon price and Bme 0 a0 open mananity repuichate agresment,
there & no pre-determined repurchase date and the agreement can be
tesmminated by the Furnd of counterparty at any time. The market value of the
collateral must be equal 10 or excesd the total amount of e repurchase
otiigations, induding interest Repurchase agresments, induding acomaed
invtrest, ane indhuded on the Statements of Assars and Lisblites. interest
earned is recorded a5 & compoment of interest indomes on the Matements of
Operations. in periods of inmeased demand for collaterdl, a Fund may pay a
fee for receipt of collaterd, which may reult in interest expense to the Fund

(b} Reverzs Repurchase Agresments Cerlan Fund may enfef ino nevers
repurchase agresmenty In a reverte repunchase sgreement, a fmnd defvers a
seqpityin sxchange for cash 10 3 fnandal institugion, the countematy, with
& S e agreement W repaichate tee same o wbstannally the same
seduity atan agreed upon price and date. In an open matuwity reverse
repurchase sreecnent, there i no pre-getermined repurchase date and the
apisernint can b terminated tey the Fund or counterparty at iy ime A Fund
i enntisd o regeive prncipal and Btenes payments, i Ay, Ml 00 P
seity delivered bo the counterparty during the tem of the agreement Cash
ridihied in exchange fof dedinities deieted plus soiusd inbenest payrents i
b rade by 8 Fusnd bo counberparties e reflecied & a liakilty on the
statements of Assets and Liabeities interest payments made by & Fund 1o
Counterparties ane recorded & a component of inferest expense on the
Statements of Operations. in pendds of indreased demand for the security,

Erventl Papard | Muy 57, 20§ &2

237/352



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Notes to Financial Statements

Ooooooooooooooooooad

& Furvd mupy receive a fee fior wse of the security by the counterpary, which
may result in interestinoome ko a Fund. A Fund will segregate assets
determined bo be liquid by FIMC O or well athensise cover it obligations
UnCer TevEsie repanchase Mpetmen

{c] Sale-Baybacks Cenan Funds may enter into finandng ransactions
referred to & “sake-buybades’. A saletuvbade ramsaction comsists of 3 sale of
asearityby a Fond to a finandial institution, the counterparty, with a
smultaneous agresment to repurchase the same of substantially the same
SeCuriny 4t An sgreedupon peice and date A Fund 4 mol entitled o nedeive
princapal and intetest paytrens, i any, made on i seaaniny sold to e
oounierpanty during the termof the agreement. The agreed-upon proceeds for
securities 8o be repurchased by 3 Fund are reflected a5 a liability on the
Sraternents of Assets and Liabifites. & Fund will recogniae net income
represented by the prce differenitial bebeten the price receved for the
fransierred sequnty and the aoreed-upon repurchase price, This is commonly
rederred o &5 the “price deog® A price drop consisis of ) the foregone interest
and infabonary inoome adjusiments, if ary, a Fund would hawe othenwise
received had the security not been sold and (i) the negotiated finandng temns
bt @ Funad 3o o ierpamy Fl:vr-:-gt,nv meenest and inflationany income
addustrments, il amy, are reanded 35 mponen s of indereit income on the
Statemnents of Operations. Infersst payments based upon negoliated finandng
fenms made by a Fund 1o counberparties are reconded 3s a component of
befesl e on The Siatements of Operations. in pefods of indeated
derrand for the seduity, § Fund may receh a fee for use of the seawity by
e countedparty, which may resalt in interest income 1o a Fund. A Fund will
segreqate asers determined to be Bauid Dy FINKO or sl othenstie cover i
obliGaSons under sale-buvbade ramaczons

[d) Short Sales Certain Funds may enter into short safes ransactions. Short
sales ane transachons in whidh the Fund sefis a sequrity that it may not qam

A Fumid may make ghoet sales of ssauntes o (i) offset podential dedines in
long pesitions in simdar searities, (i) ioingease the fedbility of the Rand,
(i oo Imees e £ requm, (v &5 pan of a dsk abimage strategy, and () a5
part o its overgll podtiobo mansgement Sategies imobang the use of
derivative indtnaments. When a Fund engages in a short sake, it may bomow
e seqrity sofd short amd deliver it to the counterparty. The Fund wil
ordnaily have to pay a fee or premium o bomow 2 seourity and be obligated
0o repedy the lender of the security dmy diidend o interest that Aomees on the
security during the period of te loan. Securities soid in short sale ransactom
and the dhvidend or interest payable on such seaurities, if amy, are refected as
payable for shon sales on the Statements of Assers and Lisbities. Short sales
expose dhe Fund oo the ik that itwill be requined to cover its short positon
at.a e wihen the searity oF other asset has appdedated in walie, this
resulting in [osses to the Fund . A shoet sale 5 "aganst the b if

thee Funed holds in its portiodio o has the right So aoguire the seaunty sold
short at no additionsd cost A Fundwill be subfect to addSonal risks o the
exienit that it engages in shork sales that are not “against the box * A Fund's
koss on a short sale ould theorefically be unlimited in cases where the Fund is
unable_ for whateser reason, o dose out its shaoet paosidon

& FINAMCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The fillowing disdirsures contsin information on how and why the Funds use
Tindnaa derivatiee insnaments aod how fnancal dervative ndruments
aftec ®ie Funds’ faandal podition, fesilts of aperadand and cash floss, The
lacation and fair vakee amounis of these instruments on the Statements of
Assers and Ligbilities and the net realized gain foss) and net change in
wnrealized apprediation (depred ation) on the Statements of Operationd, each
canegorized by type of fnamoal dertvative contract and related fisk exposure,
are induded in a tabie o te Nodes 10 Schedule of Fvestments The finanaal

derivative instnoments cutstanding a5 of period end and she amounts of net
reabzed gain (o) and net changs in unnelized sppredaton (degredaton)
o finandd derivative instnaments duwing the period, s dedosed in the
hates 1o Schedule of rvestments, sene as indicatons of the volume of
financial derreative Sty Tor e Furds

in) Ferward Foreign Cumency Contracks Coiman Funds may enle o
fomward Soreign qumency contracts in connechion with satfing planned
purcharses of sabes of secqurities, to hedge the orrency sxpodure assodated
wilh Some of Al of 3 Fand 5 Se0unites of &5 4 part of an Ervesiment STategy
A Toreried Mo cutenidy CORTTBCL I 3 ieeiment betwien tid partics 1o
bary and sell a qumency at a set price on 3 fiture date The markef value of 2
Torward Soresgn cumency contract Ruchates with chandes in foreign asrency
exchange rates Fonwand foreign qufnendy dontracts ane marked to market
daly, and the change in value is recorded by a Fund a5 an unreaized gain o
lorss, Readized gaing of bosses sre equal to the difference between the value of
the contract at the Sme ilwas opened and the value at the Hme it wad dosed
) e reconded upon deliny of negeipl of the QETEnCy. Thite Conqracts
ey irvolve marke sk in exoes of the uneeaimsd gain of loss metleded on
fhe Statements of Assets and Liabilifies In addiion, a Fund could be exposed
o risk: if She countenpardes are umalble b meet the tenme of the contrads or
thie walai of B urendy changes. unlivoably 10 the fecional armendy. To
matigate suchi risk, cash or seosities may be exhanged 2 collateral pursaant
i the terms of the underying conracts

Certain hunds having a hedged dass may alsoenter into formard forsign
ouimendy condracts designid to offset the effect of hediging at the Fund level in
oeder toBeave the hedged dass with an exposure bo cunrendes other than the
tuncBional aamendy Thire can be 1o Quarantee that thete dins spedfic
fomward foreign cumenioy contracts will be suocesshul

{h) Felures Comtsmcts Certain Funds may enter into fubores confracts. A
futres confract is an ageeement 1o buy or sefl 3 seqanty of ofher assetfor a
setprice on & fulure date. A Fund may yse fubwres aoniracts ko manage ks
exposute B the Securities markens of 0 mMovemens in intenest rates and
currency values. The primary risks assodated with the we of fatuees conracs
are the mmperfect aorrelation beaween the dhange in marbet valie of the
seiarites hedd by & Fund and the prices of futunes contracts and the possibility
of an iliguid market. Fusures contracts ace valued based upon heir quoted
daly setfernent prices. Upon entening into 3 fubures confract, a fund is
rescuingsd b chepatit with 105 Tutured Decker a0 amdount ol cath, U5
Governiment and Agency Obligations, or sefect soversign delt, in accordance
with the initial mangin requirements of the broker or exchange. Futures
ConERACEs. are markoed 1o madkel daly and based on such movements in e
price of the contracts, 3n approgiiate payable of recetvable for the change i
vakae may be posted of colledied by the Fund (“Funanes Variaton Mangin™)
Gaims or losses are rémgne ped bat naot aonsidersd realized unitil the confracts
epine or dode. Futunes contrads indobve, bo varying degrees, risk of lossin
excess of tie Fuliees Vanaton Magn indinded within exchange aded o
ceniraly dianed finandal derbeative instruments on the Starements of Asses
and Liabilifies

{e) Opthens Contrmets Certain Funch maywiite or purchase cptions 1o
enhance retums or b hedge an exisling positon or futare investment. Cenlain
Funds maywrite call and put options on securities and finandal dermvative
instruments ey own or inwhidh ey may imest. Weiing put apicns tend
Iy inoreirse & Funds exprdae 5o the underdhying instrament. Writing call
Cptiond ek 10 dednedse & Fund's exposing [0 the underhying indtrument
When & Fusdwnites  call of put, 3 smount equal 0o e premium fecened is
risconded a5 4 ligbility and suliequenthy marked b maioit 10 refled the
cumentvalue of the option wiittien: Thess listilites are induded on the
Stanerrents of Assstd and Liabiitied. Premmiurms neceived Snom wriling ol ond
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wihich eapire are treated as realizd gains. Fremiumes recefved from wiiting
opos which are exercised or dosed are added oo the procesds of offset
apaimst amounts paid an fie underhing batures, swap, seamity of qamency
tranzaction to determine the realized gain o loss. Certain opSons may be
il wa I rerriuns 00 b determined on 3 Tubane date. The presvaums.
thase optives are based upon implied vola®ity parameters at spedfied lems
A Fursd s & vweriter of 2n option has no contnod overwhether the underlying
Irsarumend miay be sold ("cal ™) or purchasad ("put™) and 25 a result bears the
rharket ridk o an unfiovorsble change in the price of the instrument underking
Tee wmilten opfion. There i the risk 8 Fund may not be able bo enter b a
dosing ransaction becarse of a0 iligad markes

Ceatain Funds may atso purchase put and Call options. Purchasing Call opions
temds b ivrease @ Fund's exposure to te underhing msument. Purchasing
put opdions Tends to decrease 3 Fund's exposure o the underying insrument
A Fund pays & presmium which i inducded 35 an asset on the Statements of
assers and Liabdides and subsequenty marked 1o market to reflect the
current value of the option. Fremiams paid for purchasing options whidh
eapire e Weated a5 redined losses. Cartan opgions may be purdhied with
premiums to be datermined on a future date: The premiume for these options
are barsed upon impliied woladlity parameters at spedfied terms. The risk
asgoayted wath punchasing put and Call opsons i mited bo the premium
paid Fremiums paid for purchasing options which are enendsed or dosed are
added to she amoynts paid or offse! againat the proceeds on the underying
iFvestment iransaction to determine the realized gain or loes whien the
underhing ransaion & eeoied

Interest Rate Swaptisns Certain Funds maywiite of purchase inferest rate
swaptions which e opBons to enterino a pre-defined swap agresment or
B shorten, extend, cancel of athenwise modily & dsting svap sgeerment,
by some specified date in the futyee. Theweiter of the svaption begomes the
COUnTEPaTy b0 e s If the binger exercises The inmerestrate svaption
agreement wil specify whether e bayer of the swapbon will be a fized-rale
recever of & BredHrale payed Lpon exerdise

Credit Delouh Swaplions Cenan Funds maywilie of purchase oedi defaut
S apions o hedge exposure 10 the et g of an invesment withoo
making a commitment 1o the underying instnament. A aredit default svapition
5 an egation B sl of bay credit protedion 10 & ipecibc refersnge by entiring
il & pre-cefined swap agresment by some specibed date in the hunure

Fereign Camency Dplisns Cetan funds may write of purchase foreon
airency options 10 be used a5 a thort of long hedge against possible
variations in forsgn eachange rabes or 50 Qain eposure Lo foreign cumendes

Dplioss sn Securiien Cortain Funds may wiite o puithoie options on
securilies i enhance reuens of [ hedge an edsting position of fulune
Irvestment. An option an 3 seoenity uses 2 pedied seounty as the underiying
instrument for the opfon contract

Inilatien-Capped Optiens Cortain Funch muywrite of purchase inflaticn
cappéed apions to enhance refrns of for hedgeng opportunibes. The purose
of puenchinsing inflation-capged cptions 55 0o probect a Fund trom mnBation
ercmion ahove @ certaln rate on @ given notonal exposre. &S00 can be
used 10 give downside protection 10 invesmenis in inflatondinked products

Interest Rate-Capped Options {ertain Funds may wiite or puschase interest
rae-Cappid oplions 10 enhande returms of Tor hedging opportunities. When
& Furndwiites an intitisd rate-capped option, &0 amoamt equal 1 the
premiism received i regieded a5 3 Balbility and subsequently marked i
mnarke] o reflean e ourentvalue of e apthon witten, Wien 3 Fund
punchases an interest rate-capped option, the Fund pays a premium which i
recorded a5 an 2361 and sabsequently marked to market to reflect the
aurrent value of the option. The porpose of pardhardng interest rate-capped

option:s is bo probect a Fund from Soating rate risk above a certain rate on a
given notional expaosure. A foor can be used to give downside prodection o
invteS LTS, ) uDerest rate linked products

Dptions on Exchange-Tinded Fubares Coatracts Cortan Funds rapwdite o
purchate oplons on exchange-traded futwes conmracts (“Futunes Option™) 1o
hedge &n exsting positon of fulee imeestment, for speoulative purposes of b
manage exposune B0 market mowements. A Fufures Cplion is an oplion
contract inwhich the underying insrument s a single fubores contract

{d) Swap Agreemants Certain Fundh may imeest in wwap sgresments Swap
yeements are bilaterally negatiated agreerments between a Fund and a
counierparty 1o exchange o wwip imvestment cash Bows, aviels, foreign
cumences of market-linked renems a1 spedfied, future intenals, Ssvap
Besrents may be privately negotiated in the over She counier markel (0TC
waps™) or may be deared through a third party, krown as 3 central
counierparty of derivatives dearing onganization (“ceniraly deared swaps™)
A Fund may enler into asset, gedit default, moss-cumrency, inferest rate, otal
retum, vanarce and other fomms of swap agresments to manage IS exposie
W L, Cummency, inkisestrate, commodity, equity and nflation risk_ in
connection with these agresments, sequrities or cash may be idendfied o
collateral or margin in aogordance with e tenms of te respective swap
aeements o provide assets of value and recourie in the event of default or
barkruptoynsohenty

Centrally deared swaps ae marked o market daky based upon vakeations as
determined fom fe underhing contrac of in aomordance with the
requitements of e central counterpany of demedtives deading organization
Changes in market value, if any, are refleced & a component of net duangs
in umrealizd appredation (depeecation) on the Statements of Operations
Daily chanages in valuwation of entrally dered swaps (“Swap Variaton
Wangin®), if any, are disdosed within centrally deared finanal dervative
Inestruments on S Sitemnents of Astets and Lisbilines. OTC S poyments
recedved of paid at the beginning of the measurement perinod are induded on
the Statements of Assets and Labilities and represent premiumes paid or
pestimved Upn enteing into the Saap sresment 10 compensate for
deflerences bebween the stated temes of the swap agresment and prevaling
market condidons (oredn spreads, cumendy enchange ranes, enbenest rates, and
other relevant fadors). Updont premivms recened (pand) are initially reccnded
36 fratelibes {assars) and subdeduently madked 0 markel i feflect the Qurnent
vakoe of the swap. These upfront premiums are reconded 35 realized gains or
lossies, on the Statements of Operations upon terminatdion o matuity of the
wedp, A luidison piynenl redened of made &1 e leimiation of the Svap
Is recorded as realzed gain or loss on she Statements of Operations. Met
periodic paymen s received or paid by 3 Fund are induded & part of reakized
gairs of bosses on the Statements of Operations

For purposes of up;’l:,-.r-:; & Fursd's invess et pdlidies and restriciond, svap
BFEEEnts e Qinerally valued by the Fund a5 market wilue. in The e of 2
aredit delault sap, in spphing certain of $he Fund's mvesiment polsdes and
restictons, S Furd wall value the cradt defadlt swap it noBonal value o
it Al eopodure value (e, the sum of the noSonal amaunt Sor She conrad

il the market value), but may value he medt defalt svap atmaret value
for purposes of apphing cemmain of the Fund's other mvestment polices and
resirichions. For example, the Fund may valos aedit default swaps at ful
exposre value for purposes of the Fund's credit quality guideines (if any)
brescause snch value in general better reflects the Fund's actual eoonomic
expoaire during e termof the aedit defauit swap ageement As arewlt, a
Fund My, B B, e Rolond] Eodune 0o a0 Sieel dad bebone |'|-:I||'||=fl
that 5 Fele of Isaer than thee Seanea] Dl of resmcton mabed in the

Fund's Cfering Memorandimn. In $his conbesdt, both the notional amoant and
the markel value may be positive or negative dependng on whether the Fund
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i selling or buying prodecion through the oedit defiasdt swap. The manner in
wihich certain seamities o other instuments are valued by the Fund for
purposies of applying investment polides and restricions may differ from the
franner in which those invesiments ae valed By other Types of investan
Entering inta these agresments involves, tovaning degrees, elements of
mberesl, oredn, markil and doomenlason ik in exoeis of e amounts
reogEited on the Manements of Assets and Liabiites. Such nds imeohve the
posabdity that there will be no liged market for these agreements, that he
ounterparty Y the agreements may default an its obligation to perlorm o
drsagres &5 0o the meaning of contractual teems in the agreements and that
thoere amay be unfavorable changes in interest rates

A Funids mandmum nisk of foss from countenpany et g s e discoun ted
ik walue of the cash fowd 10 be raceived Fom Hhe countepadty over e
contracrs remaining ke, ta the extent that amount i posithe. The ek may
b mtigated by haning a master netting arangerment betwesn 8 Fand and
the counierparty and by the pasting of collaneral to 2 Fund 5o ovr 3 Fund's
e 50 The Counlerpey

Credit Default Swap Agreements Certan Funch may wie cred 1 default
andps on Corporate, |oan, sovereign, LS. munidpal ar LS. Tredsury istees o
prosddie @ measure of proteciion againa defauhs of the fsauers e, wredace
fisk wathere 3 Fund owns o his egquomne 1o the referenced obifgation) of (o
ake an acirve Rong oF shart paosi on walh resped to de likelibood of 2
partiodar issuer's default Credt defaull swap agreemen s involve one party
making 4 streaen of paymnents (refemed to i e buyer of prosecton) o
anciter padty (the seber of prodecton) in -:.v:l_Tm-?i,' for thee right 1o recene &
spetfed et in the evern St the referenced entity, ot.i:}t'.ﬁﬂ of B, i
spedified in the avap soreement, undengoes & 6fLan credil event A b seller
of prosection on dredit default asvap agreements, 3 Fund will generally recie
from fhe buyer of protecsion a fxed rate of income throughout the tem of the
swap provided that tere is no cedt event As the seller, a Fund would
effectively add leverage toits podtiolo because, in addiion b its tolal net
assety, the Fundwould be subject 1o imvestiment exposure gn te notienal
amoint of the teih

If & Fund &5 a seller of protection and a credit event cocurs, as defined under
thee temes of that partiodar swiap agresment, & Fund will elther () pay 1o the
benver of profection an smount equal 1o the nobonal smount of the avap and
take defivery of the referenced obligation, other deliverable obligaton: or
undertying seaurithes comprising the referenced indexof i) pay anet
senlement smount i ke foom of cath of seoarnites equal 1o the notional
amaunt of the swap bess e recoveny value of the referenced obligation or
unicertying seori®es comprising e referenced index. | a Fund is 3 bayer of
protction And a cedil evenl ooours, 3% delned under B berms of that
parnadar saan AFeemenl. 4 Fund will sither (i) recene Inom the Seller of
protection an amount equal to the notonal ament of the swap and deliver
the referenced obligaton, other deliverable obligasons of underlying
securities compising the reberenced indiex or (i} recen a net setSement
amcuntin the form of cash or sequrities equal 5o the notonel amount of the
awap less the recovery value of the referenced obfigation of undeshying
securities comgiizing the referenced index. Recoveryvalues are esimated by
et makes congidenng ether indusany suandand recovery il of sty
specific factors and considerations untl 3 credt event ooows. f a gedt event
has ooourmed, the reasery vakoe is detemined by a fadfitated ascion
wihireby a renimum mambér of alowable brober bick, tagether with &
spedifed valuation method, are used o caloulate the settiement valee, The
abllity b deliver other obfigations may result in a chea pest-to-delver cption
{the buyer of protection's right bo choose the defiversbie dbligation with the
bowwest ey followang & cred event)

Credit defalt twap agreements on aredit indices imehor one party making a
smeam of payTments b0 another party in exchange for the mght 10 receive a
specified retum i the event of 3 wiribe-down, prindpal shortfall, inlerest
shortfall or default of 3l or part of the referen ced entities comprising the
aredininges A aeditindex 1 basket of oedninsiruments of expdunes
designed 1o be representative of some pan of the Tedit market 33 2 whole
Thetue incices. ant made up of reference areding that are judgid by a poll of
dealers 1o be he mosk Bauid entesin te aedl default seap markel baed
o fhe seschor of the indes Components of the indces may indude, but ane
ot limited o, imesiment grade securities, high yield seaumifies, sstet-badied
Seruities, emeiging markess, and’ o various aredt radngs within each seqor
Creddit inchoes, are traded wsng credn default awaps with standrcized (emns
indiading a ficed spread and standard maturity dates. An index cedit defaudt
S rederentes A8 e names in the andex, and il thene @50 detault, de oredt
el i Seithed hased on thit name’s weight in the index. The cormposition of
the inchces changes pericdicaly, uswally every six monthe, and for most
idlces, each name has an equal wehght in the index A Fund may use oedt
default veaps on aredt indices to hedge 3 portfolio of credit default swages o
beorus, wehiich is less expensive than itwould be S0 buy many edit default
A b0 achieve & Sy effet. Credit default swiaps on indioes ane
instrurments for pratecting investors owning bonds againss default, and
traders e Heem 1o speadabe on changes in cedit quality

mplied et spreads, represented in absolute terms, whilized in determining
the markel value of et defaull swap agresments on corporate, koan,
sowereign, U5, munidcipal or S Treasury issues 35 of period end, i any, ane
lschiriisdd in the Bates 1o Schedule of Investrments. They sene a5 an ingictoe
of the current atus of pinmrentDeramande ik vl rpeetent the likedhood
o risk of dedilr for the rederenced enniny. The implied aedit spread of 3
partioular referenced entity reflects the aost of buyingtselling proteciion and
iy inchede uplront paryTrents reduired o be made 10 enbe o the
ayeement Wider qredit spreads represent a detenioration of the rederenced
enfity's credt soundness and a greater likelihood o risk of default or ofher
el event ooowTing & defned under e terms of the sgesrment. For cedit
defaull ywap agreements on assetbacked tecurites and edit indices, the
quated markes prices snd renddting walues seree 3 the indicator of the ourrent
skafss of the paymentperfomance risk. InTeasing market values, in absobate
terme when compared to the notional amount of the wap, represent a
deteioration of ge referenced enitys cradit Soundmis and 4 grearis
likelitvood o sk of defaul or cither aredit ient ooowmng 5 defined under
the terme of the agreement

Thee maximum potential amount of future paments (undisoourted that

& Fund s o sefler of prosection could be requined 1o make under & gedi
dtiault Swip areement equals the iosional #ount of te agresment
Hational amounts of exch indhvdual medit default weap agreement
culstanding &s of period end forwhich a fund is the seller of profection e
desdlosid in tht Mates 1o Schedule of Ivnisiments. Thide pobenal amounts.
wowikd be partiafly offset by any recovery valoes of the respeciaee referenced
olfigations, upfront payments receoed upon entesing intg the agresment, of
et amsunts received from the setfement of buy profection dedit default
eap agreements enfered info by 3 Fund for the same referenced enlity o
entilies

Cress-Currency Swap Agreemsents Cartin Funds may enter mio ooss-
CUITEI Oy Sy AFEnmevis 10 Qaim of mitigane exposure b aumendy rik
Cross-0aTency Svap agreements imvoke bwo parbes eachangng two different
cumendes with an agresment so reverse the exchange at alater date at
speafied enchangé ranes The exchange of currendes a1 the Endeption date of
the confradt takes place at Se cument spot rate. The re-sochange at matwity
rury Rake pl 0% 3L thie Samee exchange rane, J spedfied rate, o the then
QUITENE Sl fate. Intereit parments, if appiicabde, ane made bebaeen the
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parties based on interest rates avallable in the two aurendes at the incegtion
af the contract The teems of oss-Quimency Swap CONMECTS ey extend fof
many years. Cross-umendy waps ane wsually negotiabed with commendal
and imvestment barks Some os-qumency swaps may not peovide for
exchanging priod pal cand flows, Butanly for exdungeng interest Cash fiows

Interest Rnte Swap Agreements Cerman Funcs aie sulyscn 0 inteesr e
rizk eposure in the nomal course of purseng ther imvesiment objactives
The value of the fooed rate bonds that a Fandholids may deaease if interest
rates 1s2. To help hedge against this risk and t0 maéntain its ability to
QenefatE shaome 4t previling kel ratsd, & Fusd mdy ente inlo ingerest
FaME Seap dgreeminilh INDENESL Fabe iwap agredmaents ifvobe e enchangs
Ery a Fund with another panty for their respective commitment to pay of
regeive interest on the potiona amount of peindpal. Certan forms of inferest
F#e Svap agreements may indisde: (i) intenest rate caps, under whidh, in
refum for 2 premmium, ofve party agress to malbe payments to Se offer 0 he
extent thatinterest rates exceed 3 speaded rate, of "cap®, (i) interesirame
Boces, under which, i retum for @ premium, cne party sgrees 1o make
payments fo Se oher to e edent that intenest rates 3l below a spedfied
rae, or *foor”, (W) intenest rate adlars, under whidh a party sefk a cap and
purchdies & oo of WOk vl it &N ARempd [ prolec |I',-_'Ir.j§,: e § e
rate minements exoeeding givien minimam of maimom ke, §v) callable
Interest rate swaps, under which the buyer pays an upfront fee in
conyderation for e right to early termmate the svap Fansaction in whide,
at zero cost and 37 3 peedetemmined date and time prior 0o the maturity date,
(v spreadocks, which allow dhe interest rate wwap users 1o lod n te
forward differential {or spread) between the interest rate swap rate and a
speifend Dervchimark, of §) b 5 Swas, under which bao padtes Can
exchange variable interest rates based on different sagments of money
markeis

Tolal Return Swap Agreements Cerlan Funds may enfer into total retum
S BPEEREnT 10 QEM of maligane expodre 1o the undelying feferénce
Toral returm Saip Sgemen s imaghee Commitments whene vr‘:-:}-; o mrultiple
cash fows are eechanged based on the price of an undetlying reference aswt
and an o fimed of varable inlered (ile. Toldl retumm SwdD grerments miby
ivobve commitments fo pay interest in exchange for @ marketdinked retum
Cre counierparty pays cut the total return of 8 specfic underdying reference
asset, which may indude a single secunity. a bagket of sequrities, or an inde,
andin return recerees a fooed o vaniabie rate. A% the maturity date, a net cish
fows s exchanged whers Hue total refum is equivalent to the return of te
undertng rederence assel less & finandng rate, if any. As & receiver, 3

Fund would recene payments based on gy potive 141 retem Jod wiuld
owe payments in the event of anegative total retum. A5 e payer, a

Fumd would owe payments on any posithe botal retum, and would receie
payments in the event of 2 negative total rehan

Velatility Swap Agreements CerTan Func may enfer inho wlathy oavap
agreements, alwo krvown 25 Sowand vol atifity agresrments and volatlily seaps,
wihich are aopesments in which the counterparties agree o make payments in
connection with chinges. in @ wolatibty (e, She magnitude of Gange v 3
specified period of time) of an underlying reference irstnament, such 25 a
Qurrerdy, rabe, index, o Ty of cther Singncial Bisument. Vol auliny s
el this parties. b Atbempt 1o hedge wolality rik snd/oe take positions o
the progected future voladlity of an undérying reference imsrument For
example, 3 Fund may enter into 4 volatility swap in ader bo take the podition
thal the reference insmament’s volatlity will inmease over a panticular period
of timee f the refierence mitrument's valatiity does increase twver the ipedied
fime, the Fund will recef payment from its coun terparty bared upon the
amaount by which the reference instrument™s realized vol atllity level emcends 3
wila fility level agreed upon by the parties If he reference nstrument's
ity does notingease over the specified time, the Fundwill make a

payment o the countenparty based upon te amount by whid the referenice
invstrument's realized volatlity kel falls below the volatility level agreed upon
bry e parties. AR the maturity dare, & nel cioh flow |5 exchanged, where the
payodf amount is equivadent 1o the difference beteeen the redlized price
vinange of the underhing Jssel and the siike price muliplied by te nodanal
TOUNE. Ak 3 reoenver of thi realised price vanance, te Fund would reciw
the puryol? dmaunt whien the neali péd pnoe vananoe of he undeing assetn
geeater than the smibe peice and would owe e payoff amount when the
vanance il than the shile As 3 payer of the reglined price variance,

thee Funid wiould owe the payol! amcuntwhen the realized price variance of
the underheng Fisel s greater han the siike grice and would recene the
pargol amnoisnt when the vafance is less then te sike. Pagments on 3
volatility swap vaill ba greater if they are based upon the mathematical square
af W_\-"ﬂll':r:.' e, e medsuned volaainy multipdied by isel, which is reemed
W ek Pl nce™). This type of wol3Shly awap i5 trequistly riterid 1o 45 4
VRN S

7. PRINCIPAL RISKS

i 1k moarrul courke of Buiness, the Funds (or Acquined Funds) rade
finandcial instruments and enber intd fnandad trandamons where as of
potential boss exdsts due to such things 2 changes in the market {market risk)
of taduce or mabdity of She other party 1.3 trnsaction G0 perlorm (oedit and
counterparty risk), See belows for a detalled desoripion of select prindpal
fisks

Fand ol Fands To the extent that certain Funds invest substantidlly all of their
Pepctive adsets in Acquined Funds, the riths ssodited with invisting in
Thirde Fuanck will be chosely related o S sk dssodatedwath the seosites
arvd ottt e tmenics el by She Acguired Funds The ability of the Funds s
achiewe their respective investment olbgectives may depend upon the bty of
the Acquited Funds o achieve el respecive investment dhjecives Thera
an be no assurance that the imvestment objective of amy Aoquined Furd w

b adhiewed The NAY of an Aouining Fund will fluctuate in response bo
changes in the regpescie NAY of the Aoquined Fund enwhich i1 enests

I 1 reoriradd courte of business, Aoquired Funds rade fnandal nssuments
and enter into financial transactons where rid of polential boss exdsts dug o
changes in the market (market risk), or faliure or inability of e other pasty to
3 Mansahan 00 pertom (medit nd countamaty fak)

Markai Risks A Fund’s investments in finandd derreative instruments and
ather finamdial insngments expose the Fund 10 vanows dsks wch &, bt not
lireuted 1o, inberest rate, freion (non-U S ) aimendy, equity and commodi oy
risks

bt rale fik s thee sk ihat foosd ncome SecuiGes and ather insTuments
Pl by 2 Fund may decline in valoe becaue of an indrease in intenes fates
Ag nofrinal interesk rates fise, the vakse of cenan fived income seqeides held
bry 3 Fund b5 ety 10 dedrease. & nomenal inferest rate can be desribed as
thie simm of 2 real interest rabe and an expected inflation rate. Inberest rate
dhangés can be sudden and unpredictable, and a Fund may bose money i
these changes are not antidpated by Furd management A Fund may not be
abie 10 hecie S0ATEE Changes M nTenedl ranes of s Chddde nox 00 o 50 for
oost of ather repons. in sddinon, sy hedges may nol work 55 intended

Durawon &3 mediure used o detaming the senstary of 3 ssmunty™s phice o
changes in intenest rates that inoonporates 3 seaunly’s yield, coupon, fing
mataity and call features, among other characlenstic. Convedly is an
Scdnongl meaue yed 1o wderiand & :h'lmr},-"_. of Fumd's intefedn rane
Serritivity that mestures the rate of chamge of duraBon in Teponde 1o
changes in intersst rates. Fioed inoome seauriBes with longer duratiors tend
I bee: vt densgitnee B0 chamges In inderest Fates, usually malong e mone
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wolatile than sequrities with shorter doradions. A wide variety of fTactors can
CAUSE VISt rales 10 N6 (e g, central bank monetary polides, nfiation
rates, general economic condiions, eic ). Under ausment economic condiSons,
interest rates are near historcally low levels The Funds oamenty face a
Besghtened bevel of infenest rae resk, espbdally Since the Federal Resenve
Eoard has emded its quantitadve easing program and has begun, and may
continust, 1o raise in eyt rates. Tor the extent that the Federal Redero
Continues i raise inlereslrates, thene is a rsk hat rates acnoss the finandal
ayslem may fise. Further, while bond markers have steadly grown over e
past thees decades, dealer “market making” abilty has not kepr pace and in
some cases has deqreased. Given the impormande of intemediany “market
rraking™ in creatng a robust snd adive rarkel, fioed income sequsiies ae
curmendy Lacing increited w?:l:f-l‘:,- o] Ity risks Al of these RIctors,
oollectaety Anadion indhadually, could cause & Rund 1o lote walue. B the Fund
kst emvugh wiue, the: Fund oould face increased Unithelder redemptions,
wihich could force the Fund o Bguidate investments at dsadvaniageous imes
of jprices, therety adversely affecting the Fund Also, the Fund may be
adversely affected when a lange Unithol der punchases or redeems large
amounis of units, which can cotur at any tme and may impact the Fund in
fhe same manner 35 3 Fgh wolume of redempdon requests Lange Unilholder
ransactions may Impact the Fund's Bguidry aed net asset value Such
fransactions mey A0 ingexe he Fund's a0 oSt of othenaie
caisse the Fund o perfonm differensy than mended. Mofecrer, the Fund is
subgecn b the risk thal other Linitholder s may make imvesoment dedsions
based on the choices of a Lange Uinitholder

Tio the extern thal ceran Funds may imeest in sedumities and instruments that
ane economically bed to Ruyea, the Funds are subject b vanous rdes such as,
but not imited to politcal, econommec. legal, maroet and currendy risks. The
ks include unceman political and eomomes polides, dhor-term markel
volaility, poor acoounting standands, cornuption and ime, an inadequate
requltony system, and unpredictable taxation. Investments in Russia ane
partcul ary fubyect b the frik Ehat further soon onme: Sanchond fuy be
imposed by the United $abes andior other coundries. Sudh sanctions, which
iy Imgadt companies i many sectors, incodng enangy, finandal ssndces
and defenrie. among offvers, may negatesly impact 4 Furd's pedormande
andior ability v achisve its Fnvestment objedive. The Rusdan sequnities
mrarkey, as compared 10 L5, markets, hes significant price wilatling less
bquichty, a smaller market capiesization and a smaller number of raded
securities. Adverse currency eechange rates are a risk and there may be 3 lack
of availatie wmenoy hedging instruments. nvestments in Russia may be
'.AI".!H'- 1o the rigk of nanonization of epropriaton of sisets Od, nanural
a5, metals, and tmber aocount for 3 5 griScant porbon of RsEa's exponts,
leaving the couniry vulnerable io swings in world pricas

Forsign (non-UL 5. ) seamites in this report are dassified by the oouniry of
noorporation of a holdng. In cstain instances, a sequnity’s country of
ECORpOnanion many be cilerent Trom it Country of sComommc expodune

It & Fund awess chinectly in foreign (mon-11 5 ) cuemendies of in sequeites that
wade in, and recetve reveniges in, forelgn dnon-U S ) currendes, of i fnandal
derivative imstnuments that provide exposae to foreign (pon-UL% ) aemendes,
itwill be subject Bo the fidk Sat tode curendes will dedine in value relative
to the bt qurrency of the Fund, o, i the crve of hedging poti o, thit

e Fund's buse currency will dedine in valug reld B 80 the cumency beng
hediged. Curmency rates in forsign countries may fechuate sionifcanty over
short perinds of Bime for 2 number of reasons, indudng changes in interest
raties, intervention (o the fadure to intensene) by U5 o foreign governments,
ceniral banks o supranational entities such a5 the inlemafonal Monetany
Fund, oo by the imposition of cumency oontrols of other polidcal developments

i the Undled States or abroad. As a result, a Fund's nvestmeents in foreign
umendy-denorminated seamifies may reduce te Fund's retsms

The market vialues of edquities, such & corman ks and prefemed securities
of edquity related irvestments sich a5 fubares and opions, have historically
risen and fallen in periodic oydes and may dedine due 10 general markeq
condithons which are not spedficaily related to a pasticular company, sudh
rieal or perceived adverse econcmic conditions, changes in the general
outhook $or COMORETE Bamings, changes in iNerest of Cumency 11es of
averse imvesiorn sentiment generally They may ako dedine due to factors
which affect 3 partinular imdustry or indusiries, siach as labor shortages or
incredded producion aosls and competitve dondifions within an indusny
Citferent fypes of equity sequrities mayreact differenty bo these
develiprments. Equity sedunifes and equity related invetiments generaly hive
greater market prce wolatiity than feed income seurities

Crodit pnd Counterparty Risks & Fund vl be expored 10 ol nik 1
partiies, with wihiorm it rackes sdwell 850 bear the sk of setement defauly
A, Funed mirimizes concentrations of cedt sk by undertaking ransactions
with a lange mumber of qussomens and oounlerparies on recogrized and
reputale exchanges, where spglicable. OTC dervative Iransactions are
subject 10 the rik thata counterparty to the ransaction will not Al its
contractual obligations ko the ofher party, &5 many of the protections affarded
v cenirally deared derheathe transacoen rmight not be vl able for OTC
dermvaineg Irandpions. Rl derneatves rpded on an exchandge of through §
centra couriberparty, aedit nisk resides with the oeditworthiness of

the Fund's dearing beoker, or the deannghouse itelf, rather than 102
COunBErparty in an OTC dervafoe franisction. Changes in requlaton nelating
Mo 3 Fund's uie of deriva s and refated indtrurments could pobentiaily Fma
of impact the Fund’s abality 1o imeest in derivaes, limit e Fund's abdity i
ermploy Certain sirategpes that uie denvatives andior adversely affect the value
o performance of dervarves and the Fund. A Fund could lose money if the
Pouer or guanantor of 3 fieed income seaurity, or the counterparty 10 a
finandal derivative imsiraments contract, repundhase agreement of 2 loan of
partfolio seaurities, is unable orunwiling to make Tmely prindpa and/or
InlEfES] Paymens, of 1 GIhenaLe hahof ils \_'ﬁl-JaImﬂ: LEturi el and
finandal derfvative imsiruments. are subject to vanying degrees of aeditrisk,
which may be reflacted in oedit ratings

Similar 1o creditrisk, a Fund may be exposed o counterpastyrisk, of the risk
that an inslution of other enfitywith which a Fund has unsetfed or open
transactions will default. PIMCO, as the Manager, minimizes countemparty
risks 60 the Funds trowgh a numiber of ways. Frior to entering into

TaFE TN S Wil & N COURMEEERTY, Tt PIMCO Counterparty Risk
Cornimiitee condcts an exteriihe aredit pndew of such counlerparty and must
Fppeove the use of such counterpaty. Furthemore, purseant 1o the tems of
thie underkying contrac, to Bhe extent Shat unpaid amounts owed 1o a lund
eacieed 3 predetemmmed hreshold, sudh counterparty shall sdvance aliateral
txa Fund iny the form of cash or seourities eqeal in value to the unpaid
amount owed to 8 Fund A Fund may invest such collateral in sequrities or
other inssments and will Rrecally pay interest 1o the counteErparty o he
collaterd regened If the unpaid amount owed 198 Fnd submequently
deqeases, 3 Fursd would be reguired (o retum o $e counterparty all o a
portion of the collateral previcusly advanced  PIMCO's attempls o minimize
COUNBErpar By fitk My, hownever, be urructeydhul

Ml transactiond on lited secumites arg setthedipad for ypon Jelheny ising
appioved counterparties. The ride of defadt is considersd minimal, as delivery
of securites sold s only made once 3 Fund has received payment. Fayment is
made on a purdhase once the seamities have been defivered by the
aouniErnarty. Thee tradk will Tl of sither party Tadls i mest i t.l‘_‘lll_u'lon
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2 MASTER NETTING ARRAMGEMENTS funures commission mendhant (*FOM) registered with the Comm -'.'_F*r Fubares

Trading Commizc Ialv Counberparty i
significandy reduced a3 areditors of an FC
-:;.a"--_l_'r st Addine
evenl of an FCM delauln soenamd Turther pesh |-1 Voo
margin, of changes in market value, e exchanged daily, but may not be
mElbed Betaien Rtunes and dearsd OTC dermatiest. The mardost valus o
accunrdated urrealized apprediation (depred ation), imtial mangen posted, and
v unselded vanabon mangin as of period end dre didosed i the Mates 1o
Schedule of bvestments

The Funds may be subject to various nedting amangements (“Master
emiends~) with sebect count 5 Master Agreements gowem the
rermns of certa orr, and e intended 1o redise th
assodated wath relevant ransactions by speafying cedit probection
mechaniams and providing stancrdization that s intended to improve feil
certanty. Eacdy type of Master Agresrnen QUveims. Certan types of
fransactions L1‘1E|-:rl typees of transactions may be traded out of different
legdl enilities or affiliates of 4 partiodar :agr--:a"u:n resdfing in the need for
multipde agreements with a single counterparty. As the Master Agreements
Eeific 10 unigae operations of o sl typeks, they alow 4 Fund 5o ntemationsl Seapds d Defivatives Assodation, inc Master Agreements and
diode ol 3nd net its Kt egosune 10 2 cuntepaty in the event o J defadt Credhit Support Annexes ("I50A Master Agresmentsh govedn balateral OT¢
with resped to a8 the iransachors govemed under a sngle Master derivathe ransactions entened info by the Fonds with selact ooun terparties
Agrezmend wath a courterparty. For finandal reporting purpases the GO Master Augresmenis mantan provs s o gen eral obligatons,

'_‘-*J ements of Assets and Liabities generaly preten valve assets and ripresentations, agreements, ool
bz &5 0N 3 gross bass, whidy refects the fll rigkes and exposiees, prior 1 Eyvents of femr
nemng elect | 2 [EITTEn nisistandng i

Jection bo bermanate eary
ETLATH, LaN O,

5 that add

posare if the

erian vans Thts

umnider te reli

o 52 50,000
nn Uinined
oy il and U S arcadh are genera red forms of
:;II ather forms of AAA rale 1 U
iy be wsad depending on the serms cutBned in the applicatee hasier
gresment Securities and cash pladged a5 collateral are reflected a

assets on the Staternents of Assets and Lisbilities a5 sither 3 component of

&-IU‘#FIL ol _1‘“r_"§ riedened 'xr_-’*i}d
Ty a5 of period end are discosed in the MNobes

andl nit exposore by

1 Sctuecule Of IntveSaments

§ Iakaliny on the 54
Ty Th fmarke
3 hqa-p—rlul LT TI. 0
sk ¢an change substantialy within a short period, a5 it
ach transacion ks e selivan? Marster Agresimind

s A wf.wnr. 1]
& _ eI Dl bween the

sadect counterparties M P AQPesrnents mantan peovisions bor,
amaong other things, Initiation, income paymenis, ewents of default, and
l'ulnl--r':r't -.-' rr.ﬂul-”a Ll e of ransaCions under the Maite
received, and the net exposune by

FEVETIE TERN h]?-'.

Myster 5 :
Agreennd ain forward seing ransactions, such a8 TBA
rities, delayed-delivery or sale-turybadk framsacions by and
et the Funds and select berparties. The Master Fonvang
AGRESTENgs MAN M provision . dmiong other Sings, Rtaton and

3 ;
confrmation, payment and ransfer i of dedault I-:'rrralfn.'r and

et emprsire by u:..ullrerml .:.' a5 0
b Schedude of Inves

Custamer Aocount Agresments and related addenda govemn deaned
dirivatives fransactions sudh as fubuwres, op
derivatives. Such ransaciions requi 'ﬁ;cr.hru:l.:d-n-
oy et relivanl dearing " | gEed n a0 jn I’-:,‘ll M
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9. FEES AND EXPENSES

Each Fumd is subject 1o the follosing fees payable at the following annual rates (stated as a percentage of the average dally net sssets of each Fund, or Class, if
applicable, Takben Separateh]

[
ot [P ey [ Ageery Dhbimi
PRACT) Bermada Foresgn Ling Duragion Fesd II%%E = = = -
RGO Barmuds U5 Lew Durawos Fund 7% - — - -
M0 Euro Total Retwn Fend - D45%" 05 %" 0% %"
PIMCD Roal Matern Fusd ~ H45%" ns %" 0o % ane
PG Shot: Tarm Stratagy

. J Py E = -- -- -

. J QIS — — - - am

- JPY s %" - - ne %" aR%®

. usn (k3 S - - 0o %™ aEe”

P PR ey Fogwd it et i iy B ooy ot O vty e . By e’ vt o B Vo Shlfomr 2208 o e il i i i (U 80 rmaioges o B P vt wa gty &6 par e
sl 0 P et A 5T vm o o e e el e a0 PR e o i o i T o ity i st of U T licen

Titer PG s Pl Pt o o ot a0 mcmacpsirmOnr e St vy ko’ or % st o St el e iy 0598 oo wrswrsn ey o Dy fined L0 S5 ol of o Pl ! s 857 o pvnrm
dggir ot B ool U 50 s o B Fuad it st dead o T v aivire s ot ol o Shi Forls dond ikt - sl o LR B0 et

Tt PR it Tt Rt Forkel i iy o3 etk ik S 1 S oo B sl o Dl P 57 a0, 3 s apipland (8 P i SO ST sl 1 et iy el ity 05 e aveierse
e o P s (LR S0 paiin of M sy st sty k) F j desves gty o 08 pher Rari st BT o g of SLR il

e PR Bid Bt Fuit| o0 siuin® B et i’ ot Bl ponvioes ki o P it v o B e s inliowect: 20958 ' iionts il oo B Ml PSR el oo i Pl it i it 178 o s pplens
et ot B sl o Pt P el kit g JER aaplins or o of thi s e e it 10 it o 5T i

Tt PO R Rt o o3 Aty B0 B0 SimaTroin ot PO ot (A i e i) o e Vo i 17 N Dot o e o i (e BT el o e o v B £ W e e igppier
30 2 skl S50 malion o D Fls ARrRsAaty ) TSN Do detwirs et (o0 o e U it it a0 s o 100 puellent

Pl PR e Mo ool ot auslhent B0 8 rmeston o it vinins i 5 B ot Connd' o o Fianal g ooy 8 196 o aeorssm gyl ot e ot D000 oo oo St Fowmer”s oapt wisas 1 58 e g ppplis o
D st PEEY milen o P P o ded il el T i e gt o el OF Dl FuedT ST ks o a6 I Bl

Fitr {Tver ix wodyect 80 3 Sxiesagpesarst fng et warunt Savacd 2t B Sirsd of Jagt Dnsicuriad (upiogt ol Bate Sapecied e Jolicy sule T of e Pl do Baf Seranaay e of B pirvond mootsh OF B st ioed oy ooty
o S G, Bpn P ey w5 0 0 o (ain et ety o S Syt prosiy rady i Bt (-0 6. e St Sowp e B {1 J7ER o var st papty, o S sl sl v i St 51 0%, e S Sap el
o B o (o ot ma vty o O et ey r e 0 iy 10RO P O Pl el g LTS o Uyt O s oy e o4 O v grie, S g g wl B V5 o Sl et mesats. XBe
pesiey ot o B (e oyt il Shee At wanll Sinlic? i acmanvaiinds? (ol Skat o Sisend pieog e

Tt (Bt o sodimec 0 9% syl St vt Pl o8 S Seid of et Dby’ Chnng? (ol Rt Sgainttied! i Ty i3 Y it o' S0l B el ity ofF B promiond it 0 rd g oy e
ot T, Pt e Ve bl 7 0 . o D el ey i o Dt 1 T T L Dt el bl 2T o i S Bkt o DO il ey B ) et 1 S0P I Pt D At il
P o Clacia i sk b o Pl o sy il i i 1 S0P, Dt Pl it il o P o il i i o I o sy 9 o 0 o i, e B i il S ) T o i e il
ey i Eor et Dl o6 ot vmabil. (R iy il R B0 it Pl CEAT o sl IR

T 3 5 et - shraboebon o P v v e o dppen lmarumen (varmapht 0t e Cipacten! 50 Dosbey o 700 e it ot ey of e v mondt. e e polhy voie 1
Dot 117, P D Y el D 0 0 A o D ol MY O 8 Do 41 S, B i s 157 s enat, o D i sy vl i Dnoewa 1 5. P, oo 0 e
R of (i syt prmets # B e polky ralr v etamn {0 0 She Pl o malf e 5 o e ol a ety o e sl posivy syt e 0 o greie, e g o e B {1 5T of oy e Ppramts e
ey rafe v e CER 2 ol mastile P Mbintinans et Gl % squosair® ok PRl o i spSgr e

That (T oo SiiercT 10 Sy A S waentd Exkid it B ! st Taeper S et oy /oie 7 s oF B e B o duintetnd iy of Bl it st JF B e gy nie af w0 0, Bt e
el o 98 o Clinga At it b ot oliey vl il bnrastes 0047 5, Bttt i el v 8 L7596 o it et it o Pl ke ol o9 0 ad Brkaopett ) 5561 8, aer i fink im0 o i st
R, P v Jokey (e 3 ettt T - TR, D et ot il ot (1S o a0 P RS, O i b iy i 4 5 T o greaes, Fuked 0 e ol et 58 o s el ity Pt oy vl o e et
i vt ok, S Al et 50 et R BRw et B ORI

Fir Tt oy wanlymect' o 08 sy Jiw St waea S 0 S Fonihornd Byncly Wouue Bt (Wi hodicy rate T wa off thir Sf 50 e ey sy o S sy s, F By svvomnd podicy vty sp Suplowe L (PR, Pt 4w i will g
BN of Ul cpt wmsaty o (o sed ooy vl 7 i 100 0 S50 G Pl oy ool o 1008 o e ot st o o vl oty ot o soapa 8- 0L (o (0 o o i 8 o (e ool oot o
vebon® ey i o bt 100, et bk il g O o Cnit et et OF o e iy vt v O o i, Pt e o vl W0 o o it it OF hee oy ct ot Ot Ei i it
b, thy Albarnper mill ket BT il ety ST o carar grproproaty

Tl T o i o 000 o TR 500 i 0% e it Tt Mt (0 i e 0 2 M S0 1 3 et 0 Sy T (et i D coditd Sty P o Do 1 7, Pt i P il
B 50 & Dl it it o Dl il Sty P 4 i 0 O -5, Pt Dt i il O (0 200 0t e O I e Sy e e 1 SO O, i o i il B 1 S 0 s i it o
B el Pl TR 2 i PR e i e g 0 T 0 ety e O i s sty e 0 O o gt TRan i o well B (X F (eny et et e poleyvadte B 0 (e i d
G, (e A el LT L I R B P SR AT

Thie randagement, ddvisony and Jdministrative Tees, it applicable, se paid monthly in o nedrs bo FIBMCO fof providing or aranging for th peowi San of advisany,
administraties and thind-paety sendoes induding awdl, austodal, nasses, poriolio sooountng, rousine begal, ransfer agent and printing wenvioss. The agendy and
disribution fees, il applicable, ane pald monthlyin amears to reimiburse Enandal intesrmedianes that provide serdoes and distribution red

ng o the units of the
applicable Fund (or Class thereof, < applicable). In the case of the PIMCO Barmuda Foneign Low Duration Fumd and PIMKCO Bermuda U S Low Dusatson Fand, PIMCO,
out of s rnanagement fee, will bear the oosts assocatedwith sdduey and sdminisirative serdces, 0 1% of which is designated 1o cover adminissratie expendss, In
exchange for ehis fee, PIMCO will Dear the opsts of ceran third-pamy sendoes required by the Funds, induding aedi, ausiodal, wustes, porrfolo acoounting, legal
‘I.ﬂs‘er agent and printing seraces. FIMCO, and not Unitholders, would benedit from any price dearesse in the costof sudh thindparty senvices, induding dedgeases
Som B e in Al Mo B aASEan, wath feipect 00 Furdd thal o ki 5 M sdrereiira e fee, PIMCO ¢ fen s ally raikid ) peohe of fech 5 fee

The: Funis fof Classes thereaf, & applicabie) may bear other expenses related 1o ther operaton tat ane nof oovered by the management, advisony, adminisratie,
agendy of dstibution fees, indisding bt not limited toc @) tames and governmental fees; (1) brokerage fees and commisdions and ofher poetfolio ransaction expenses;
itk oorses ol Ederowinsg sy, indusding interes! exparre; (b exiraondney expentes, induding oot of Hegan on o indemiication expEn e ahd (V) any expeniet
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allocated or allocable 1 a tpedfic Clas of umits, a5 applicable. AIMCO has

il set-up

PINCO andior its affilfates wall initiaity adv noumed in connection with doe inifia
public oifering of the JFY and USD Class L the Fund's operations, the Fund will
reimburse FIMCO andfor it affilal the Critering F.x:-.n s advanced -CI"d‘ﬁH amoriae such Offering _,-;-‘rwmazl the "'.J fiscal year ofits op erations |
PINKCO s et 00 waivt remEuremen] o the Offering Experrses b0 he extent Sat such expenses excesd 0 05% per annim of the wam of he IFY
Lt '\‘-' Assen Vau Ofenng Expende i i'l\.'lj""r':-i"ll".. Experiel waneed due 1o the Oiffe Experiie Limulanon may be fedm
fior & period not exceeding five years from the commemncement of the Fund's operasions; provided, the amount recouped by PIMCO .w:ly 15
e sum of the IFY and S0 Classes” NAY. I either of the JFY and LSD Classe s herminated prior
tid Al el Sk reimbmLerrenil o ainy redviEni ] - ianils Born sl Class
terminated peice w0 thee full reimborsement of all Offering
e Fured As of May 31, T8, the redeserable amoyr

an
ar’har-*' tha
A e Bl -
‘-."‘e e, if both of the JFY and USD Classss of
shall nol seet reimbipree IF
andiof its affliates wa $49, 268
FINK O has sppomnbed 2B
Fund 0 Real Retam Fund, and
of the other Fundd

ICE ki s 48
f the fund are
&

) SeTunTEs NG, 1o 80 Agent

0 Burd Tard Betyrr
e Sppenied bor amy

Cusmbonor for (he dsmbubon snd 1ens
0 Shoet-Termn Strategy bo retail imvestors in Japan

.IIII.]-\.J! (a1l
0 distnbutors have

2 IFY and LD Classes of

10 N Agemen L adenony, sdmin b, SRy Of (sl titan fees. PINACIO) Lapan
id 3 fee from the lapanese -:"S-r'l"""l" usts of ofher investiment vefndes Mat imest im sudy Femds or &% and 3 portion of
0t cempennane it Tor il sendoe

‘s affiliate in fapan,
i Tee 15 e abocated 1o PINY

FIMCO his pand the oeganiZatona o the Trust f furthes Funds ane Rasnched,

Fznd may be bome by the redeant

ERpEnSES Ass00aed with the

ch o515 deeCty 1aributabie o the reisvant

10, RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS

The Investment Adviser is 3 refated party 1o the Funds and is 3 magorisg-ownsed subsid any of Afianz Ascel Management AG. Fees pald s the related party, If ary, are
disdosed in Mote 9, and acoued related parfy fee amounts, i any, are dsdosed on the Statements of Axsets and Liabilit

1

Alianz Asset Managerment AG, 3 related party of the Trust, owned 57 118% of the net assets of the PIMCO Emenging Markets Bond Fund 11l and 0.129% of the net
5 0f the FAIMCO Emenging Markers Bond Fund I & of May 31, 213

Ceartain Funds are permitted to purchase of sell seawities fom of to erian related affiliated fnds under ediied conditions ouined in proceduret adopted by the
Imvesiment Adviser. The procedines have been designed 1o ensure that any purchase or sale of securities by a fund ‘rnm or t another fund that is or could be

conidered an affifate by virhee of having a common adviser (or affiliated imvestment advisers), is effected at the curent market price. During he period ended May
21, 2008, the Fandy) below e ol o in prunchaes and saled of sequrities among affl d fursds (armscun m }

El

Fudd Puches Sain
Hé

a

FiAA0T Bew mucdy Foresgn Loy Duramon Fend 3 (]
FIC Bawmuda U S Lowe Disnmen Fung
PIMCE Esmargane etarken Band Fund (G
PIMDT Boro Toesl Re e

PIMDT Rienl i et Fund

PO ShorrTerm Soaeegy

1. GUARANTEES AND INDEMMIFICATION

Under the Trust's organizational documen s, certain parties (nduding the Trastes and MMCO) are indernnified against certain liabikties rha may arite out of
pertomanice of their duties 1o the Funds Addiionally, in the nomal course of business, the Funds enter into confrads that oont -'.:I ermmnification dawses
The Fusreds” maximum expossre under these amangements is wknown as this would involve future daime thatmay be made against the r.'r 1s that have not et
ocoumed However, the Funds have not had pror daims or lesses pursuant (o these contrack

12, UMITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

000 units of benefidal interest. The Funds may have a sgnificant concentration of risk, as certain Unitholders cwn mone than
v Fund. Sudch concen ragon of Unitholders” interests could have a materda effed on the Funds in the event these

il amounts of capital 21 the same time Subsaiptions and redempliors of units of the Fundk are denominatedin the Funds
nal currendy at the oot rake on the mansaction date. Units of each Fund are issued without par value. The Trustes
J F Class o Classes ol units of sy Fund

g, oy in this fu

Ervenil Pagard | Muy 50, 20k B0
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13. REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS
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2019
67,154 7,149,215
29,056 3,093,302
38,098 4,055,913
2,141,270
17.79 1,894
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2019
388,027,447 413 940
850,000 150,000 250,000
1,250,000
850,000 150,000 48,875.82

2015 324,930,646

2016 338,413,044

2017 308,558,334

2018 302,158,349

2019 388,027,447

Managing Member

limited liability company

agreement

2019

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

Joshua Anderson

Andrew Balls

Jamil Baz

Ryan P. Blute

Philippe Bodereau

Andrew Bosomworth

David L. Braun

Geraldine Brigliadori Walsh

Erin Browne

Elizabeth Cantrill

Rick Chan
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(Michael A. Cudzil)

Joshua Davis

Craig A. Dawson

Ed Devlin

Pramol Dhawan

Chris Dialynas

Jennifer E. Durham

Mohsen Fahmi

Joachim Fels

David Fisher

David C. Flattum

Alessandro Gandolfi

Russell Gannaway

Michael A. Gomez

Stuart T. Graham

(Sachin Gupta)

(Gregory W. Hall)

Brent R. Harris

Jonathan L. Horne

Daniel H. Hyman

Daniel J. Ivascyn

Andrew R. Jessop

J
Nicholas J. Johnson

(Alec Kersman)

Mark R. Kiesel

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

Kimberley G. Korinke

Ryan Korinke

Richard R. LeBrun

Matthieu Louanges

(Laurent Luccioni)

Dirk Manelski
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Sudi N. Mariappa

(Rene Martel)

Scott A. Mather

Ravi K. Mattu

Robert Mead

Julie Meggers

Mohit Mittal

Eric J. Mogelof

Alfred T. Murata

John W. Murrary

(Roger 0. Nieves)

Thomas J. Otterbein

Lorenzo Pagani

Stephen A. Rodosky

(Emmanuel Roman)

Jerome M. Schneider

Marc P. Seidner

(Robin C. Shanahan)

Greg E. Sharenow

Adam Shukovsky

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Jason R. Steiner

Christian Stracke

Peter G. Strelow

John J. Studzinski

Sung Hee Suh

Eric M. Sutherland

(Eve Tournier)

Qi Wang

Candice S. Whitten

Frank Witt
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Mihir P. Worah

Robert 0. Young
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1971
1940

BMA

BMA BMA

BMA

BMA

60

BMA
BMA
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2019 325
721,749,205,558.73

113 423,489,684,990
21 13,040,807,086
12 19,709,999,120
65 188,009, 250,855
9 9,574,771,340
37 10,870,466,759
34 21,133,510,363
13 21,952,473,758
1 290,124,096
5 2,311,486,381
15 11,366,630,811
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2017 12 31 2018 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2019 30
106.46
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2018 2017 12 31
2018 2017 2017
2(c) 429,220,995 45,694,867 450,700,560 47,981,582 369,212,638 39,306,377
2(d),5 32,459,901 3,455,681 17,499,478 1,862,994 15,079,940 1,605,410
2(e) 552,952,116 58,867,282 594,774,505 63,319,694 528,155,825 56,227,469
2(e) 254,081,349 27,049,500 265,415,118 28,256,093 248,092,787 26,411,958
32,694,941 3,480,703 32,353,593 3,444,364 29,806,504 3,173,200
2(e) 25,166,878 2,679,266 31,706,344 3,375,457 30,734,619 3,272,008
2(9),9(F) 15,657,169 1,666,862 31,943,967 3,400,755 72,809,303 7,751,278
8 7,382,210 785,910 15,679,760 1,669,267 10,599,926 1,128,468
3,6 22,123,467 2,355,264 15,603,998 1,661,202
43,846,429 4,667,891 54,450,745 5,796,826 51,770,261 5,511,462
1,393,461,988 148,347,963 1,516,647,537 161,462,297 1,371,865,801 146,048,833
2018 12 31
292,930,004 2017 12 31
261,275,747 2(F),7 146,862,606 15,634,993 169,666,751 18,062,722 192,255,385 20,467,508
2(9),9(P 460,075,450 48,979,632 331,335,997 35,274,030 217,492,628 23,154,265
2(b) 13,463,668 1,433,342 101,758 10,833 103,150 10,981
10 29,821,480 3,174,795 19,752,989 2,102,903 21,293,880 2,266,946
650,223,204 69,222,762 520,857,495 55,450,489 431,145,043 45,899,701
2,043,685,192 217,570,726 2,037,505,032 216,912,786 1,803,010,844 191,948,534
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2018 2017 2017
433,350,570 46,134,502 524,430,033 55,830,821 366,719,665 39,040,976
8 212,000,000 22,569,520 204,000,000 21,717,840 153,000,000 16,288,380
9 155,868,165 16,593,725 133,064,250 14,166,020 284,765,682 30,316,155
6 102,698,345 10,933,266 67,149,872 7,148,775 47,547,207 5,061,876
8 20,488,078 2,181,161 22,191,262 2,362,482 25,837,663 2,750,678
2(0),9(F) 15,657,169 1,666,862 31,943,967 3,400,755 72,809,303 7,751,278
8,230,351 876,203 7,958,614 847,274 11,878,828 1,264,620
948,292,678 100,955,238 990,737,998 105,473,967 962,558,348 102,473,962
2(0),9(F) 460,075,450 48,979,632 331,335,997 35,274,030 217,492,628 23,154,265
9 130,404,396 13,882,852 87,515,282 9,316,877 59,230,194 6,305,646
42,013,112 4,472,716 44,907,555 4,780,858 42,772,551 4,553,566
1,550,631 165,080 999,204 106,375
634,043,589 67,500,280 463,758,834 49,371,765 320,494,577 34,119,853
1,582,336,267 168,455,519 1,454,496,832 154,845,733 1,283,052,925 136,593,814
850,000 (792,957,184) (84,418,222) (721,216, 276) (76,780, 685) (806,802, 240) (85,892, 166)
150,000 1,267,204,122 134,906,551 1,290, 399,100 137,375,888 1,274,221,216 135,653,591
2018 12 31
2017 12 31 45,705 23,722,086 2,525,453 28,660,677 3,051,216 25,239,087 2,686,953
2018 12 31
143,858 2017 12 31 122,972 9(a) 28,576,118 3,042,214 30,984,305 3,298,589 62,079,071 6,608,938
2(D) (65,196,217) (6,940,789) (45,819, 606) (4,877,955) (34,779,215) (3,702,595)
461,348,925 49,115,207 583,008, 200 62,067,053 519,957,919 55,354,720
2,043,685,192 217,570,726 2,037,505,032 216,912,786 1,803,010,844 191,948,534
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2018 2017 12 31

2018 2017
2(e) 3,699,085,263 393,804,617 3,069,733,735 326,803,853
2(e) 897,932,904 95,593,937 894,875,087 95,268,402
2(e) 1,121,459,653 119,390,595 1,010,295,001 107,556,006
2(e) 400,632,761 42,651,364 382,875,278 40,760,902
2(e) 21,116,690 2,248,083 19,056,121 2,028,715
6,140,227,271 653,688,595 5,376,835,222 572,417,878
9 1,921,490,575 204,561,887 1,786,117,811 190,150,102
6 814,837,039 86,747,551 393,884,056 41,932,897
2(p) 625,372,554 66,577,162 627,117,284 66,762,906
246,110,361 26,200,909 212,401,017 22,612,212
7,11 152,147,106 16,197,581 146,505,365 15,596,961
2(K) 116,090,003 12,358,942 97,973,736 10,430,284
54,856,322 5,840,004 54,417,256 5,793,261
3 30,368,244 3,233,003
63,594,897 6,770,313 29,364,266 3,126,120
3,994,498 857 425,254,348 3,378,149,035 359,637,746
2,145,728,414 228,434,247 1,998,686,187 212,780,131
24,051,878 2,560,563 50,067,120 5,330,146
2(b) (1,873,076) (199,408) 125,543 13,365
2,167,907,216 230,795,402 2,048,878,850 218,123,642
10 105,979,276 11,282,554 90,675,758 9,653,341
2,061,927,940 219,512,848 1,958,203,092 208,470,301
2(1) (19,376,611) (2,062,834) (11,040,391) (1,175,360)
2,042,551,329 217,450,014 1,947,162,701 207,294,941
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PIMCO

2017 12 31

IFRS 15

PIMCO

2018 12 31

2018

2017 12 31

EDINETOOOO

O00oo0oooooooo0ooO00o0oO00D0bO00D0bDO000OoOnd(ELS034)

OOooooooooooooooooOo

850,000 (806,802,240) (85,892, 166) 150,000 1,274,221,216 135,653,591 45,705 25,239,087 2,686,953
1,444,786,673 153,811,989 429,708,581 45,746,776 83,707,838 8,911,536
(1,407,711,685)  (149,864,986) (413,530,697) (44,024,478) (80,286,248)  (8,547,274)
48,510,976 5,164,479
850,000 (721,216,276) (76,780, 685) 150,000 1,290,399, 100 137,375,888 45,705 28,660,677 3,051,216
(17,852,184) (1,900,544) (3,319,784) (353,424) (959,921) (102,193)
850,000 (739,068,460) (78,681,228) 150,000 1,287,079,316 137,022,464 45,705 27,700,756 2,949,022
1,523,328,377 162,173,539 450,997,001 48,013,141 87,602,562 9,326,169
(1,595,853,856)  (169,894,602) (470,872,195) (50,129, 054) (91,581,232)  (9,749,738)
18,636,755 1,984,069
850,000 (792,957,184) (84,418,222) 150,000 1,267,204,122 134,906,551 45,705 23,722,086 2,525,453
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PIMCO

2017 12 31

IFRS 15

PIMCO

2018 12 31
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2018 2017 12 31

114,192 62,079,071 6,608,938 (34,779,215) (3,702,595) 519,957,919 55,354,720
1,958,203,092 208,470,301
(1,901,528,630) (202,436,738)
17,416,210 1,854,130 17,416,210 1,854,130

(48,510,976) (5,164,479)
(11,040,391) (1,175,360) (11,040,391) (1,175,360)
122,972 30,984,305 3,298,589 (45,819, 606) (4,877,955) 583,008,200 62,067,053
(22,131,889) (2,356,161)
122,972 30,984,305 3,298,589 (45,819,606) (4,877,955) 560,876,311 59,710,892
2,061,927,940 219,512,848
(2,158,307,283) (229,773,393)
16,228,568 1,727,693 16,228,568 1,727,693

(18,636,755) (1,984,069)
(19,376,611) (2,062,834) (19,376,611) (2,062,834)
143,858 28,576,118 3,042,214 (65,196,217) (6,940,789) 461,348,925 49,115,207
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2018 2017 12 31
2018 2017

2,061,927,940 219,512,848 1,958,203,092 208,470,301
15,754,902 1,677,267 16,714,824 1,779,460
45,224,698 4,814,621 46,606,978 4,961,779
30,368,244 3,233,003
173,827 18,506 (586) (62)
1,873,076 199,408 (125,543) (13,365)
7,685,839 818,234 2,758,547 293,675

4,011,361 427,049
(19, 366,964) (2,061,807) (2,292,016) (244,008)
(104,148, 954) (11,087,698) (87,635, 240) (9,329, 648)
(2,258,750) (240, 467) (2,374,634) (252,804)
59,695,625 6,355,196 (84,912,737) (9,039,810)
8,957,270 953,501 (44,952,843) (4,785,680)
116,569,743 12,410,015 143,906,563 15,320,293
(2,775,258) (295, 454) (6,430,815) (684,625)
2,193,324,355 233,501,311 1,969,833,834 209,708,510
(30,106,393) (3,205,127) (26,776,891) (2,850, 668)

(15,013,633) (1,598,351)

(45,120,026) (4,803,478) (26,776,891) (2,850, 668)
2,211,000,000 235,383,060 2,260,000,000 240,599,600
(2,203,000,000)  (234,531,380)  (2,209,000,000)  (235,170,140)
(2,158,307,283)  (229,773,393)  (1,901,528,630)  (202,436,738)
(2,150,307,283)  (228,921,713)  (1,850,528,630)  (197,007,278)
(19,376,611) (2,062,834) (11,040,391) (1,175,360)
(21,479,565) (2.,286,714) 81,487,922 8,675,204
450,700,560 47,981,582 369,212,638 39,306,377
429,220,995 45,694,867 450,700,560 47,981,582
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2018 2017 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding 250,000
PIMCO
2018 12 31 45,705
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl
LLC
Pl LLC PIMCO
PIMCO
Pl LLC
FINRA
2018 2017 12 31 PIMCO

0.00181 0.00165
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PIMCO

FINMA

1ASB IFRS
IFRS

2019
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PIMCO

PIMCO

AAM LP

2018 2017 12 31 180.9 143.2
2018 12 31
620 2017 12 31
395

FDIC
FDIC
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PIMCO

PIMCO
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IFRS

PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
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PIMCO
PIMCO
PI LLC 2018 12 31 3.5
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2016 12 31 93,780,071 97,460,778 1,014,536 192,255,385
24,467,417 2,309,474 26,776,891
2,653,000) 105,547) 2,758,547)
38,382,925) 8,224,053) 46,606,978)
2017 12 31 77,211,563 91,440,652 1,014,536 169,666,751
28,017,364 2,082,129 6,900 30,106,393
(7,685,840) 7,685,840)
35,360,085) 9,864,613) 45,224,698)
2018 12 31 62,183,002 83,658,168 1,021,436 146,862,606
2018 2017 12 31 45.2 46.6
PIMCO
AAM LP
2018 2017
50.4 49.3
LP PIMCO
PIMCO
2018 2017 12 31 10.7 13.6
LIBOR 0.5
AAM LP PIMCO 2018 2017
AAM LP
2018 2017 12 31 PIMCO
212.0 204.0
PIMCO 2018 2017 2.3
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PIMCO
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6.2 9.3
PDG
PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
2018
PDG PDG 36.9 2017 11.9
PDG 2018 PDG 30.8 2017 25.0
2018 12 31 6.5 2017 11.9
PDG 9.8 2017 8.6 PDG
AAM LP 2020 11 600.0
LIBOR 20 2018 12 31 2.578
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PIMCO
OPAD
2018 2017
2018 2017
15,528 11,804
3.84 3.84
21.0 25.2
11.8 13.7
2.5 1.9
2018
2017
( )
2016 12 31 114,192 114,192 17,932
49,195 49,195 11,804
33,344 33,344)
33,344) 33,344) 21,810
7,071) 7,071) 16,928
2017 12 31 122,972 122,972 14,486
49,595 49,595 15,528
19,084 19,084)
19,084) 19,084) 23,594
9,625) 9,625) 14,954
2018 12 31 143,858 143,858 13,606

2018 12 31
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PIMCO
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2018 2017 12 31 LTIP 106.4
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10
12 31
2018 2017
6,278 2,030,711
856,534 1,127,343
108,644,006 85,232,952
109,506,818 88,391,006
(999,204)
(3,527,542) 3,283,956
(3,527,542) 2,284,752
105,979,276 90,675,758
2018 2017 12 31 39.7 34.0
2018
2017 12 31 17.7 14.4 2018 12
31 21 2017 12 31
11
PINCO
12 31
2019 34,973,549
2020 35,085,091
2021 33,843,209
2022 33,077,475
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
Y ears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Assets
As adjusted Asadjusted
Note 2018 2017 1/1/2017
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2(c) $ 429,220,995 450,700,560 369,212,638
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(d),5 32,459,901 17,499,478 15,079,940
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(e) 552,952,116 594,774,505 528,155,825
Private accounts 2(e) 254,081,349 265,415,118 248,092,787
Prepaid expenses 32,694,941 32,353,593 29,806,504
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(e) 25,166,878 31,706,344 30,734,619
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(9),9(f) 15,657,169 31,943,967 72,809,303
Receivables from affiliates 8 7,382,210 15,679,760 10,599,926
Deferred sales charges 3,6 - 22,123,467 15,603,998
Other current assets 43,846,429 54,450,745 51,770,261
Total current assets 1,393,461,988 1,516,647,537 1,371,865,801
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of
$292,930,004 and $261,275,747 at December 31, 2018
and 2017, respectively 2(f),7 146,862,606 169,666,751 192,255,385
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(9),9(f) 460,075,450 331,335,997 217,492,628
Investments in associates 2(b) 13,463,668 101,758 103,150
Other noncurrent assets 10 29,821,480 19,752,989 21,293,880
Total noncurrent assets 650,223,204 520,857,495 431,145,043
Total assets $ 2,043,685,192 2,037,505,032 1,803,010,844
Liabilities and Capital
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 433,350,570 524,430,033 366,719,665
Short-term borrowings from &ffiliates 8 212,000,000 204,000,000 153,000,000
Accrued compensation 9 155,868,165 133,064,250 284,765,682
Commissions payable 6 102,698,345 67,149,872 47,547,207
Payables to affiliates 8 20,488,078 22,191,262 25,837,663
Deferred compensation 2(0),9(f) 15,657,169 31,943,967 72,809,303
Other liabilities 8,230,351 7,958,614 11,878,828
Total current liabilities 948,292,678 990,737,998 962,558,348
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(0),9(f) 460,075,450 331,335,997 217,492,628
Other accrued compensation 9 130,404,396 87,515,282 59,230,194
Future lease obligations 42,013,112 44,907,555 42,772,551
Other liabilities 1,550,631 - 999,204
Total noncurrent liabilities 634,043,589 463,758,834 320,494,577
Tota liabilities 1,582,336,267 1,454,496,832 1,283,052,925
Capitd:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (792,957,184) (721,216,276) (806,802,240)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,267,204,122 1,290,399,100 1,274,221,216
Class M members (45,705 unitsissued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2018, and as of December 31, 2017) 23,722,086 28,660,677 25,239,087
Class M unit option holders (143,858 options issued as of
December 31, 2018, and 122,972 options issued as of
December 31, 2017) 9(a) 28,576,118 30,984,305 62,079,071
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments 2(l) (65,196,217) (45,819,606) (34,779,215)
Total capital 461,348,925 583,008,200 519,957,919
Total liabilities and capital $ 2,043,685,192 2,037,505,032 1,803,010,844

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Revenues: Note 2018 2017
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(e) $ 3,699,085,263 3,069,733,735
Private accounts 2(e) 897,932,904 894,875,087
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(e) 1,121,459,653 1,010,295,001
Distribution and servicing fees 2(e) 400,632,761 382,875,278
Other 2(e) 21,116,690 19,056,121
Total revenues 6,140,227,271 5,376,835,222
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 9 1,921,490,575 1,786,117,811
Commissions 6 814,837,039 393,884,056
Genera and administrative 2(p) 625,372,554 627,117,284
Professional fees 246,110,361 212,401,017
Occupancy and eguipment 7,11 152,147,106 146,505,365
Marketing and promotional 2(k) 116,090,003 97,973,736
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 54,856,322 54,417,256
Deferred charges amortization 3 - 30,368,244
Other 63,594,897 29,364,266
Total expenses 3,994,498,857 3,378,149,035
Operating income 2,145,728,414 1,998,686,187
Other income 24,051,878 50,067,120
Equity in (loss)/income of associates 2(b) (1,873,076) 125,543
Net income before income taxes 2,167,907,216 2,048,878,850
Income tax expense 10 105,979,276 90,675,758
Net income 2,061,927,940 1,958,203,092

Other comprehensive loss:
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency trandation adjustments 2(l) (19,376,611) (11,040,391)
Comprehensive income $ 2,042,551,329 1,947,162,701

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Cumulative
Class A members Class B members ClassM members ClassM unit option holders trandation Total
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options Amounts adjustment capital
850,000 $ (806,802,240) 150,000 $ 1,274,221,216 45,705 $ 25,239,087 114,192 $ 62,079,071 $ (34,779,215) $ 519,957,919
1,444,786,673 429,708,581 83,707,838 - - 1,958,203,092
(1,407,711,685) (413,530,697) (80,286,248) - - (1,901,528,630)
- - - 17,416,210 - 17,416,210
48,510,976 - - (48,510,976) - -
- - - - (11,040,391) (11,040,391)
850,000 (721,216,276) 150,000 1,290,399,100 45,705 28,660,677 122,972 30,984,305 (45,819,606) 583,008,200
(17,852,184) (3,319,784) (959,921) - - (22,131,889)
850,000 (739,068,460) 150,000 1,287,079,316 45,705 27,700,756 122,972 30,984,305 (45,819,606) 560,876,311
1,523,328,377 450,997,001 87,602,562 - - 2,061,927,940
(1,595,853,856) (470,872,195) (91,581,232) - - (2,158,307,283)
- - - 16,228,568 - 16,228,568
18,636,755 - - (18,636,755) - -
- - - - (19,376,611) (19,376,611)
850,000 $ (792,957,184) 150,000 g 1,267,204,122 45,705 $ 23,722,086 143,858 ¢ 28,576,118 3 (65,196,217) $ 461,348,925

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC

AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 2,061,927,940 1,958,203,092
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 15,754,902 16,714,824
Depreciation and amortization 45,224,698 46,606,978
Amortization of deferred sales charges - 30,368,244
Unrealized and realized loss/(gain) on investments carried at fair value through
profit and loss 173,827 (586)
Equity in loss/(income) of associates 1,873,076 (125,543)
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 7,685,839 2,758,547
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through income 4,011,361 -
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through income (19,366,964) (2,292,016)
Income taxes paid (104,148,954) (87,635,240)
Interest paid (2,258,750) (2,374,634)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Fees receivable 59,695,625 (84,912,737)
Receivables from &ffiliates, deferred sales charges, prepaid expenses, and other
assets 8,957,270 (44,952,843)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 116,569,743 143,906,563
Other liabilities, future lease obligations, and payables to affiliates (2,775,258) (6,430,815)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,193,324,355 1,969,833,834
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (30,106,393) (26,776,891)
Purchases from redemptions in associates (15,013,633) -
Net cash used in investing activities (45,120,026) (26,776,891)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 2,211,000,000 2,260,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (2,203,000,000) (2,209,000,000)
Cash distributions (2,158,307,283) (1,901,528,630)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,150,307,283) (1,850,528,630)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (19,376,611) (11,040,391)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (21,479,565) 81,487,922
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 450,700,560 369,212,638
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 429,220,995 450,700,560

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

(1) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed-income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns all 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
Il LLC (AAM Holding Il). The Company has authorized 250,000 nonvoting Class M units for issuance and
options on Class M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2018, 45,705
Class M units have been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with
respect to income and distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany items have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:
Pl LLC isabroker/dedler that is the primary distributor and provides shareholder services to institutional and
retail mutual funds (collectively, PIMCO Funds) and exchange traded funds that are managed and advised by
PIMCO. PI LLC isaregistered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is a member
of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA).
StocksPLUS Management, Inc. (StocksPLUS), awholly owned subsidiary of PIMCO, owned approximately
0.00181% interest and 0.00165% interest in StocksPLUS LP. as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is a registered investment adviser in the United Kingdom, with a
branchin Italy.

PIMCO Japan Ltd (PIMCO Japan) is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.
PIMCO Australia Pty Limited (PIMCO Australia) is aregistered investment adviser in Australia.

PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd (PIMCO Asia) is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.
PIMCO Asia Limited (PIMCO Hong Kong) is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Resources) Limited (PIMCO Resources) is a company that provides global payroll
services to PIMCO and its subsidiaries.

PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.
PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Globa Services LLC isaholding company, with branchesin the United Kingdom and Hong Kong.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. administers and manages an investment fund under the laws of
Luxembourg.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.

PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is in the process of registering as an investment advisor
in Tailwan.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financial statements.

(2) Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors.
The accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial
statements. These consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

The consolidated financia statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.

After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeabl e future.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on May 7,
2019.

(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financia and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and all related facts and circumstances to
determine whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under
the equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in PIMCO'’ s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or
loss primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses
from changes in fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement
asto whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the
Company from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities,
including the power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the
structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant
factor in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks
only, and key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities
and anarrow and well defined objective.

(c) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considersal liquid financial instruments with an original maturity of less than three monthsto be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financial institutions,
nonaffiliated money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by
Allianz SE. There was $180.9 million and $143.2 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. As of December 31, 2018, cash equivalents deposited in the cash
pool with Allianz SE totaled $620 thousand, and $395 thousand was deposited in the cash pool at December 31,
2017. Management considers investments in money market accounts to be cash equivalents for purposes of the
consolidated statements of cash flows. These investments are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair
value. The Company maintains its remaining cash and cash equivalents in various federally insured banking
ingtitutions. The account balances at each institution generally exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation’s (FDIC) insurance coverage, and as a result, there is a concentration of credit risk related to
amounts in excess of FDIC insurance coverage.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

(d) Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading
business model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a
short-to-moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognized directly in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
Transactions in these investments are recorded on atrade-date basis.

(6 Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects
to be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These fees are earned
in exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative
services for the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing
costs. The performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are
substantially the same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under
management and recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided
in other periods. As the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of
assets under management, the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the
dependence on unpredictable asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is
generaly once these values can be determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company
may also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles.
Such fees are recognized when it is no longer probable that there will be a significant reversal, which is usually
at the end of the respective measurement period if the prescribed performance hurdles have been achieved and
the fees are no longer subject to claw back.

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are an ongoing fee that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behaf of PIMCO Mutua Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the
performance obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue
amounts are based on percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the
consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset
vaues. The constraint is removed once these values can be determined.
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Contract assets and liabilities

Revenues related to investment advisory and administration is included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Revenues
related to distribution and servicing fees are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. The impairment of any receivables recognized
during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers was inconsequential. There are no contract
liabilities related to these contracts.

() Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office equipment,
furniture, fixtures, and software are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
generaly threeto five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining
terms of the related leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financia period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year theitem is sold or retired.

(g) Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

(h) Income Taxes

PIMCO is not subject to United States (U.S.) federal income tax asit is organized as alimited liability company
and is taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their
proportionate share of PIMCO's taxable income. PIMCO is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the
u.s.

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generaly
recognized for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.
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(i) Distributions

Although there is no contractua requirement, PIMCO generally distributes its operating income (as defined
within the PIMCO limited liability company agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after the
end of such quarter.

(i) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital,
over the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As
the Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the
Company’s management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public
entities, discounted cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the
Company’s historical and forecasted financial performance.

(K Marketing and Promotional

The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating
marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.

() Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been translated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are trandated primarily at the exchange rate on the date
on which the transactions are recognized. The effects of translating the results of operations of subsidiaries with
a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive loss. The cumulative
translation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017.

(m) Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statementsin conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liabilities, reported amounts
of revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These
estimates and assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and
assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current
economic environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management
adjusts such estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects
cannot be determined with precision, actua results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in
those estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the
financial statements in future periods. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:
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Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the
Company’s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to
the Company’s future earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evaluation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(€)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation
of such entities.

(n) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The
amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future
events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision
where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or all of the expenditure is
expected to be reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is
recoghized as a separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded
in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

(0) Deferred Compensation
The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the
carrying value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred
compensation trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(p) General and administrative
General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under

the administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The
Company is considered the principal in these arrangements and recognizes these costs on a gross basis.
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() Change in Accounting Policy

During 2018, the Company evaluated its accounting policy with respect to the deferred compensation plan and
determined to change its accounting policy to a more preferable method. Previoudly, the interest in the deferred
compensation plan and the deferred compensation liabilities were not reflected in the consolidated financial
statements as the plan was accounted for by the Sponsoring Entity, AAM LP. Management determined a more
preferable treatment would be to reflect the interest in the deferred compensation trust and the deferred
compensation liabilities in the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, prior year comparatives have
been adjusted to reflect this preferable accounting treatment. There was no impact to net income or capital as a
result of the retrospective application.

(3 Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

Revenue

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted |FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized on the date of initia application. Upon
adoption, the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings was $22.1 million. This adjustment relates to sales
commissions paid to third party intermediaries in connection with the sale of shares of affiliated mutual funds sold
without a front-end sales charge which were previously capitalized. These commission costs do not meet the
criteria of incremental costs of obtaining a contract and are, therefore, expensed as incurred under IFRS 15. Any
sales commissions that are recaptured through contingent deferred sales charges are recorded as other revenue.

The most significant impact of the adoption to the Company relates to the presentation of certain distribution costs
gross within commission expense that were previously netted within investment advisory fees - pooled funds
revenue.

There was no other impact to revenue for the year ended December 31, 2018, as revenue recognition and timing
of revenue did not change as aresult of implementing IFRS 15.

Financial Instruments

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted IFRS 9 Financial instruments, which fully replaces IAS 39 and
provides a new approach on how to classify financial instruments based on their cash flow characteristics and the
business model under which they are managed. Furthermore, the standard introduces a new forward-looking
impairment model for debt instruments and provides new rules for hedge accounting.

Financial assets such as the following categories included in IAS 39 are no longer available: held to maturity,
loans and receivables and available for sale. Rather, under IFRS 9, afinancial asset is classified as measured at:

amortized cogt, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL") oninitial recognition based on the business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics.
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This standard did not have a significant impact to the Company’s financial statements. There was no impact to
opening retained earnings aresult of applying this standard.

(4) Future Changein Accounting Policies

A number of accounting standards, interpretations, and amendments have been issued by the IASB, which are not
yet effective for the Company’s financial statements. Those that are most relevant to the Company’s financial
statements in future years are discussed below.

Leases

IFRS 16, Leases, was issued by the IASB on January 13, 2016. IFRS 16 results in lessees accounting for most
leases within the scope of the standard in a manner similar to the way in which finance leases are currently
accounted for under 1AS 17, Leases. Lessees will recognize a right of use asset and a corresponding financial
liahility on the statements of financial position. The asset will be amortized over the length of the lease and the
financial liability measured at amortized cost. Lessor accounting remains substantially the same as under |1AS 17.
IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.

The Company has completed its assessment of the impact on its consolidated financial statements. The Company
estimates that it will recognize approximately $236.1 million in new assets, which also reflect deferred rent and
other incentives accrued as of the transition date, and $276.8 million in new liabilities for its operating leases of
offices space.

(5) Fair Vaue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial
condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financia instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at
least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.

The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $32.5 million and
$17.5 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted

quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments for 2018 and 2017.
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The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust primarily consist of mutual funds
and equity securities, which are classified as Level 1 instruments for 2018 and 2017.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2018 or
2017.

The fair value of investment advisory fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees receivable, deferred sales
charges, receivables from affiliates, and payables to &ffiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.

(6) Commissions and Deferred Sales Charges

Trail commissions consist of distribution and servicing payments to participating brokers for the distribution of
shares, providing personal services to shareholders, and maintaining shareholder accounts. Such trail
commissions, in total, can range from 0.10% to 1.00% of the average daily net assets for PIMCO Mutual Funds.

In connection with the distribution of certain Class A and Class C shares, Pl LLC advances commissions to third
party intermediaries, which are expensed asincurred. Initial commissions are generally paid at a rate of up to 1%
for Class A shares (on sales of $1 million or more) and for Class C shares. The contingent deferred sales charges
are collected on certain early redemptions of the shares, unless an applicable exemption applies such as if the
redemption relates to balances accumulated through reinvested dividends or capital gain distributions or
appreciation on the account over the amount that was invested. Pl LLC incurred $30.6 million in commissions to
third party intermediaries for the year ended December 31, 2018, and is included in commissions in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

The contingent deferred sales charges are collected on certain early redemptions of the shares. The contingent
deferred sales charge rate on Class C shares is generally 1% if redeemed during the first year following purchase
for applicable PIMCO Funds. Contingent deferred sales charges may aso be received on the redemption of
certain PIMCO Funds Class A shares at a rate of 1% of the net asset value of the redeemed shares, if the initia
purchase of such Class A shares exceeded certain thresholds. PI LLC received $3.5 million in contingent deferred
sales charges for the year ended December 31, 2018 and is included in other revenue in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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(7) Property and Equipment

The mgjor classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture,
fixtures, and Leasehold
software improvements Art Totd
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2016 $ 93,780,071 97,460,778 1,014,536 192,255,385
Additions 24,467,417 2,309,474 - 26,776,891
Disposals (2,653,000) (105,547) - (2,758,547)
Depreciation and amortization (38,382,925) (8,224,053) - (46,606,978)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2017 77,211,563 91,440,652 1,014,536 169,666,751
Additions 28,017,364 2,082,129 6,900 30,106,393
Disposals (7,685,840) - - (7,685,840)
Depreciation and amortization (35,360,085) (9,864,613) - (45,224,698)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2018 $ 62,183,002 83,658,168 1,021,436 146,862,606

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $45.2 million and $46.6 million for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(8) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP for certain overhead, administrative services, and occupancy
costs that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These expenses generaly consist of rental costs and
salaries and related benefits for finance, information technology, and other general and administrative services.
The amount charged for such services totaled $50.4 million and $49.3 million during 2018 and 2017, respectively,
which is a component of general and administrative in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income. The payable to affiliates includes a liability to be paid to AAM LP in connection with these services and
payables to other affiliates in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have
been paid on behalf of PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $10.7 million as of December 31,
2018 and $13.6 million as of December 31, 2017.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generally
less than 90 days, at arate of 3-month LIBOR plus 0.5% to cover short-term operating cash needs. During 2018
and 2017, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short term cash loans from AAM LP to cover its
operating cash needs. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, PIMCO had outstanding short-term loans totaling
$212.0 million and $204.0 million, respectively, which is shown as short-term borrowings from affiliates in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. During 2018 and 2017, PIMCO incurred $2.3
million and $2.5 million, respectively, in interest expense on loans, which is included in other expenses in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially al of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees - pooled funds, administrative fees - pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2018, the Company had $578.1
million (2017: $626.5 million) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $41.9 million and $40.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively, which are primarily included in investment advisory fees - private accounts in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of New York, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $6.2 million and $9.3 million for the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses
in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PIMCO Deutschland GmbH and its branches (collectively PDG), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH, who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE,
together with al of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are subject to PIMCO’s Global Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer
Pricing Policy) for shared management services that are provided by al PIMCO entities. Shared management
services provided include portfolio management, account management and business management and
administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared management services are alocated in accordance
with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2018, the revenue earned from third parties for shared management services
alocated to PDG was $36.9 million (2017: $11.9 million) greater than the revenue alocated from PDG and is
presented as a reduction of investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for performing other shared services are
allocated to PDG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors. During 2018, costs allocated to PDG
were $30.8 million (2017: $25.0 million) and are included as a reduction of compensation and benefits and
general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
As of December 31, 2018, the Company had a $6.5 million (2017: $11.9 million) receivable from and a $9.8
million (2017: $8.6 million) payable to PDG, which are included within receivables from affiliates and payables
to ffiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE, which expires in November 2020. The
facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of LIBOR plus 20bps (rate of 2.578% as of
December 31, 2018). To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit facility on behalf of
its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2018 and 2017.
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Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in each of the benefit plans that are discussed in
note 9. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the majority of compensation and benefits
included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(9) Benefit Plans
(@) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuals
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one-third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option
grant date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over
the related vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless
transaction unless the participant has elected to defer their M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As
disclosed in note 9(f), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation
Plan (the EDCP). If, at the time of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the
exercise price of the option award, no Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of
PIMCO and entitle the holder to receive quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second
Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt
of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan continue to receive quarterly distributions.

A maximum of 250,000 M units are authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. As of December 31, 2018
and 2017, 143,858 and 122,972 options, respectively, were outstanding for M units and 45,705 M units have
been issued from the exercise of options.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model. The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third party
valuation was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend
yield was estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution (OPAD) distributed
to PIMCO M unit holders. Expected volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a
select group of peers. The expected life was cal culated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one-third
inyears 3, 4, and 5) as separate options.

(Continued)

299/352



EDINETO O OO
O0000000000000000000000000000000000(E15034)
OoO0oooooooooooooooo
PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

The following table provides the assumptions used in calculating the fair value of the M unit options granted
during 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 15,528 11,804
Assumptions:
Expected term (years) 3.84 384
Expected volatility 21.0% 25.2%
Expected dividends 11.8% 13.7%
Risk-free rate of return 2.5% 1.9%

A summary of the activity in 2018 and 2017 related to the number and weighted average exercise price of the
M unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:

Weighted
average
Number of options exercise
Vested Nonvested Total price

Outstanding at

December 31, 2016 - 114,192 114,192 $ 17,932
Changes during the year:

Granted - 49,195 49,195 11,804

Vested 33,344 (33,344) - -

Exercised (33,344) - (33,344) 21,810

Forfeited - (7,071) (7,071 16,928
Outstanding at

December 31, 2017 - 122,972 122972 $ 14,486
Changes during the year:

Granted - 49,595 49,595 15,528

Vested 19,084 (19,084) - -

Exercised (19,084) - (19,084) 23,594

Forfeited - (9,625) (9,625) 14,954
Outstanding at

December 31, 2018 - 143,858 143,858 $ 13,606
Exercisable as of

December 31, 2018 - - - -

The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2018 have an exercise price between $11,319 and $24,012
and aweighted average remaining contractual life of 3.08 years.
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The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $15,487 for 2018 and
$11,932 for 2017. M unit options totaling 19,084 vested during 2018 and 33,344 options vested during 2017.
The M unit estimated fair values as of the vesting dates were less than the exercise price of each of these option
awards. Therefore, as a result of the automatic cashless exercise feature, no M units were issued in 2018 or
2017 and the entire Black-Scholes amount was reallocated from the Class M unit option capital account to the
Class A member capital account in the accompanying consolidated statements of changes in capital. No other
M unit activity occurred during the year. As of December 31, 2018, 45,274 M units are owned by current
employees and former employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $15.8 million and $16.7 million, respectively, and is
included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2018, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested
M unit option awards, net of estimated forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through
December 31, 2023 is $26.5 million.

(b) Profit Sharing and Incentive Plans

PIMCO and its subsidiaries have various profit sharing and incentive plans that compensate participants on the
basis of profitability and discretionary bonuses. Compensation under these programs was $1.2 billion for the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is included in compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(©) Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Company has a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for certain key employees. Awards are primarily based
upon achieving specified operating earnings targets and vest over three years. This plan is accounted for as a
liability award and expensed as compensation over the related vesting period. The Company had recognized
expense under the LTIP of $52.6 million and $48.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. LTIP compensation expense is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The total accrued LTIP liability was $106.4
million and $87.7 million at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is included within current accrued
compensation and noncurrent other accrued compensation in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial condition.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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(d) Special Performance Award

The Special Performance Award (SPA) was an enhancement to compensation. The SPA consists of deferred

cash awards granted during the 4th quarter of 2014, which were earned and payable at various dates through
mid-2017. The purpose of the program was to secure performance and to retain talent. There were no expenses
recorded by the Company related to the SPA during the year ended December 31, 2018, and $21.2 million
during the year ended December 31, 2017, and is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The SPA liability was fully paid as of
December 31, 2017.

(e Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LP is the sponsor of a defined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering PIMCO
employees. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code and allows eligible
employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is subject to a maximum
dollar amount determined from time to time by the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are generally eligible
following the later of attainment of age 21 or on the first day of the month following the start date. After the
completion of one year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to
the Internal Revenue Code limits, contributed by the employees. The amount expensed by the Company related
to this plan during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $13.3 million and $13.2 million,
respectively, and is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

() Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has a nonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation
otherwise payable to certain eligible employees of the Company will be mandatorily deferred and pursuant to
which such eligible employees may elect to defer additional amounts of compensation. The plan is maintained
primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation for a select group of management or highly
compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301(a)(3), and 401(a)(1) of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred under the plan are invested in
marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by the employees and are held in
agrantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to fund ongoing activities of the Company and
only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of insolvency. Total investments and
restricted cash and cash equivalents held in trust and the related liability as of December 31, 2018 and as
December 31, 2017 was $475.7 million and $363.3 million, respectively, and are included in interest in non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition.

(9) Employee Sock Purchase Plan

Allianz SE has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan that is designed to provide eligible employees with an
opportunity to purchase American Depository Shares of Allianz SE annually at a discounted price on a
predetermined date. An aggregate of 250,000 American Depository Shares are reserved for this plan. Allianz
SE determines the gross purchase price of the shares, and a committee appointed by the Company determines
the discount price. Employees are not allowed to sell or transfer the shares for an one-year period following the
purchase date. The difference between the market price and the discount price, or the discount, was paid by the
Company and amounted to $1.1 million in 2018 and $1.3 million in 2017 and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(Continued)
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(10) Income Tax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Year ended December 31

2018 2017
Current:

Federal $ 6,278 2,030,711
State 856,534 1,127,343
Foreign 108,644,006 85,232,952
Total current 109,506,818 88,391,006

Deferred:
Federal - (999,204)
Foreign (3,527,542) 3,283,956
Total deferred (3,527,542) 2,284,752
Total provision $ 105,979,276 90,675,758

The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, income taxes payable amounted to $39.7 million and $34.0 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, deferred tax assets amounted
to $17.7 million and $14.4 million, respectively. The deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2018 amounted to
$21 thousand. There were no deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2017. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are included in other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

(Continued)
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(11) Lease Commitments

PIMCO leases office space under noncancelable operating leases with terms in excess of one year and future
minimum payments are as follows:

Year ending December 31

2019 $ 34,973,549
2020 35,085,091
2021 33,843,209
2022 33,077,475
2023 31,796,216
Thereafter 37,810,486

Total $ 206,586,026

Rent expense under these leases was $31.1 million and $29.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. Certain lease agreements provide for rental escalations over the
term of the operating lease. The Company recognizes the rental increases over the terms of the leases on a
straight-line basis.

(12) Financia Risk Management
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market Risk
Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s

activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(@ Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers,
bank deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the
default risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk.
However, geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually
material to the Company’s operations.

(Continued)
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The creditworthiness of customers is assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does
not require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for
each customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of
collection on outstanding receivables and establishes an allowance for impairment only when an individual
customer has been identified as at risk for collection.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks: The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such ingtitutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financial strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financia obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will aways have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both norma and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The majority of non-derivative financia
liabilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2018.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financial
obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted,
such as natural disasters. In addition, the Company has access to AAM LFP's line of credit with Allianz SE as
discussed in note 8.

(c) Market Risk

Market risk istherisk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The mgjority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions aso occur on a more limited basis primarily in Euros, British
Pounds Sterling, and Japanese Yen.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniques to limit such risk.

(Continued)
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Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, all of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds
the Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material
investments in such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in
accordance with client guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2018, there were no
changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material
differences to members capital as of December 31, 2018 or the reported comprehensive income for the year
then ended.

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of Pl LLC (see note 14) and certain foreign
subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(13) Provisions

PIMCO is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which arise in
the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financia position or results of operations. Management
believes that they have made appropriate estimates for provisions in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial condition and in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The
Company expenses related legal fees asincurred.

(14) Net Capital

Pl LLC is subject to the Uniform Net Capita Rule (Rule 15¢3-1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital and requires that the ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net
capital, both as defined, shall not exceed 15-to-1. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, Pl LLC had net capital of
$49.7 million and $50.3 million, respectively, for regulatory purposes, which was $45.9 million and $45.8
million, respectively, in excess of its required net capital of $3.8 million and $4.5 million, respectively. Pl LLC's
aggregate indebtedness to net capital ratio was 1.14-to-1 and 1.35-to-1 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

(Continued)
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(15) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle. The Company earned $178.2
thousand and $1.3 million in investment advisory fees from structured entities during the years ended December
31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, which is included in investment advisory fees - pooled funds in the
accompanying statements of income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interestsin those vehicles:

2018 2017
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 289,027,697 184,813,595
Investment advisory fees
receivable - pooled funds 131,786 191,510

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(16) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financial condition
through May 7, 2019, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following events to disclose:

PIMCO M unit options totaling 22,293 vested on January 15, 2019. On March 29, 2019, these vested awards were
exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of
approximately 3,171 M units.

On March 14, 2019, PIMCO granted 39,684 M unit options that have an exercise price of $14,516 per unit.

On January 2, 2019, PIMCO fully acquired the equity interest in Gurtin Municipal Bond Management, a
municipal bond manager.
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2019 30
526,417,908 56,042,450

18,904,554 2,012,579

509,900,465 54,284,004

302,071,688 32,158,552

36,867,533 3,924,918

23,150,697 2,464,623

17,604,135 1,874,136

10,852,543 1,155,362

56,079,480 5,970,221

1,501,849,003 159,886,845

150,530,886 16,025,518

221,565,313 23,587,843

565,976,329 60,253,840

12,618,124 1,343,325

30,864,520 3,285,837

58,362,220 6,213,242

1,039,917,392 110,709,606

2,541,766,395 270,596,450

400,371,911 42,623,594

486,538,567 51,796,896

109,347,421 11,641,126

30,035,601 3,197,590

18,364,844 1,955,121

17,604,135 1,874,136

13,136,414 1,398,503

1,075,398,893 114,486,966

565,976,329 60,253,840

232,900,862 24,794,626

113,717,301 12,106,344

2,782,918 296,269

915,377,410 97,451,079

1,990, 776,303 211,938,045

850,000 (718,894,499) (76,533,508)
150,000 1,278,465,927 136,105,483
48,876 27,621,882 2,940,626
156,330 25,867,868 2,753,893
(62,071,086) (6,608,088)

550,990,002 58,658,405

2,541,766,395 270,596,450
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1,754,941,154

186,831,035

492,969,941 52,481,580
554,379,338 59,019,224
185,124,457 19,708,350

11,784,089 1,254,534

2,999,198,979

319,294,723

936,982,110 99,751,115
425,097,429 45,255,872
320,280,419 34,097,053
101,131,473 10,766,457
71,616,472 7,624,290
57,082,620 6,077,016
23,308,735 2,481,448
12,711,464 1,353,262

1,948,210,722

207,406,513

1,050,988,257

111,888,210

7,107,693 756,685
(6,783,645) (722,187)
(760,018) (80,912)

1,050,552,287

47,186,828

111,841,796

5,023,510

1,003,365,459

3,125,131

106,818,287

332,701

1,006,490,590

107,150,988
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2019 30

850,000 (792,957,184) (84,418,222) 150,000 1,267,204,122 134,906,551 45,705 23,722,086 2,525,453
732,721,403 78,005,521 224,610,692 23,912,054 46,033,364 4,900,712
(668,394, 234) (71,157,250) (213,348,887) (22,713,123) (42,436,427)  (4,517,782)
9,735,516 1,036,443 302,859 32,242
850,000 (718,894, 499) (76,533,508) 150,000 1,278,465,927 136,105,483 48,876 27,621,882 2,940,626
143,858 28,576,118 3,042,214 (65,196,217) (6,940,789) 461,348,925 49,115,207
1,003,365, 459 106,818,287
(924,179,548) (98,388, 155)
7,330,125 780,365 7,330,125 780,365

(10,038,375) (1,068,685)
3,125,131 332,701 3,125,131 332,701
156,330 25,867,868 2,753,893 (62,071,086) (6,608,088) 550,990,092 58,658,405

311/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 30

1,003, 365,459
7,117,776
33,336,196
6,783,645
760,018
68,401
(72,616)
14,132,707
(401,218)
(86,028, 269)
(6,821,123)
2,776,915
(20,273,676)

359,744,365
1,352,133

106,818,287
757,758
3,548,971
722,187
80,912
7,282
(7,731)
1,504,568
(42,714)
(9,158,570)
(726,177)
295,630
(2,158,336)

38,298,385
143,948

1,315,840,713

140,084,402

(51,884,452) (5,523,619)
(19,717,309) (2,099,105)

(18,000) (1,916)
(71,619,761) (7,624,640)

1,318,000,000
(1,530,000,000)
(924,179,548)
(13,969,622)

140,314,280
(162,883,800)
(98,388, 155)

(1,487,206)

(1,150,149,170)

(122,444.,881)

3,125,131 332,701
97,196,913 10,347,583
429,220,995 45,694,867
526,417,908 56,042,450
233,386,374 24,846,313
(272,699,025) (29,031,538)
39,312,651 4,185,225
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Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
2019 388,027,447 413 940
PIMCO
PIMCO 1971 1940

PIMCO

PIMCO

Maples

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

2019 25 2,662

2016

Brown Brothers Harriman and Company

2019 8,500 1,048 6,310

Brown Brothers Harriman  Luxembourg S.C.A

2019 1,209 12 8,710

1989
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2018 12
525
2018 12
1,650.4
BMA
2008 12 | 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 12 |2014 12 |2015 12 |2016 12 | 2017 12 | 2018 12
819 697 661 613 529 478 457 429 392
76 72 64 47 44 42 40 38 68
220 203 172 119
83 86 79 68 62 72 65 69 35
336 343 229 209
1,534 1,401 1,205 1,056 635 592 562 536 495
71 53 39 39 58 57 52 52 28
84 108 101 95 83 60 47 36 44
198 201 175 155
353 362 315 289 141 117 99 88 72
1,887 1,763 1,520 1,345
1,133 1,016 1,205 1,056 776 709 661 624 567 543 525
1,711.9 1,544.5 1,812.4 1,604.4 1,842.6 1,758.0 1,750.2 1,442.2 1,371.5 1,615.4 1,650.4
( 18 ( 16 (19 (17 ( 19 ( 18 ( 18 ( 15 ( 14 ( 17 ( 17
2,249 ) |4,427 ) |2,948 ) |eo4 ) 6,263 ) |7,157 ) 6,326 ) [3,537 ) |6.,000 ) [1,975 ) [5.702 )
BMA 2012
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2,095 32,676

30

900.00
900.00
1,620.00
1,080.00
1,250.00

1,020.00

340/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1,020.00
1,610.00
1,620.00
1,080.00
1,250.00

1972

BMA BMA 1972

1972

341/352



15

37

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

23 25 13

342/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 31

JITF

2019 31

2019 31

2019 31

343/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 31

2019

344/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each of the Funds listed in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of May 31, 2019, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and for PIMCO Real
Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy the statements of cash flows, and the financial highlights for the periods
indicated in the table below. These financia statements and financial highlights are hereafter collectively referred to as
“financia statements.”

PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund I (1)
PIMCO Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund (1)
PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JITF) (1) PIMCO Real Return Fund (2)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) (1) PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (3)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged) (1)

(1) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended May 31,
2019

(2) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year
ended May 31, 2019

(3) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows for the year ended May 31, 2019, and the
financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions
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In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of
each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of May 31, 2019, and the results of each of their operations, the changes
in each of thelir net assets, and for PIMCO Rea Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy the results of each of their
cash flows, and each of their financia highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
August 6, 2019
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

We have audited the accompanying 2018 consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management
Company LLC and its subsidiaries the “Company” , which comprise the consolidated statements of financial
condition as of December 31, 2018, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income,
changes in capital, and cash flows for the year then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financia statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
we consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the
financial position of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2018, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
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Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note 2(q) to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it
accounts for deferred compensation in 2018. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and for the year then ended, prior to the
retrospective change in accounting for deferred compensation as discussed in Note 2(q), were audited by other auditors
whose report, dated March 22, 2018, expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

We also have audited the adjustments to retrospectively apply the change in accounting for deferred compensation as
discussed in Note 2(q). In our opinion, such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. We were not
engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the 2017 financial statements of the Company other than with
respect to the adjustments and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the 2017
financial statements taken asawhole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Los Angeles, California
May 7, 2019
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Report of Independent Auditors
To the Trustee of PIMCO Bermuda Trust:

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund, PIMCO
Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund, PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond
Fund (M), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund Il, PIMCO
Emerging Markets Bond Fund , PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund, PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term
Strategy (the “Funds”), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of investments, as
of May 31, 2018 and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and for PIMCO Real Return Fund the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein.
These financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter collectively referred to as "financial statements'.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
materia misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
mi sstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Fund's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Fund's internal control.

Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of
each Fund as of May 31, 2018, and the results of each of their operations, changes in each of their net assets, and for
PIMCO Real Return Fund the results of its cash flows for the year then ended, and each of their financia highlights for
the periods indicated therein, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
August 8, 2018
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